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CORPORATE PROFILE
EEHR

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries hereinafter referred to
as the “Group”) is the largest manufacturer and exporter of
longitudinal welded steel pipes and is engaged in property
development and investment in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The Company has been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(Stock Code: 1938) since February 2010. The Group’s steel pipes
are mainly used for energy transmission including oil and gas
transmission pipelines, deep sea pipelines, city gas networks, and
petrochemicals, mining, infrastructure construction, offshore

engineering, steel structures and water utilities industries.

The Group’s production bases and offices are located in Panyu,
Zhuhai, Lianyungang, Nanjing, Hong Kong, Yunfu and Indonesia,
with five production lines for longitudinal submerged arc-welded
(“LSAW”), two production lines for spiral submerged arc-welded
(“SSAW”) and other production lines with a combined annual
production capacity of 1,750,000 tonnes as at 31 December 2022.

The Group is an industry pioneer, particularly strong in research
and development, holding 105 patents (including 41 invention
patents) and 13 international quality certificates and having a long
standing international and nationwide track record. Furthermore, the
Group is the first and only steel pipe manufacturer in the PRC to
manufacture and successfully develop deep sea welded steel pipes
for use at a water depth of 3,500m and a qualified supplier of
Petrobras and Petronas. The Group is a welded steel pipe
manufacturer in the PRC that has received various honours and
awards, including “Gold Cup Prize for Actual Quality of Metallurgical
Products”, “Superior Quality Award for Actual Quality of
Metallurgical Products”, “National Key New Products”, “Province-
recognised Enterprise Technology Centre” and “High and New
Technology Enterprise”, hosted a “Academician Workstation” and is
the main drafter of the national standard for longitudinal welded
steel pipes in the PRC.

TECCFEERE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

AAER

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF EMBEERPEHETEE XM
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

2/F., 3-5 Golden Dragon City H

Yayun Avenue ERE

511450 Panyu District EMH

Guangzhou City ERRDEANE
Guangdong Province SB35

The PRC 4R+ 511450
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG ERTEEEMY
Unit 605-6086, &8

Tower IlI BENEE

Enterprise Square BB

No. 9 Sheung Yuet Road TrEES

Kowloon Bay, Kowloon E=-R

Hong Kong 605-606 =
AUDITOR ¥ B Em

CCTH CPA Limited hEXREGHMBRDA
Certified Public Accountants HEDE AN

Unit 1510-1517,15/F, Tower 2 IR

Kowloon Commerce Centre M

No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road 2 B IR515%

Kwai Chung EEZ90

New Territories, Hong Kong 2F£151£1510-1517
STOCK CODE IR 43 57

1938 1938

COMPANY’S WEBSITE DN E A
www.pck.com.cn www.pck.com.cn
pck.todayir.com pck.todayir.com
LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO HONG KONG LAW ERBLEER
Loeb & Loeb LLP LEEMEBMEREREEER
PRINCIPAL BANKERS FEERRT
Bank of China Limited HEIRITIRID B R A A
Bank of Communications ZIBIRTT

Bank of Jiangsu TLERIRTT

China Construction Bank IR ERTT
Guangzhou Rural Commercial Bank BN BT RTT
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China P TR ERTT
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited

3rd Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman

KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F., Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong
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SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
3rd Floor, Royal Bank House
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Cayman Islands
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would
like to present to you the audited consolidated annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

In 2022, the global economy faced downward pressure due to the
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the outbreak of the Russia-Ukraine
war, fluctuating oil and gas prices as well as inflation. The growth
of global and China’s economy slowed down in 2022, with growth
rates of 3.1% and 3%, respectively. The Group recorded a turnover

BB RBCR -

RABRRAKIABMARARMEZRBERQAF (XA
Al BZREMBARAEEDESF((EXDG(E
B2g]) m HTREASEHZE_ZT__F+-A=
T-HLEFEZEERGA2FEE -

ZTECFHEMAEBERARE  BBEFIEE H
REBKS  BERER 2XECEEYTTED =%
TIFERREERPEEEERRE  BRIEBES A
3.1% K% 3% ° ANEE RS & ¥ A AR 2,362,000,000

BIAMAARREEEZRERD A
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREHES

of approximately RMB2,362.0 million (2021: RMB1,813.4 million),
representing an increase of approximately 30.3% compared with
that of 2021. The Group recorded a profit of approximately
RMB163.0 million (2021: loss of RMB94.4 million). Earnings per
share attributable to ordinary equity holders was approximately
RMBO0.16 (2021: loss per share of RMB0.09). The Board did not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Under the recurring outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in 2022, the
Group delivered 314,000 tonnes of steel pipes in total and secured
orders for 413,000 tonnes of steel pipes in total for, among others,
projects with three major oil companies, the Bozhong 19—6
Condensate Gas Filed Phase | Development Project, the Shell
Offshore Platform Project, the Foshan High-pressure Natural Gas
Pipeline Network, the Tung Chung Insulation Project, the Kwu Tung
North Insulation Project, Bohe-Maoming QOil Pipeline Project, the
Nigeria Project, the Binzhou Natural Gas Pipeline Construction
Project and the Uganda Project.

During the year, the Group successfully piloted the production of
composite steel pipes made of low-alloy steel (steel plate material:
Q235B+304/wall thickness: 10.5mm+1.5mm) which is resistant to
seawater corrosion, and new processes of hydrogen sulfide double
resistance line pipes and large wall thickness steel pipes with
double welding processes, all of which laid the foundation for future
steel pipe orders, and strengthening the core competitiveness of the
Company to become a pioneer in the industry.

CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

T(ZE=Z—%: AR%1,813,400,0000T) ' &X=F =
—FREMH303% FAEBBEBENHNRARE
163,000,0007T (= F = — 4 : [f5 18 A R #94,400,000
o) BERREFRBEABGEERAENOAEARK0167T
(ZZ2=—5F: BREBARARK0.097T) - EFETE
BB E_T - —FTA=T—RHILEFEZRIR

B o

o

TR CHFOENERARERERET AEEFAH
22 14314,000M8 &) £ & - N 5% 7 +£413,0000F £ £ & 5]
B HPRE=AAGHARIEER PP 19-68TRE—
HFMBIEE  REEFTFREE - BLUTRAASEREE
MIEE RBARAEE - SRILRABER - HEEXA
MmEEIEE - BEBFEER C BMNARAREERERT
BrETEHEHES -

RNEBFARDHARMEKBRNEESHESHEE
(8 4k # & &Q235B+304, B 2 510.5mm+1.5mm) &
F—RBLEEREREERAEERNENREERT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

Furthermore, by virtue of its professional research and development
team, solid technical strength, continuous innovation ability and
scientific enterprise management, Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd (“PCKSP (Zhuhai)”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, has received the certificate of “Guangdong High and

*9

New Technology Enterprise*” jointly issued by the Department of
Science and Technology of Guangdong Province*, Guangdong
Province Department of Finance*, and Guangdong Provincial
Taxation Bureau of the State Administration of Taxation, as well as
the honorary title of the 2022 Specialized and New Enterprise in
Guangdong Province (BHR & 20224 [ HIE4F#12%) and National
Intellectual Property Advantage Enterprise*. Being recognized as a
high-tech enterprise is a comprehensive evaluation and recognition
of PCKSP (zZhuhai)'s core independent intellectual property rights,
ability in scientific and technological achievements transformation,
organization and management level on research and development,
growth indicators and talent composition. With an emphasis on
technological innovation, the Group has attached much importance
to technology research and development, patent declaration and
intellectual property protection. Its investment in research and
development has been increasing year by year, and as a result, the
Company’s products become the bellwether of industry-leading
technology, and were strongly supported and recognised by the
government in innovation research and development.

In April 2022, the Group announced the disposal of 50% equity
interest in a Saudi joint venture company at a consideration of
SR41,500,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB70,550,000), and
the disposal was not completed as at the date of the report. The
Saudi joint venture company was set up in 2011, and commenced
construction of production mill and LSAW production line in 2014
and began to record sales since 2019. As it had been making loss
since its incorporation, the disposal of the Saudi joint venture
company could minimize investment losses in the foreseeable
future. In addition, after the disposal, the Group can concentrate on
its main operation in Zhuhai and Lianyungang, the PRC. The
disposal provided the Group with capital from the divestment,
replenish its liquidity and improve the financial position of the
Group. The disposal did not have any material effect on the
business and operation of the Group.

TECCFEERE

o AEBBHEEEROMERML - HEHKMES
SEMRIFES  MENEEEER  AREZEHNBER
AERBKIME KB ARAR(ERINIME GX
AW T HERERBRIME - BEREMBRE -
ARBRRERERE R A BENERE S RM
CEIRERE LEFTERE2022FEERFNT
X BERESVEREZOXKERES - SHRMER
RERHFBWIME HE) TR OB TMBERE - F
BRREESN TRFAENEBEERF  BRESR
AT BEBEOEEFEMAE - AEE B TERMA
omEEREKMAE EMNEAHR AHEERET
1E - BBRAZRFRTT  RRRERKBITERLRM
HEAR - AR E T EBSIBE RN FMA
GIE

REBR-_Z-__FMAAMGTHEDPBEEQFN
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREHES

PROSPECT

Faced with the energy crisis resulting from inflation, monetary
deflation, and the Russia-Ukraine war, it is expected that in 2023,
the global economy will fall into recession, the demand for crude oil
and natural gas may decrease, and the oil and gas prices will
fluctuate. Contrary to the global economic forecast in 2023, the
World Bank stated that the global economy may increase only by
1.7%. Nevertheless, China’s original intention to promote the
development of the natural gas industry remains unchanged.
According to the 14th Five-Year Plan and the 2035 Vision Outline
(TR REIF2035F == HIZME)), China will accelerate the
construction of oil and gas pipeline facilities. In addition, in order to
implement the “dual carbon” policy, natural gas has been a key
clean energy for carbon emission reduction, but current natural gas
pipeline mileage has not met the goals as set out in the Medium
and Long-Term Oil and Gas Pipeline Network Plan ((FF EHimEE
#9#321)), and there will still be demand for pipeline construction in
the future. As such, the Group will continue to benefit from the
demand for pipelines.

With unremitting efforts, the Group is very confident that it will
overcome any hardships by adjusting its strategic direction, building
up its strength and guarding the Group with fearless spirit, as well
as improving and strengthening its technologies, actively expand
new product areas, and expand its product offerings to cover
projects in infrastructure and high-end construction fields such as
bridges, wind power generation, offshore platforms and water pipes
in addition to single oil and gas transmission pipeline, to meet the
diversified demands of domestic and foreign markets for
high-performance steel pipe products, and expand product use and
increase its market share.

10 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank all the staff for their
consistent professional ethics in such a challenging year. | am also
grateful to the shareholders for their continuous support to the
Group to build strength for a bright future.

Chen Chang
Chairman

Panyu, Guangdong, China
30 March 2023
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
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1996
BEREEEHNER
(RREGAZEE)

Guangdong Province

Outstanding New Product*
(The Economic Commission

of Guangdong Province*)

GPEC

A e S i, o

-
i)
§
§

e
2 00 (Renewed in
2010/20144%)
EREEAHE
(BERIBITHREER)

Guangdong Province

Famous Trademark*
(Guangdong Province
Bureau for Administration of
industry and Commerce*)

2005 (Renewed in
2011/2012/20158%)
HEESBNERLTE (BRRE)
(FERBTXEGE)

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical

Products* — ERW

(China Iron & Steel Association*)

BEERBYEEBSFR
(FEASTH)

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical
Products*

(Ministry of Metallurgical
Industries of the PRC*)

R
HEREER

ARsamEERSE,
ERETR AR, B
EUTTT T T TP

P bR
PEE e e

2004

TEARERAENREE
2004 F T8
(FERAAARCTRBEIEGS)

China Reserved Petroleum
Pipeline Manufacturing Industry —
Top Ten Enterprises in 2004*

(China Petroleum and Petro-chemical
Equipment Industry Association*)

| iE#

LA T T 1
EEREEGE

CEABEEEES A

i - y

2006

2005FEREEBEE REDHE
(RREHEBRWEER)

Leader in Quality Management
in Guangdong Province in 2005*
(Guangdong Provincial Bureau of

Quality and Technical Supervision*)
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i e
AR AR R EEE
(ENTRERTEES)
Certificate for the Recognition

of High and New Technology

Enterprises*
City Sci and T gy

éom mittee*)

200 (Renewed in
2011/2012/20154)

REERBEYEER

SRR (EHETESE)

(FEBET XS

Gold Cup Prize for Actual

Quality of Metallurgical

Products* — LSAW

(China Iron & Steel Association*)

RNJERHEIEE
(REN BRI

China Torch Item*
(Science and Technology
Department of the PRC*)
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
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200 (Renewed in
2010/20134)
EREEEER
(RREEBRMERR)
Guangdong Province Top

Brand Product*
(Guangdong Province Bureau of
Quality and Technical Supervision*)

LT

CARS IEsamEimas

2008

BRPRBEESE
“HRAATERRE

(FEBAHE)

International Exhibition of Inventions
Golden Awards* (Three-roller forming

technology and equipment*)
(China Inventions Association*)

FEYAR

E ¥ i

2009

EREREF %
——ERATERRE
(BREASEREREARERR

Guangdong Province Patent Excellence

Award*
(Three-roller forming technology and equlpmenl)
1 &

2007

007 FEREXKAFREBREHAER
(RREACEBEERERORAFLCREERET)

Best Original Product of Innovative
Record for Guangdong Enterprise in 2007*
(Association of Enterprise in Guangdong

Province & The Innovative Record

of Guangdong Enterprise Approval

Commission*)

200 (Renewed in

2011/2014£%)
5 7 1 1l b 3
(RRE BN - RSB
RREESBRER BREHFBHBER)
Guangdong High and New Technology
Enterprise*

resRsgaan

2007

BT RRGE S —F i

(M AREA)

First Prize for Sci-Tech
Achievement in Guangzhou
City*

(The People’s Government of
Guangzhou City*)

[ re——

200 (Renewed in 2013

2013%)
RREBHBEMER
(BSR4 28 50907 1)
High-tech Product of Guangdong

Province*
(Department of Science and Technology of

(Department of Sci and T y of

Province*, Guangdong Province Department of Flnance b
Guangdong Municipal Office of the State Administration of
Taxation*, and Guangdong Provincial Local Taxation
Bureau*)

201 (Renewed in 2013
20134%)
CEST LY
BEHREMRM AR
(BRMEBAEREBAEERMERBAT L)
Key High and New Technology Enterprise of

China Torch Item*
(Torch High-tech Industry Development Centre of

(Guangdong Provincial Bureau of P
Property Office of Guangdong Province*)

and Technology Department of the PRC*)

dong Province*)

AL E
pedhde

HilEakk A O ® E
W&l ALOF RERNQE .

2010

Bl 3R 32 5E 1 3 M R

(ARBERER  NEHP - MBS SHAR -
HARHBAR)

National-recognised Enterprise Technology
Centre*

(National Development and Reform Commission*,
Science and Technology Department*, Finance
Department*, General Administration of Customs*,
State Administration of Taxation*)

IR BRARMEZERERD A
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

RIFEAE
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2010

EThEZEZH
RESRBEYREHHEEBEXRE
BREE

(hEIRAHE)

1st Runner-up of The 19th
National Invention Exhibition*

Fiasebin

& %

2010

ERENBRM—SR
(RREARBA)

First Prize for Sci-tech of
Guangdong Province*
(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)

2010

EREAIAFER
(RREMNBRME RREARERAUFZAR
ERECENERCESS  EREPHE -
EREABERR BMREEBAMEER)
Indigenous Innovation Product of
Guangdong Province*

Department of Sci and T y of Province*,
Development and Reform Commission of Guangdong Province*,
Economic and Information Commission of Guangdong Province*,
Finance Department of d Province?*, Intell | Property
Department of Province*, Admini ion of Quality and

Dual-drive push-press type steel
pipe expanding device*
(Invention Association of China*)

A rea
IBHEAERFEDD

2010

ERE TR PO

(ERENSBEME EREARRNREZES
EREAKBEEZES)

Technology Research and Development
Centre of Guangdong Province*
(Department of Science and Technology of
Guangdong Province*, Development and Reform

C ission of Province*, ic and
Trade Commission of Guangdong Province*)

i

BRARI WD e

EREABERTHBLRE
(ERENBEER)

Intellectual Property
Demonstration Enterprise of

Guangdong Province*
(Intellectual Property Department
of Guangdong Province*)

it $ .-
WP s
LR R oF

2010

BT Al A %
(RNT R RT A/ AE)
Innovative Enterprise of
Guangzhou*
(T and City Enh

Steering Committee of Guangzhou*)

7 3 \
B LI R

SRR R

|
i Far-""

2011

EREt+EBEMRE
(ERECEBEE BERELE
RiBE)

Top 10 Original Brands of
Guangdong Province*
(Association of Enterprises of
Guangdong Province*, Association
of Entrepreneurs of Guangdong
Province*)
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Technology Supervision of Guangdong Province*)

AW L

LR

Ly
T L

2011

F-tREEERVRRERR — RHRIURIRE

(REIRBHE)

1st Runner-up of The 20th National
Invention Exhibition*
Five-electrode submerged arc
welding equipment

(Invention Association of China*)

I?;E:L:;'Illl

2011

B+ TeEdh

(BREARBU)
Academician Workstation
(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)
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RIFHEAE

FATRERE
Cameien g el it el
I pajam

FATLRER
PO

2011

RN AT E 8%

(BREARBA)

Governmental Quality Award of
The Guangzhou Government*
(The People’s Government of Guangdong
Province*)

2012

EREABFERR
(EREARBT)

Government Quality Award of
Guangdong Province*

(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)

2013-2016

EREAIFNASE
(RRAPBHAME - WREBREAN
REERY MRALEANELESR
B MAEARBNEEAEERE
EZAR MALOBEMER KR
HRIR)

Innovative Enterprise of

Guangdong Province*

(The Guangdong Provmclal Department of
Sci and Tech y, the gdong
Development and Reform Commission,
the Economic & Information Commission
of Guangdong Province, the State —
owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the
Guangdong Province, the Guangdong
Intellectual Property Office and the
Guangdong Provincial Federation of
Trade Unions*)

—E__FEERE

2014

THASERENEBREERR
(PEAE TR

Superior Quality Award
for Actual Quality of

Metallurgical Product
(China Iron & Steel Association*)

2016

REERBYRESHE —
ERE (RE)
(PEMETRGS)

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical

Products* — welded steel pipes
(China Iron & Steel Association)

sRANIEND TEEEEE

HEMFESN

e Mo e

ARERBRMR—ER
(FEMBTXGE FESHRE)
First Prize of Metallurgical
Sci-Tech Award*

(China Iron & Steel Association,
The Chinese Society for Metals)

L .

| reecmen
LA A A

2014

EREFEAEERHARAMEX
(RREEABE)

Model Experimenting Enterprise
for Credit Management of

Guangdong Provmce
( Credit A i )

2016

AEERBYRESNE — BiF

BIUEE
(FERETHGE)

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical
Products*-spiral submerged

arc-welded steel pipes
(China Iron & Steel Association)

FRaRsREES
- 30—
oy
2013
BERE B TR
(RRE ARBUF)

Science Technological Award
of Guangdong Province*

(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)

BRg
&% pal

2015

7S R Bl 4 3

(BERARBE MR - BERE 0B -
EREBRBER RRELTHER)
High Technology Enterprises*
(Department of Science and Technology
of Guangdong Province*, Guangdong
Province Department of Finance*,
Guangdong Municipal Office of the State
Administration of Taxation*, Guangdong
Provincial Local Taxation Bureau*)

TEE LT

&%

2016

Eﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁm £33
(RRRARBRE

(RREA EB{H‘T)

First Prize of Sci-Tech

Achievement

(Deep Sea Pipe for Natural Gas)

(The People’s Government of Guangdong
Province)

TR MARREEZERERAF
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

RIFEAE

2016

ERE WL R AIHEEE N
(RRE A& FA G REM)

Guangdong Postdoctoral

Innovation Practice Base*
(Department of Human Resources
and Social Security of Guangdong
Province*)

2018

= B i b 3

(ERERSHMIE - FERE B BOE - ERB
BBREREBER)

High Technology Enterprises*
(Department of Science and

Technology of Guangdong Province*,
Guangdong Province Department of
Finance*, Guangdong Provincial Taxation
Bureau of the State Administration of
Taxation)

Rl e BE L
W e | M

EREHT L

2021

BRABEFLXE
(BREHRELAHR)
Unicorn Seed Enterprise*
(Zhuhai Science and Technology
Innovation Bureau*)

e e e T R
WA EwEEGE
sERNpNEERL RS
ELCCCE BT
e e e

2016

DEBESPEEE 2

(o B B Y0 4% U 148 E B K66 68 ~ S P RLAE
fREEGE)

Saudi Arabia Excellent
Chinese Project Award*

(Chinese Embassy in Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia*, Saudi Arabia Chinese
Enterprises Association*)

2019

BXRAORGEREZRLE
(BRABEHER)

National Intellectual Property
Advantage Enterprise*
(National Intellectual Property
Bureau*)

2021

BRTFERAEEALE
2019-2020F £
CIHECEEAEEHS)

Provincial Contract-Abiding and

Credit-Worthy Enterprise
2019-2020*

(Jiangsu Enterprise Credit Management
Association*)

A EEHEE SRS
L "

2017

BEBTRBRMESR-—FR
(BEEDTARKA)

First Prize of Lianyungang
Science and Technology

Progress Award*
(The People’s Government of
Lianyungang)

nanied = Ao
g £ Lo F o

R

2019

EREABERTEHOXE
(BRABREMREHE)

Guangdong Province Intellectual
Property Demonstration

Enterprise*
(Guangdong Intellectual Property
Protection Association*)

2022
CEEFESHMLE

4
5 L B Lk

BB R PO
(RREABBENARLCEZEE  WMREAUK
B WREMSHER RMREEIBBER -
BHABRRDR)

Provincial Enterprise
Technology Centre*

(¢ Provinci ic and
Information Commission*, Guangdong
Provincial Department of Finance, Local
Taxation Bureau of Guangdong Province*,
Guangdong Branch of the General
Administration of Customs*)

RS

e —
R

T T P
e

HEBTRKANESEN
(FHEZETE  BEEETARRAN)
Lianyungang Science and
Technology Innovation
Outstanding Unit*

b i

yungang
of the Communist Party of China*, The
People’s Government of Lianyungang*)

(KRBT EEERERETFAE ARLE GRERARNHRERERETFRAE MERDIE))
Outstanding Enterprise of the Year in Jinwan District*

(Office of the Leading Group for the Work of Jinwan District, Zhuhai City (Zhuhai Economic
and Technological Development Zone Strong Quality District Work Leading Group Office)*)
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QUALITY CERTIFICATIONS

éiwtﬂﬂ_v_

FEENEERFRAES

UTEREERF
{3 Year & Certifications
1996 1SO9001
1996 API
1999 CE
2002 BV
1SO9001 1SO14001
2004 OHSAS18001
2006 DNV
2009 Shell
2011 CNAS
2011 ASME
2012 CMS
2014 TUV
2019 TOTAL
2022 Saudi Aramco

TECCFEERE

The Group has been awarded the following
international quality certifications:

3% # 88 Authority

HEMERFER Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

EB AMIHE American Petroleum Institute

HEE A A AL Lloyd’s Register of Shipping

E BN A4t Bureau Veritas

EBEMERFER Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

f Bl & = & H L China Quality Certification Centre

AN A4t Det Norske Veritas

I X% Shell Global Solutions

FEAKTEHRRAZES China National Accreditation Service for
Conformity Assessment

FE % Ti2EM & American Society of Mechanical Engineers

FR kAT 2188 ZRFE L China CMS (Issuing Authority)

MEELEEE TUV SUD China

EB A A FIEER TOTAL

DR 35 H A 5] Saudi Aramco

IR BRARMEZERERD A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFN WA

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group mainly (i) manufactures and sells longitudinal welded
steel pipes, as well as provides manufacturing service for
processing raw materials into steel pipes; and (ii) engages in
property development and investment.

Steel pipe business

Our welded steel pipe products can be broadly categorised into
LSAW steel pipes, SSAW steel pipes and ERW steel pipes. We are
the largest LSAW steel pipe manufacturer and exporter in the PRC,
and are capable of producing LSAW steel pipes that meet the
X100 standard. We are also accredited with 13 international quality
certifications such as Det Norske Veritas and American Petroleum
Institute. In addition, we are the first and the only PRC
manufacturer that has successfully produced and developed deep
sea welded pipes for use at 3,500m under water. Our products are
widely applicable to major oil and gas pipeline projects (both
onshore and offshore) and infrastructure projects domestically and
internationally.

Our Group is capable of manufacturing subsea pipes and drilling
platforms structure pipes for offshore projects and is being
classified as a member of the Offshore Engineering Equipment
Industry* (% TiRE HEELE %),

18 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

Order Status

In 2022, the Group received new orders of approximately 413,000
tonnes of welded steel pipes. The Group has received some
sizeable orders, such as orders from Bozhong 19-6 Condensate
Gas Field Phase | Development Project, Bohe-Maoming Oil Pipeline
Project, Nigeria Project and Uganda project. The Group delivered
approximately 314,000 tonnes of welded steel pipes during 2022.

LSAW Steel Pipes

The Group is one of the largest LSAW steel pipe manufacturers
and exporters in the PRC. Sales and manufacturing of LSAW steel
pipe was the largest source of revenue of the Group and
accounted for approximately 77.5% of our total steel pipe revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2022. For the year ended
31 December 2022, revenue from the sales and manufacturing
service of LSAW steel pipes amounted to approximately
RMB1,171.7 million and RMB231.1 million, respectively, which were
similar to that for the year ended 31 December 2021.

SSAW Steel Pipes

Our SSAW steel pipes are produced in our plant in Lianyungang
using the pre-welding and precision welding SSAW technique,
which is the most advanced technique among all SSAW
technologies. Revenue from the sales and manufacturing service of
SSAW steel pipes amounted to approximately RMB287.1 million and
RMB34.1 million respectively. The total revenue from SSAW steel
pipes accounted for approximately 17.8% of the total steel pipe
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 which were similar
to that for the year ended 31 December 2021.

TECCFEERE

T EAMR

RZTZZF  NEEBEENH ] EHREL H413,000
WEIR R - AEBEEER TAAAIE 3+ 19-6
BITRE—HMAEEE 3 — KB mREEEE -
BEMNGTEEEETEBESE - ASEER =
ZERF49314,00008 12 E -

HRERE
AEBERTEFANEZENEERERIEA®Z
— - HEIIEEHE REERT R AREZABAR
B BE_T__F+ A=t BLFEHAEEE
MEWANTTS% BE_T_—_F+_A=1t—HL
FE - BREIRENHEE RRERTERADBIDZA
E#1,171,700,0007T & A R #231,100,0007T - B =
TR H+ A=+t HLEEFEXREEE-

BHEEEE

BPIRET B RE £ E /R E R ATER IR
EIRE MRS - IR BT A B lEE T &
PEEERNTH - BHPRIIRERHE REERBE D A
13U A 49 A R#287,100,0007T & A R %34,100,000
T BIHEEEMNBIRAEEE S _ZF+=-/A=
+—HULEFEARERALN17.8% HEE-_T-_—F
+TZA=T—HLEFERIEE -

IR BRARMEZERERD A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

Property development

Apart from the steel pipe manufacturing business, the Group also
engaged in property development and investment. Following the
conversion of a land in Panyu, PRC in 2013, the Group grasped
the opportunity of asset appreciation to convert the land use right of
the Panyu production plant from industrial use to commercial use.
The property project in relation to Golden Dragon City Fortune
Plaza (£ EE¥%) (“GDC”), is a large scale integrated
commercial complex of offices, shops, apartments and villas. The
land area of the converted land accounted for approximately 25%
of the total land area of our factory in Panyu. The total permitted
construction area of the land (including underground construction
area) is approximately 550,000 m?.

Below is a summary information of GDC:

Address:  Golden Dragon City, Yayun Avenue,
Panyu District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong, PRC

Usage: Large scale integrated commercial

complex of offices, shops,
apartments and villas

Phase I: 135,000 m?
Phase II: 191,000 m?
Phase IlI: 224,000 m?

The total permitted construction
area (including underground
construction area)

The Group recorded most of the sales of the first phase of GDC in
2018. The Group recognised the sale of the second phase of GDC
in 2022. The third phase of GDC was sold to Guangzhou City
Panyu District Land Development Centre* (B & B & I3
L) in 2019.

The steel pipe business will remain as the Group’s core business.

20 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WA

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7 B B8
Revenue and gross profit KARER
Revenue of the Group mainly comprises (i) sales of steel pipe, and AEBRAFEBREOHMEHE » R(i)WEHE -

(ii) sales of property.

Our revenue increased from RMB1,813.4 million for the year ended EHABAREBEE T - —F+_A=1+—HIFEHA
31 December 2021 to approximately RMB2,362.0 million. Such R #1,813,400,0007T 3% N & £ A R #2,362,000,000
increase was mainly due to recognition of sales of the second T ZENEEHER T _FHREENE _HEE
phase of GDC in 2022. Steel pipes sales in 2022 was similar to e T _FHEHENRA_T - —FRBUEE -

that of 2021.

The following table sets forth the revenue and gross profit by TRHEHNARSAEREB DD WA RER
business segments for each of the periods indicated:

2022 2021
—E-_F —EF-—4F
RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
148 A 1A A
AR¥Fr B ARETFT B
Revenue WA
Steel pipes i = 1,810,097 76.6 1,802,568 99.4
Property development and L ER R
investment 551,918 23.4 10,802 0.6
2,362,015 100.0 1,813,370 100.0

T EEERE BIAmAAREEEREGRAT 21



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

a1 aA
EEENWED N
Steel pipes i
2022 2021
—s=-= —EZ—F
Revenue Revenue
WA WA
RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
1A A 1AM A
AR%For BAE AR For B2 H
Sales of steel pipes HEWE
LSAW steel pipes HEEEE 1,171,679 64.7 1,351,040 75.0
SSAW steel pipes ZHER RS 287,111 15.9 129,359 7.2
ERW steel pipes BEEE 4,983 0.3 — —
Subtotal R 1,463,773 80.9 1,480,399 82.2
Manufacturing services SRS
LSAW steel pipes BH#BIEE 231,123 12.8 158,640 8.8
SSAW steel pipes ZHEIR R E 34,088 1.9 90,617 5.0
Subtotal R 265,211 14.7 249,257 13.8
Others Eith 81,113 4.4 72,912 4.0
Grand total FEE 1,810,097 100.0 1,802,568 100.0
Steel pipes HE
2022 2021
—E-C T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFT
Sales HE 1,810,097 1,802,568
Cost of sales G4 Bk A (1,396,157) (1,608,617)
Gross profit EF 413,940 193,951
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

The revenue generated from the sales of steel pipes accounted for
approximately 80.9% of our total steel pipe revenue in 2022 as
compared with approximately 82.2% in 2021. Steel pipe
manufacturing services accounted for approximately 14.7% of our
total steel pipe revenue in 2022 as compared with approximately
13.8% in 2021. The revenue classified as “Others” mainly
represented the trading of steel plates, sales of steel fittings and
sales of scrap materials which accounted for approximately 4.4% of
our total steel pipe revenue in 2022 as compared with
approximately 4.0% in 2021.

Gross profit of steel pipe sales for 2022 was approximately
RMB413.9 million as compared with approximately RMB194.0
million in 2021, representing an increase of approximately 113.4%
or RMB220.0 million. Gross profit margin for 2022 was
approximately 22.9% which was higher than that of 10.8% in 2021.
The increase in gross profit was due to high freight charges and
appreciation of RMB against USD in relation to overseas sales in
2021 which led to drop in gross profit margin in 2021. Gross profit

margin returned to normal level this year.
Our domestic sales accounted for approximately 63.5% of our total
steel pipe revenue in 2022, as compared with approximately 53.0%

in 2021.

Sales by Geographical Areas — Steel Pipes

RITZZF  REHERENRALE RSB R E
K AB0.9% MR =T = —FRIH1E82.2% - R=T =
ZF  HERERBOEAEEEIHERA14.7% T
NZZT=—FA41E13.8% - DEAIHM | ZWAEE
EEEMR  HEMREHRHEEEROBA - QAR
EE T —FHMEWAL4A4% MR =—F 8|
#154.0% °

ZEZ_FHHEHEE EFNN A ARK413,900,000
LB T —F#H AR%194,000,0007T # 0 49
113.4% 3 A R #220,000,0007C » — T = —FHEFI=X
WR229% SR _E-—FMEFNE10.8% - EF1%
MIERZZEZ—FEIMIENREBRARBRET
AEESH T —FEMNETE  AFEENEEHZE
EEKFE

RIE-_—F AEEHBEAESHEGEAMERALY
63.5% ' MW —F = —F8]491553.0% °

BEUEBONEE — WE

2022 2021
=ZF== —T-—F
Revenue Revenue
'ON A
RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
1548 A AR A
AREFT BAE ARETT B
Overseas sales EINEE 660,683 36.5 848,065 47.0
Domestic sales NS 1,149,414 63.5 954,503 53.0
Total steel pipes and i E N B3 AR 5 42 5T
manufacturing services 1,810,097 100.0 1,802,568 100.0

TECCFEERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WD
Property development and investment MEFRBERE
2022 2021
—EF-_— —EF-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Revenue WA 551,918 10,802
Cost of sales SHEE P AR (495,235) (9,237)
Gross profit EF 56,683 1,565

Revenue under property development and investment mainly
comprises sales of property of GDC-Phase Il and rental income
from shops in Phase | of GDC. Revenue under property
development and investment was approximately RMB551.9 million
in 2022 as compared with approximately RMB10.8 million in 2021,
representing an increase of approximately 5,009.4% or RMB541.1
million. Increase in revenue was due to recognition of sales of
Phase Il in 2022. Most of the units under Phase | of GDC had
been sold in 2018 and 2019.

Cost of sales primarily represents the costs we incurred directly for
the Group’s property development activities. The principal
component of cost of sales is cost of properties sold, which
includes the direct costs of construction and the costs of obtaining
land use rights. Cost of sales was approximately RMB495.2 million
in 2022 as compared with approximately RMB9.2 million in 2021,
representing an increase of 5,261.4% or RMB486.0 million.
Increase in cost of sales was due to allocation of cost of Phase Il
of GDC.

Gross profit of property sales was approximately RMB56.7 million in
2022 as compared with approximately RMB1.6 million in 2021,
representing an increase of 3,521.9% or RMB55.1 million. Increase
in gross profit was due to increase in sales of Phase Il of GDC.

All revenue under property development and investment was
domestic in nature.

24 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

CHANGE IN FAIR VALUES OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The Group has adopted the accounting policy of measuring
investment properties by using fair values. Accordingly, gains or
losses arising from the changes in the fair values of investment
properties are reflected as profit or loss for 2022. The investment
properties as at 31 December 2022 were the shops of Phase | of
GDC. The Group has engaged RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent valuer, to value the investment properties as at
31 December 2022. According to the valuation report as at
31 December 2022 issued by RHL Appraisal Limited, the market
value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2022 was
RMB362 million. Loss in fair values of the investment properties in
2022 was approximately RMB8 million (2021: loss of RMB17
million).

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains in 2022 mainly represented bank interest
income and subsidy income from government. Other income and
gains decreased by approximately 84.9% or RMB1,342.0 million
from approximately RMB1,580.8 million in 2021 to approximately
RMB238.7 million in 2022. Decrease in other income and gains was
mainly due to net gain on resumption of land-use-rights from local
authority in 2021 pursuant to the land resumption agreement dated
15 September 2020, details of which were disclosed in the circular
of the Company dated 8 October 2020.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses slightly increased by
approximately 4.1% or RMB2.2 million from approximately RMB52.9
million in 2021 to approximately RMB55.1 million in 2022. There
was no material change in selling and distribution expenses.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 6.8% or
RMB17.8 million from approximately RMB263.6 million in 2021 to
approximately RMB245.8 million in 2022. The decrease in
administrative expenses was mainly due to disposal of land in
Lianyungang in 2021 that led to decrease in depreciation during the
year.

TECCFEERE

RENMELFERD

REBMORMNETHE  WATEAELEDE-R
bt BEMERATFTEEHEEZRE ERZTZZF
RE BB RZT_—F+-_A=1T—HHRENE
REEWEANEE AEECDZEB A ERMKF
TTEBERBRAR  ARZE_=_F+=-A=+—H
IR EMERITEE - RBOKFITHEBMBRARR
TR CHF+ AT —BHAENMHERS  REDE
RZEBEZZF+ZA=F+T—HHNTEAARK
362,000,000 - R=—ZE_—F  BEWENRFEE
BH A ARES000,000 (Z T =—F : BIEARKE
17,000,0007T) °

H b U A K W3

“ER - FNEMRARKEE BRRITHBMA KK
FEMBEIA - IR A RKREH T = —FHOARK
1,580,800,0007T * &l > 4784.9% = A £ #1,342,000,000
LEZT - —FH ARK238,700,0007T - EAUA K
YR ETERN — - —FREAPA-ZT_TFN
AthAmMtTmlEHERETE )%Hézfuﬁfmﬁﬁﬁ
ERELNFRLG  AAFEEEARABRA=TZ
THE+ANBRBKPHE -

HERDHAX

HE RO HFZH T - —F 4 ARK%52,900,0007T -
ML N4I4.1% 5 AR #2,200,00000  E T ==
# AR #55,100,0007T © $HE R D HFAS W MEXNEE) -

THEAR
THBRBE-T - —F % AR¥263,600,0007TH 24
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFN WA

FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs for 2022 was approximately RMB44.6 million as
compared with that of 2021 of approximately RMB144.3 million,
representing a decrease of RMB99.6 million or 69.1%. The effective
interest rate in 2022 was approximately 2.5% (2021: 8.0%).
Decrease in finance costs was due to decrease in average loan
balance and interest rate during the year.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses decreased by approximately 44.2% or RMB166.2
million from approximately RMB376.0 million in 2021 to
approximately RMB209.8 million in 2022. The decrease was mainly
due to loss on disposal of land in Lianyungang in 2021.

EXCHANGE GAIN/(LOSS), NET

The Group recorded exchange gain of approximately RMB16.4
million in 2022 as compared with exchange loss of approximately
RMB33.5 million in 2021. The exchange gain was mainly due to
appreciation of HKD against RMB.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

The Group recorded income tax credit of RMBO0.1 million in 2022
as compared with income tax expense of RMB371.6 million in
2021.

Income tax expense in 2021 was mainly because the Group sold
the land in Panyu in 2021 and there was tax provision on the gain
on resumption of land use right.

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the reasons discussed above, the Group recorded a
profit of approximately RMB163.0 million in 2022 (2021: loss of
RMB94.4 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWED

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The following table sets out certain information regarding the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2022:

RBESRUKER
TREVNEBAEREE ST —EFER-_FE-_—_F+=
A=+—HULEFENGEBRESRERNETER

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-ZA=+-HLFE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR FT
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating ETEEME (TR R REFH
activities 154,068 (904,628)
Net cash flows from investing activities REFHMEBHEEREFHE 38,169 2,561,963
Net cash flows used in financing activities BMEEDMARESREFE (149,102) (1,709,156)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash RekBSEEWEM ORD)FE
equivalents 43,135 (51,821)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

The Group’s net cash outflows from operating activities of
approximately RMB904.6 million in 2021 changed to net cash
inflows of approximately RMB154.1 million in 2022. The change of
net cash flows from operating activities were primarily due to the
combined effect of (i) profit before tax; (ii) increase in completed
properties held for sale, and other payables and accruals; and (iii)
decrease in properties under development, inventories, trade and
bills receivables, prepayments, other receivables and other assets,
pledged and restricted bank balances, trade and bills payables, and
contract liabilities.

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

The Group’s net cash flows from investing activities decreased from
approximately RMB2,562.0 million in 2021
RMB38.2 million in 2022. The decrease in net cash flows were

to approximately

mainly due to net receipt of compensation for land resumption of
land of Panyu in 2021.
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NET CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The Group’s net cash flows used in financing activities decreased
from approximately RMB1,709.2 million in 2021 to approximately
RMB149.1 million in 2022. The decrease was mainly resulted from
the combined effect of (i) the issue of new bonds and the
borrowing of new interest-bearing loans and other borrowings of
approximately RMB529.6 million and (ii) decrease in an amount due
to a director, the repayment of bank loans, other borrowings, and
principal portion of payment of lease and payment of interest of
approximately RMB678.7 million.

EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and most of its operating
transactions are settled in Renminbi except for export sales and
overseas borrowings which are mostly denominated in US dollar
and HK dollar. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi. Although the Group may be exposed to
foreign currency exchange risks, the Board does not expect that
future currency fluctuations would materially impact the Group’s
operations. The Group did not adopt formal hedging policies nor
instruments of foreign currency for managing the exchange risk
exposure during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group invested
approximately RMB14.6 million for the upgrading of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets. These capital expenditures
were fully financed by internal resources.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
As at 31 December 2022, the Group guaranteed RMB36.9 million
(2021: RMB73.7 million) to certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties for mortgage facilities.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged the following assets with an aggregate net book
value to secure bank loans granted to the Group as at
31 December 2022:

(i) certain property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB598.1 million (2021: RMB567.9 million);

(i)  certain leasehold land of approximately RMB489.4 million
(2021: RMB501.9 million);

(iii)  certain properties under development of approximately RMBnil
million (2021: RMB1,086.1 million); and

(iv) completed properties held for sale of approximately RMB913.7
million (2021: RMB93.8 million).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group’s gearing ratio is calculated based on the sum of bank
loans, other borrowings and fixed rate bonds and notes divided by
total assets. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 were approximately 27.1% and 22.9%, respectively.
There was no major change in gearing ratio in 2022 as compared
with that of 2021.

On 27 April 2020, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with an investment fund, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to issue, and the investment fund agreed to
subscribe for HK$140,000,000 12% bonds due in April 2022 (the
“Bonds”). Mr. Chen Chang, an executive director and the controlling
shareholder of the Company, undertakes and covenants that for so
long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, he shall remain as (i)
the single largest direct or indirect shareholder of the Company;
and (ii) the chairman of the Board and executive Director (the
“Specific Performance Obligations”). Any breach of the Specific
Performance Obligations may constitute an event of default under
the Bonds, pursuant to which the bondholder is entitled to redeem
the Bonds immediately upon the occurrence of the breach in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bonds.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total borrowings amounted to
approximately RMB1,776.0 million, of which approximately 46%
(2021: 46%) were long term borrowings and approximately 54%
(2021: 54%) were short term borrowings. The total borrowings
included, (i) a loan of RMB818 million in relation to the Group’s
property development business; and (ii) net borrowings under steel
pipe business of around RMB958.0 million. The Group had to
finance its working capital of steel pipe business by short term
borrowings as around 90% of the cost of sales was incurred on the
procurement of steel plates and steel coils. Once the Group
received sales proceeds from its customers, it would then repay the
short term borrowings. Taking into account the Group’s cash in
hand, the Group has sufficient liquidity and is in a strong financial
position to repay its short term borrowings.

As at 31 December 2022, (i) approximately 80% (2021: 80%) of the
total borrowings were denominated in Renminbi which carried
interest rates linked to the benchmark lending rate published by the
People’s Bank of China; (ii) approximately 15% (2021: 15%) of the
total borrowings were denominated in Renminbi which carried fixed
interest rate; and (iii) approximately 5% (2021: 5%) of the total
borrowings were denominated in US dollar and HK dollar which
carried fixed interest rate.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

On 26 April 2022, Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co. Ltd (the
“PCKSP”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the disposal agreement with the joint venture partner,
Abdel Hadi Abdullah Al Qahtani & Sons, Co. (the “AHQ”), pursuant
to which AHQ has conditionally agreed to purchase, and PCKSP
has conditionally agreed to sell, the 50% equity interest in
Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company (the “JV Company”). The
consideration payable by AHQ is SR41.5 million (or equivalent to
approximately RMB70.55 million). Upon Completion, the Group will
cease to hold any interests in the JV Company. As at the date of
this report, the disposal of the JV Company has not been
completed.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements and
circular dated 26 April 2022 and 27 June 2022 respectively.
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Except for the above, the Group had no other significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year.

LITIGATION

The Group has certain lawsuits that brought by third parties
alleging that the Group breached and repudiated certain purchase
and construction contracts. The claims are subject to the legal
arbitration and are expected to be finalized in 2023. As at 31
December 2022, a provision of approximately RMB49.3 million has
been provided.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date of this report, there is no significant event
subsequent to 31 December 2022 which would materially affect the
Group’s operating and financing performance.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

For the year ended 31 December 2022, staff costs (including
Directors’ remuneration in the form of salaries) were approximately
RMB123.7 million (2021: RMB140.8 million).

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. The emoluments of the
Directors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
are decided by the Board, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
Competitive remuneration package is offered to retain elite
employees. Our package includes salaries, medical insurance,
discretionary bonuses, on-job training, other benefits as well as
mandatory provident funds schemes for employees in Hong Kong
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes for employees in the
PRC. Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme, options to
subscribe respectively for shares in the Company may be granted
to eligible employees. No share option was granted under the
share option scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 824 full time
employees (2021: 862 employees). The following sets forth the total
number of our staff by functions:

RN_ZE-—F+-_A=+—H KEEHKE824H 2
BE(ZZT——% :862%EE) - TXHIIRBAEE D

2022 2021

—E=-= —EZ—F

Management (=L 55 59
Production and logistics EE R 327 347
Sales and marketing HE R miskE 61 66
Finance B 15 45 45
Quality control E 2l 79 83
R&D itk 101 94
Procurement g 17 19
General administration and others —ARITIER S E At 139 149
Total st 824 862

PROSPECT

Faced with the energy crisis resulting from inflation, monetary
deflation and the Russia-Ukraine war, it is expected that the global
economy will fall into recession in 2023. The prices of oil and
natural gas will retrench from the high level in 2022 as worldwide
demand for oil and natural gas may decrease. The Group expects
that the year 2023 will remain a challenging year for the oil and
natural gas industry. In the long term, it is expected that the oil and
natural gas industry will continue to develop due to the combined
effects of the insufficient oil and natural gas pipeline facilities, and
China’s emphasis on energy security and energy transition.
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According to the Medium and Long-Term Oil and Gas Pipeline
Network Plan ({/f &HIB A E 44 E])) formulated by the National
Development and Reform Commission, the scale of domestic oil
and gas pipeline network is expected to increase to 240,000
kilometers by 2025, of which the mileages of natural gas, crude oil
and refined oil pipelines are expected to reach 163,000 kilometers,
37,000 kilometers and 40,000 kilometers, respectively. According to
the National Energy Administration, the scale of the domestic oil
and gas pipeline network will reach approximately 210,000
kilometers by 2025. It is expected that investment in key areas of
energy will increase by more than 20% during the “14th Five-Year
Plan” period compared with that during the “13th Five-Year Plan”
period, enhance the supply capacity of oil and gas, improve the
long-distance pipeline system of crude oil and refined oil, accelerate
the construction and interconnection of the natural gas pipeline
network, and expand trunk channels, such as the west-east gas
transmission and Sichuan-east gas transmission as well as
north-south connecting lines, and the scale of the national oil and
gas pipeline network will reach approximately 210,000 kilometers
by 2025. According to the China Natural Gas Development Report
(2022), the mileage of long-distance oil and gas pipelines in China
reached 150,000 kilometers in 2021, of which the total mileage of
trunk natural gas pipelines reached 116,000 kilometers. The
Resolution on the 14th Five-Year Plan and the 2035 Vision Outline
((FTHEERFHRENM-_ZE=RAF RS HENMERRZE)) proposes to
improve the construction of crude oil and refined oil pipeline
networks and accelerate the construction of natural gas pipeline
networks. In order to keep up with the progress of the “14th
Five-Year Plan” and achieve its goals, the Group will be benefit
from the construction of oil and natural gas pipelines.

TECCFEERE

REBERENZHEN(PRPMREBRE)
—hF RHERHRESREREFE2482
FRAR - R - ol EERREBHN BIES16.3
RE 3TEBRERAERE - REERERBHEE
E-E_RF2EMRERRBRKEINERELR
A TR RE | PEERERESIRER =0
2| BB R20% A £ - E5Rm R LA ) - e = IRUA
M mmRHERRR  MRAXAREBERMEBE
BMRARRE JIRRESBRBE R E
B —CE_HFERAMRERREEINNNEREL
A REB(hBERARERRE(2022)  —T-—%F
PEMRERAEERRECEIMGELAR  EhEHX
RAREBRERZEIMEEBRE (THERFREM
“E-RFESERRENRB)TREBTERME
R EBRRARMRRAREM@ER - RRE(+
MRS MERYEREBR  ARERIENGH
RRXAREEBOER -

==
8

Bt Ot A

BIAmAAREEERERAT 33



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFN WA

China Oil & Gas Pipeline Network Corporation (“Pipe China”), which
was established in late 2019, has also given to the full play of the
“national network” by vigorously accelerating the construction of
pipeline networks in recent years, achieved interconnection and
interoperability of pipeline networks, and constructed an oil and gas
pipeline network covering the west-east gas transmission,
north-south gas transmission, coastal delivery to inland, east-west
synergy, north-south interoperability in accordance with the national
plan, so as to enhance oil and gas transportation capacity and
ensure a safe and stable supply of oil and gas energy. Pipe China
plans to build a natural gas pipeline network of “5 verticals, 5
horizontals” in the next five years. By 2025, the natural gas pipeline
network of Pipe China will form a trunk pipe network pattern of
“four major (inlet) channels” and “5 verticals, 5 horizontals”. Pipe
China forecasts that the growth of the natural gas market will focus
on the eastern region, including the Bohai Rim, Southeast region,
South Central region and Yangtze River Delta, which will be
immensely beneficial to the Group’s production base in Zhuhai. With
the establishment of Pipe China, the construction of the oil and gas
pipeline network in China will be significantly accelerated, which will
facilitate the operational development of the Group.

In order to achieve the “dual carbon” strategic goal of “achieving
peak carbon dioxide emission before 2030 and carbon neutrality
before 2060”, China indicates that ecology-focused green and
low-carbon development will become the leading strategy in the
future. This indicates that China will pay more attention to natural
gas, wind power and hydro-power and other clean energies. The
construction of a series of natural gas pipeline and storage
facilities, smart grid, wind power and offshore wind power will be
accelerated and will drive the demand for our products in the
future.
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The Group believes that the above policies will create business
opportunities for the steel pipe manufacturing industry and the
Group will firmly seize the opportunities to boost its sales. In view
of our long-term strategic goal to become a leading global steel
pipe manufacturer, the Group will grasp the opportunities of
potential oil and natural gas development projects, expand our
customer bases and market share by participating in more global oil
and gas and engineering projects, diversify the use of steel pipes
so as to offer steel pipes for projects in infrastructure and high-end
construction fields, such as bridges, wind power generation,
offshore platforms and water pipes, and continue to leverage the
Group’s strengths in the steel pipe industry to secure project
orders.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Chang (FR &)

Mr CHEN Chang (/% &), aged 77, is the chief executive officer and
the chairman of the Board and also a member of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Chen
is the father of Mr Chen Guo Xiong, and Ms Chen Zhao Nian (both
being executive Directors). Being the founder of the Group, Mr
Chen is primarily responsible for the overall management, strategic
planning and business development of the Group. Mr Chen has
over 53 years of experience in areas related to woodwork, machine
tool equipment and lift/escalator equipment and has accumulated
abundant experience and knowledge in the mechanical and
electrical industry. Mr Chen graduated from the graduate school of
Sun Yat-Sen University* (11U AX£) in Guangdong Province in
October 1995 majoring in decision management.

Mr Chen has been appointed by several steel pipe related
associations and organisations for various positions, including:

. Member of the Fourth Session of Welded Steel Pipe Academic
Committee of the Steel Rolling Branch Association of the
Chinese Society for Metals* (P& B2 285D @ E M0 E /IR
EMERMEEE®E) (2001)

. Vice president of the China Township Enterprises Association*
(FEIE L X & EI S &) (2004, 2008)

. Vice chairman of the 4th and 5th sessions of the board of
directors of the China Steel Construction Society and the
Steel Pipe Branch Association* (BB HeMEH S E M
EREekFAEEEFZRIEER) (2004, 2008)

. Vice chairman of the 4th, 5th and 6th consecutive council of
the Cold-formed Steel Sub-committee of the China Steel
Structure Association* (FEi&EHELERMO > SFEN -
o ANEEEEEIEEER) (2004, 2005 and 2010)

. Vice president of the Metallurgical Chamber of Commerce of

the All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce* (4 # % E
ITEEBREtEgAEEERERK) (2006)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Mr Chen has received various awards, honours qualifications, fRICEEEZ ARIBREEBER  BiF

including:

. Honoured by the Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Energy . BRESREABEMLCELRMEER - #EX
of the Republic of Korea for his contributions to Korean BREETIHEERBERE (ZZZMWMEF)

economic development through trade revitalisation (2004)

. Excellent Entrepreneur in Chinese Private Technology . FEXETHERSSTATEESEERED
Enterprises awarded by the All-China Federation of Industry & ¥R (ZZEZTWHF)

Commerce* (FEXBETEHEBEETATPRHEFRERZE
#%) (2004)

. Awarded the First Prize of Science and Technology Awards . BINTTARBRNIRBERME-—F8EE (=
by the Guangzhou Municipality People’s Government* (&) TT+F)
ABRBUR T AR 2R — %815 F) (2007)

. Awarded as authority expert of welded pipe industry by the . PREBERERERBETREETERBRER (=
Chinese International Authority Expert's Association* (9 & El TTF)

REBEZHETREBETEERER) (2007)

. The invention of “three-roller forming technology and . ?"Eﬂzﬁﬁ)ﬂ?’*ulgﬁ?&ﬁiﬁfﬁﬁ B B 2 R
equipment” was awarded the gold prize in the Sixth Session e LRECRREEREAFTERERSE J#H
of International Exhibition of Inventions and outstanding award EERTAEFE(ZTZENF)

by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Personnel and the
Guangdong Province Intellectual Property Department* (Z%R3
CENAETIERREBIEENERFEARES FRESRR
EEREANFRRERE MAERRT RHESE) (2008)

. Outstanding Individual in Earthquake Relief in Guangzhou* (/& . BMHMER S AEBA(ZZZENF)
M T B R S E A ) (2008)

. The Fourth Invention and Entrepreneur Award by the China . FEMEBEEOEEREIER] (ZETNF)
Steel Association* (H B i i 17 & 55 70 = “ 5 BR £ £ 42”) (2009)

. Guangzhou Model Labour* (EM 14 Eh1E &) (2009) . BMMEBES(ZETNF)
. First Prize of Science and Technology Award in Guangdong . E@éiiﬁm%i’%:lg&ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ‘lé%ﬁﬂ%F'fﬁ?é‘?%?%
Province (BRERIZ2RME—%4E) for the research and ERABEBREMBE-—FR(ZZT—FF)

development of LSAW manufacturing process and technology
and its series of products (2010)

. Guangzhou Outstanding Entrepreneur* (EMTEFLER) . BMNHESEER(ZT——F)
(2011)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Nationwide Outstanding Entrepreneur* (2B EF P ER)
(2012)

Guangzhou Outstanding Contribution Award for Science and
Technology* (/& /N &2 £l 28 5 5 51 52) (2012)

Outstanding Industrial Province of Science and Technology in
the PRC’s iron and steel industry* (FFEIE T2 EFRIET
¥3%) (2012)

Guangzhou Figure of Focus* (ZE¥YEH A¥) (2012)

The Outstanding Entrepreneur for the Competition of the Top
10 Guangzhou Construction Project in 2012* (20124F E E &R
BTHEIRESHHREEHRBPER) (2013)

Outstanding Contribution Award for Innovation in Guangzhou*

(MRt B Bl B B2 28 tH B BAHE) (2013)

Top 10 Guangdong Economic Influential Individuals in 2013*
(2013F BR + R HEREAY) (2013)

Nationwide “May 1st’ Labour Award* (Z2E A — 48 1HEE)
(2014)

s

Gold Prize of the 8th International Invention Exhibition* (2 /\
[EEI R E S 48) (2014)

5th China Overseas Chinese Community (Innovative
Achievement) Contribution Award* (% F/g % B &7 (A1 #K
R)EEE) (2014)

14th World Outstanding Chinese Award* (551 VU fE t 54 2
A BE) (2015)

National Model Worker* (% B4 &)1E &) (2015)

Guangzhou Entrepreneurial Entrepreneur for 30 years* (/& /!
BIZ30F BB EK) (2016)

et

Gold Prize of the 19th International Invention Exhibition* (22
T E BB B8R < £2) (2016)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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. Yu Shan Outstanding Contribution Award* (& Ll £ i & 5l %)
(2016)

. 2016 Guangzhou Industry Leader* (2016 EEMTEXEE
AZ) (2017)

. The Most Socially Responsible Entrepreneur in Guangzhou*
(ENMERAEMGEEREER) (2017)

. Top Ten Economic Persons in Guangzhou* (/&M 1 A 487 &
= A¥)) (2018)

. The Central Committee of the Communist Party of China, the
State Council and the Central Military Commission jointly
issued a commemorative medal to celebrate the 70th
anniversary of the founding of the People’s Republic of
China* (PR - BFHk - PREZHFRBEBENPE AR
MEIRKSZ 70 F 422 E) (2019)

As at the date of this annual report, Mr Chen is the sole director
and sole shareholder of Bournam Profits Limited, which is
interested in 701,911,000 shares of the Company. Together with Mr
Chen’s personal interest of 4,350,000 shares of the Company, Mr
Chen has a total interest of 706,261,000 shares of the Company.

Mr Chen Guo Xiong (B El %)

Mr CHEN Guo Xiong (FRES%), aged 49, is an executive Director
and vice chairman of the Board. He is the son of Mr Chen Chang
(being chairman of the Board and an executive Director) and also
the brother of Ms Chen Zhao Nian (being executive Director). Mr
Chen is responsible for overseeing overall business development
plan and strategic management of the Group. Mr. Chen joined the
Group as deputy general manager in February 2019. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chen had extensive experience in the

manufacturing industry including management and administration.

*

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Ms Chen Zhao Nian (BRJk )

Ms CHEN Zhao Nian (FJK4F), aged 46, is an executive Director.
She is the daughter of Mr Chen Chang (being chairman of the
Board and an executive Director) and also the sister of Mr Chen
Guo Xiong (being vice chairman of the Board and executive
Director). Ms Chen is primarily responsible for the daily
management and operations of the Group. Ms Chen joined the
Group in October 2002 as vice general manager after her
graduation. Ms Chen obtained her PhD in Economics from the
Jinan University in 2021, her bachelor's degree in arts from the
University of Central Lancashire in the United Kingdom in June
2000 and her master’'s degree in accounting from Leeds
Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom in October 2002.
Ms. Chen has taken up the following public duties and has
received the following awards:

Public duties:

. Member of the Standing Committee of 16th Session of NPC
in Panyu, Guangzhou* (B/NM&HEFBEE T+ NEAKXEE)
(2011)

. Executive member of the Guangzhou Glory Society* (/& /N
R EEREGILE) (2012)

. Vice chairwoman of the Federation of Industry & Commerce
in Panyu District of Guangzhou* (EMMHBE I EHEHLE S
glEF) (2012)

. President of the Youth Association of Panyu Merchants and
Entrepreneurs in Panyu District* (EEESMAIXSTFHE S
) (2012)

. Member of the 12th Executive Committee for Guangzhou

Women* (BMMEZE T+ _EHRITEZEEZEH) (2012)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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*

Chairlady of the Guangzhou Association of Women
Entrepreneurs* (EM M ZEERIBEEK) (2013)

Representative of Guangzhou in the 11th All-China Women
Federation Conference* (P2 Bz X e 2F T —EE#E

MLER) (2013)

Committee member of the Guangzhou Committee of the 12th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference* (B AR
PoaEgRE T _EENTEZERZE) (2014)

Guangzhou Deputy Director of the Federation of Young
Entrepreneurs Committee* (BEMM LEBSFLEREZEFH
gl E ) (2014)

Committee member of the 12th Guangdong Provincial
Women’s Federation, the Executive Committee* (/& R & i@
ET_EREEEBZELE) (2014)

Vice President of Guangdong Province Private Enterprises
Investment Development Association* (ER & R& D ERE
REiREEEIER) (2015)

Vice President of Guangdong Province Association of Women
Entrepreneurs* (ERE X b ERIHEEIE &) (2015)

Executive Vice President of Guangdong Province Association
of Public Affairs* (EREBREARRESEHEEGR) (2015)

Vice President of Guangzhou Taxpayers Association* (E/M T
M A EElEK) (2015)

Representative of the 15th People’s Congress of Guangzhou

City* (EMNMET+REEARKERAREREK) (2016)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only

TECCFEERE

BEMNTREERRHEER(ZFT—=F)

FEX2ERLBHAEET " REEEENRER(Z
T—=%)

FREARBAHECEE T _EENTRESE
B(ZE—M4F)

EMNTIEBREFCERZERHAETE(=F
— )

EREGHE T _EHAZEFHERE (TN
F)

EREAREMERERRRECRER (2T —
HE)

e
il
i
2
Hal
S
Bl
=i
2
il
B3
S
il
i3
X
[
A
\
=
uJ

ENTABABREE R (R —HF)

EMNmHETAEBARRERAGRAR (ZT—XRF)

WIAHRRRMEZRERAT 41



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEREERBEE

*

President of Guangdong Women and Children’s Fund* (&%
HERREESEEER) (2017)

Member of the 12th Executive Committee for National
Women’s Federation* (2 EFEHE T —ERNTEESEE)
(2018)

Member of the 13th Executive Committee for Guangzhou
Women’s Federation* (EMNTERHE+T=ZERTEZESZELE)
(2019)

Honorary President of the Youth Association of Panyu
Merchants and Entrepreneurs in Panyu District* (/& 7 % &
REFAXSFHeLEEFR) (2019)

Committee member of the 13th Guangdong Provincial
Women’s Federation, the Executive Committee* (/& R & i@
ET=ZERNEZSEHESE) (2019)

Vice President and member of the 14th Executive Committee
for Guangzhou Women'’s Federation* (&M & B R FHE +
[E#1TE B &3 EBIE/E) (2020)

Instructor of Women'’s Innovation and Entrepreneurship Mentor
Group in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area
(BBRANE R 15 285 8] 5 56 E EAM) (2020)

Member of the Standing Committee of the 14th Guangzhou
Municipal Committee of Zhi Gong Party* (Bl E EMTHE Y
EZE8e@¥BEESEE) (2021)

Entrepreneurial mentor of the Yunfan Project of the Guangzhou
European and American Alumni Association* (&M EER £

ENFERIZEERD) (2021)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Awards:

*

The 8th Civilised Family with Five Distinctive Merits by the
All-China Women’s Federation* (FZE2 iz 26 gE \[ER
X EREE) (2012)

Female Pace Setter with Great Contribution (National Level)*

(ZEIMEEINEK) (2013)

Most Charismatic Woman in 60 years of Guangzhou Loving
Hearts* (2% &) E M 604 & A ik 1 1) (2013)

Guangzhou Outstanding Entrepreneur Honors* (& /N {EH
%#7%R) (2013)

Guangdong Outstanding Women Entrepreneur Honours* (£

EBFLLEK”) (2013)

“March 8th Flag Bearer’ of Guangzhou* (E/Nm“=\4LFEF")
(2010-2013)

Outstanding Women Entrepreneur® (£t Al % 2 1£) (2014)

Guangdong Province Top Ten Outstanding Scholarly Home*

(BRETREFEZELZXK") (2014)

Ten Outstanding Young Entrepreneur* (+EEF S EMLER)
(2015)

Guangdong Top Ten “Charity Contribution Award”™* (&3 +1F
“FEEFREE) (2015)

Top 10 Guangdong Business New Individuals in 2015* (2015
BERE R+ RFHAY) (2016)

Diamond Award of Charity Figures* (2016 E &= AYER
%) (2016)

Guangzhou New Generation Outstanding Entrepreneur* (& /M
MAERBFEER) (2016)

Outstanding CEO (20164 £ 4 ! CEO) (2016)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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The 1st National Civilized Family* (5 — /@2 XPAKRE)
(2016)

Award of 2nd Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur® (5 — & £ &
P ERFK ) (2017)

2017 District “Industry Talent Urgently Needed Shortage™
0I7TEERIEXZFTEMRALIEIR) (2017)

Panyu District Integrity Family Award* (% &2 B2 %K fE 1%)
(2018)

Top 10 Guangzhou Most Beautiful Philanthropist Families*
(2018F EREMT T REERZKE) (2018)

Charity Love Award by Guangdong Province Association of
Women Entrepreneurs* (ERE X P ERIHE — HRZE 0 H)

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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017 REIEXSFERAT IBR(ZFT—t
F)

ERRREARER(ZT—N\F)

2018 FEEMT T AREEAERE (ZF—/\F)

ERELGERHE — BEELE(ZF A
F)

(2019)

. Charity Award by Guangdong Province Association of Women . BERELZPERNE BEREGBLTEESE —
BEAL (2T NF)

Entrepreneurs, Guangdong Province Women and Children’s

Fund* (EREXEERNE EREFLREESS — &F

A+) (2019)

. Advanced Individuals in Social Service Work by Zhi Gong Party . ﬁl“ EREHRELZET — BAEHERBIEL
Guangdong Provincial Committee (X AEERELZES — EEA(ZZZEF)
ANEH GRS TIESLERA) (2020)

. The 8th Guangzhou Moral Model* (55 /)\JEE /M iEEEE) . FNEEMNMEEES (T =—%F)
(2021)

. “Guangdong Good People” in the first quarter of 2021* (2021 . I FEFFEIBRFAIZE=Z—F)
FE-FEIERIFA) (2021)

. Guangdong Province Typical Cases of Integrity Business* . ERAHEHEHERANEL (T ZF)

(BRA B EZEEAA L) (2022)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Ping (B F)

Mr CHEN Ping (f%F), aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 January 2010. Mr Chen is also the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Chen
graduated from the Jinan University, the PRC in 1984 majoring in
finance and later obtained a doctoral degree in finance in Nankai
University, the PRC in December 1990. Mr Chen has lectured at
the Lingnan College, Sun Yat-Sen University for more than 29
years in Guangdong Province, the PRC, teaching international
finance. He is currently the head of Marine Economic Research
Centre of Sun Yat-Sen University (&/F4C5E/ZE#02). Mr Chen also
assumed various posts in societies and clubs concerning economics
and finance, such as a council member at International Finance
Society of China* (T EIEIR & 512 ®), International Finance Society*
(B4 @ Z2) and China Society of World Economics* (A B it 5%
& Ee). Mr Chen is also engaged in academic researches with
focuses on finance theories and policies, global economics and so
forth, and has published a number of essays and publications. As
an experienced professor, Mr Chen has won various awards for the
lecture materials used and also for the essays published. In 1997,
Mr Chen’s teaching materials entitled International finance* (B[R
% ®b)) was awarded National Educational Achievement Award —
Second Class* (EIX#EMKE —%548) by the Committee of
Education of the PRC. In May 2002, Mr Chen’s paper entitled
Study on the effect of merger and acquisition of listed companies
on wealth* ({_ETIARRATEUIENE = M ETFE)) was selected for
the Best Paper Award of the 9th Global Finance Association Annual
Conference by the 9th GFA Annual Conference Program
Committee. In 2005, Mr Chen’s teaching and research
achievements entitled Exploration and practice of educational

internationalisation* (M Z2ERLAHRRMEEIE)) was awarded
Guangdong Province Educational Achievement Award — First

Class* (EREHEKE—215). In 2006, Mr Chen was selected as
talented person for Ministry of Education New Century Outstanding
Person Support Scheme* (¥ A& St 428 H A4 Z#551E]). In 2007,
Mr Chen received Bao Steel Outstanding Teacher Award* (2 ifi
EHEE S AN ZE). Mr Chen was an independent director of
Guangzhou Zhujiang Brewery Group Co., Ltd.* (&M Bk 8 K (5
BBR/AT]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, with
effect from 10 October 2016. Mr Chen was also an independent
director of Shenzhen Universe (Group) Co. Ltd (FIIITH Kith (52E)
f&{nEBRAE]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 000023), with effect from 15 July 2019.

*
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Mr Tian Xiao Ren (FHE:#])

Mr TIAN Xiao Ren (HMEE#]), aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 August 2014. Mr Tian is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr Tian graduated from Zhejiang Radio and Television
University in the PRC in 1985 and studied the Master of Business
Administration Degree at Hangzhou University in the PRC from
1995 to 1998. He was appointed as vice chairman of Bank of
China Group Investment Company Limited from 2006 to 2013. Prior
to 2006, Mr Tian was the president of Bank of China of
Guangdong Province and Jiangxi Province, the PRC and the
vice-president of Bank of China of Zhejiang Province, the PRC for
26 years. He has over 32 years of experience in the banking and
financial field. Mr Tian is now a senior economist in the PRC and is
entitled to the special subsidy awarded by the state council of the
People’s Republic of China in recognition of his contribution to the
economy of China.

Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah (BXF5 & )

Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah (EifZEZE), aged 58, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 1 October 2019. Mr Au
Yeung is also the chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr Au Yeung obtained a bachelor's degree in commerce
from the Bond University in Australia in September 1996, a
master's degree in accountancy from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in December 2000, a postgraduate diploma in corporate
administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
December 2005 and an EMBA degree from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in December 2008. Mr Au Yeung is a member of
CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 26 years of experience in auditing and
financial control through his prior employments with accounting
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong.

46 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Liu Yonghe (2I3k i)

Ms LIU Yonghe (2I3kf), aged 54, joined PCKSP in June 1994
and had worked as accounting staff and financial manager. Ms Liu
has acquired profound experience in financial management,
accounting and auditing during her employment with the Group for
over 27 years. Ms Liu is now responsible for cash flow and
working capital control of the Group. She completed her
professional accounting education at Lanzhou University of Finance
and Economics, the PRC in 1990 with a bachelor's degree in
economics and obtained professional qualification as assistant
accountant in 1991. Ms Liu has over 30 years of experience in the
accounting and finance industry. She was awarded the “March 8th
Flag Bearer” in 1999 and 2002, and the post she held was
awarded as the Women’'s Exemplary Post by the Guangzhou
Women’s Union in March 2005. In October 2009, Ms Liu obtained
a master’'s degree in the Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) programme at the Asia International Open

University (Macau).

Ms Wong Pui Shan (E3.Ht)

Ms WONG Pui Shan (L), aged 46, joined the Group in April
2011 as the chief financial officer and company secretary of the
Company. She is responsible for corporate finance management
and company secretarial work of the Group. Ms Wong received her
Master of Science in Finance from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and Bachelor of Arts Degree (Hons) in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute and the Chartered Governance
Institute. Prior to joining the Company, she had served international
audit firms for four years and listed companies as financial
controller and company secretary for more than 20 years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms Wong Pui Shan (E%.H)

Ms WONG is the company secretary of the Company. Ms Wong is
working for the Company on a full time basis. Details of her
biography are set out above in this section.

Ms Wong has complied with the relevant professional training

requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHREE

The Directors hereby present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company include
manufacture and sales of welded steel pipes. The Group is also
engaged in property development and investment.

Details of the company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2022 are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 106 to 266.

The Directors did not recommend payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as discussion
and analysis of the Group’ s performance during the year under
review can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 7 to 11
and pages 18 to 35 respectively.

The Group will continue to focus on its steel pipe business by
diversifying its product usage and market segment. For property
development, the Group will continue to sell units of Phase Il GDC
and receive rental income from shops of Phase | GDC.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group is highly aware of the importance of environment
protection and has not noted any material non-compliance with all
relevant laws and regulations in relation to its business including
health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and the
environment. The Group has implemented environmental protection
measures to reduce energy consumption, treat sewage before
recycling and discharge, and sell wasted steel products to recycling
companies. Further details of the Group’s environmental policies
and performance can be found in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” set out on pages 86 to 105.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group was not
aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that might have a significant impact on the businesses
of the Group.

RELATIONS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Employees: The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing industry practice. Our
package includes salaries, medical insurance, discretionary
bonuses, on-job training, other benefits as well as mandatory
provident funds schemes for employees in Hong Kong and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes for employees in the PRC.
Our current relationship with our employees and the labour unions
are good and are based on mutual support and respect.

Customers: We have built strong, long-standing relationships with
our major customers, and established a strong customer base. We
have obtained numerous patents, awards and recognitions,
international certificates and long standing international and
nationwide track record to establish our stable customer base. We
are an industry pioneer and are the first and only steel pipe
manufacturer in the PRC to manufacture and successfully develop
deep sea welded steel pipes for the use at a water depth of
3,500m and a qualified supplier of Petrobras and Petronas. We
believe that this can enable us to establish and maintain market
leadership in the steel pipe industry.

Suppliers: We choose our suppliers of raw materials mainly based
on the prices and quality of raw materials offered by different
suppliers. We issue purchase orders to our suppliers that set out
the quantities, prices and specifications of the products to be
purchased, delivery arrangement, and credit terms at arms’ length
negotiations between the parties based on normal commercial
terms. We believe the relationship between us and our major
suppliers is good and stable. Most of our procurements were paid
in RMB.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on pages 267 to 268. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

TECCFEERE

EERFNGERNEST
BE_Z-_—F+_-_A=+—HULFE AEBEKRER
BEMRETHBERE AR ANEEERENEKXN

HEHER -

HET - EFAHEBNER

BT : AKERBEETINRE  LREBAKITEENE
ERBTIWMHM - HFIMEAS B RFD  BRRR
BYBIEAL - RIS - R EAMARBREEE TR
HEAERFTEREATEE THESRKBEHNGE -
BMREETRTERBRFBE UHEXHNRE
& o

EP RMACRIERFPEYRBMNEMNEBRBE =2
UTBRANEFPER - LAMSZREH - HIHHER
& BEREE  RABKATEZERINREER  KET
RENEPER - HMITTEAELREPEE —FK LM
— & MR A 8 A 3,500 K AR AR B IR B IR B B
&R TAETEAMEE MG ERMHER - BAIRE
EHRMBEMEMETRELLRIT T IHRGHAL -

HER - RAEERETRAREEMIZEN R EER
REETERMMEER -BARHER TERER
B HPHASTRBERNRBHE - BREARK -
RN RETE—REBEGER R TFEROERE -
HFRERFMREIZEHERNBERIRE - BPIAE
DERBAAREN K -

MBERME

Mk EEBE RN BRENAEEE AHHXBHE A EL K
FENEE BERABEEHNF267E28H - &
BETBREREABRIO 5

IR BRARMEZERERD A

49



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHREE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Group’s financial condition and results of operations would be
affected by a number of factors. The principal risks and
uncertainties relating to the Group are set out below:

. The Group’s revenue of steel pipe business is dependent on
securing sales orders for new projects through biddings from
customers. Most of our revenue is generated from pipeline or
other infrastructure projects that are mainly project-originated
and non-recurring in nature. Our revenue will be affected if
we cannot successfully obtain biddings from customers.

. The Group does not have any long term contracts with its
customers of steel pipe business. If the Group’s customers
choose not to engage the Group in the future, the Group’s
steel pipe business operations, financial results and
profitability will be affected.

. The Group’s revenue of property business is dependent on the
policy of PRC government. Any change of PRC policy will
affect the property business operations, financial results and
profitability.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves, including the
share premium account and contributed surplus and accumulated
losses, available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law”), amounted
to approximately RMB119.6 million. The Board do not recommend
the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2022. Details of the reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2022 are set out in note 43 to the financial statements.

The reserves of the Group available for distribution depend on the
dividend distributable by the Company’s subsidiaries. For dividend
purpose, the amount which the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
can legally distribute by way of dividend is determined by reference
to their distributable profits as reflected in the PRC statutory
financial statements which are prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the PRC. These
distributable profits differ from those that are reflected in the
Group’s financial statements prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).

TAX RELIEF
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 28.5% of the total revenue of the
Group, and sales to the largest customer amounted to 7.1%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
38% of the total cost of sales of the Group, and purchases from
the largest supplier amounted to 13%. None of the Directors or any
of their associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of the
Company’s issued shares) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and five largest suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are

as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Chang (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Guo Xiong (Vice Chairman)
Ms. Chen Zhao Nian

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Ping

Mr. Tian Xiao Ren

Mr. Au Yeung Kwong Wah

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from Mr. Chen Ping,
Mr. Tian Xiao Ren and Mr. Au Yeung Kwong Wah, and as at the
date of this report, the Company considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 36 to 47 of this annual report.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with article 105(A) of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Chen Guo Xiong and Mr. Au Yeung Kwong Wah will retire and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company.

According to code provision B.2.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, if an
independent non-executive Director serves more than nine years,
any further appointment of such independent non-executive Director
should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
shareholders.
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Mr. Chen Ping has served as an independent non-executive
Director for more than nine years. Mr. Chen Ping has never held
any executive or management position in the Group nor has he
been employed by any member of the Group during the such
period. The Directors noted the positive contribution of Mr. Chen to
the development of the Company’s strategy and policies through his
independent and constructive advice. Mr. Chen has given the
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules to the Company and the nomination committee of
the Company has assessed and is satisfied of the independence of
Mr. Chen. The Board believes that Mr. Chen’s continued tenure
brings considerable stability to the Board and the Board has
benefited greatly from the presence of Mr. Chen Ping who has over
time provided the Group with valuable insight. Hence, the Board
considers that the long service of Mr. Chen would not affect their
exercise of independent judgments, and therefore considers
Mr. Chen to be independent and recommends Mr. Chen to be re-
elected.

A separate resolution will be proposed for the re-election of each of
Mr. Chen Guo Xiong, Mr. Au Yeung Kwong Wah and Mr. Chen
Ping at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years and is subject to termination by
either party giving not less than one month’s written notice. Each of
the Company’s independent non-executive Directors has a service
agreement with the Company for a term of two years and is subject
to termination by either party giving not less than one month’s
written notice. The Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee have reviewed the terms of service agreement of all

Directors.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to
the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 9 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares or
underlying shares or, as the case may be, the percentage in the
equity interest and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571) (the “SFQ”)), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they have taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register maintained
by the Company referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
(the “Model Code”) of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as

follows:

Shares of the Company

Name of Director Capacity

EEpA g4

Chen Chang Interest of controlled corporation (note 1)
U= —HEEH AR (1)

Personal interest

(EPN 3

EEME
EXEMEREFHY BERKAURAKEXEAE
5 o

EEMENFBRENMBRRME -

EERSRTHRAERROREBERS R E
FHEERAR

RIZEZ—F+-A=+—HB ARAEEXSRITH
ABRARAHEREEE CEE R EH RAEER (5
STAE)([F# LHIEED ) T T 2R%x) 2 ki =i
Rl (RFERME) BRA S REFZBNLH -
BERBEES KA ERAEXVIET R HAME K
REIRBR Az ERIAR (BREEREEFLME
Pl 2 RIS BF R R 2 R AR -
SARIE RE 5 N I E 1R 0] 88 35215 B DM AN R AR IR %
BOIFEZERMRIE ETRAAESZ EHETAE
FETEFXHRESTH ([1RETR]]) ANE AR A
NP2 SRR T

KRB R
Percentage of
shareholding
Number of in the Company
Position shares held ERNNE)
BR BERODHE BatE
Long 701,911,000 69.42%
S5
Long 4,350,000 0.43%
S5
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Note:

1. These shares are held by Bournam Profits Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chen
Chang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chen Chang is deemed to be
interested in the 701,911,000 shares held by Bournam Profits
Limited.

Shares of Associated Corporation

Mr. Chen Chang beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of
Bournam Profits Limited, which is the beneficial owner of about
69.42% of the issued shares of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN MATERIAL
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangement or material contracts, to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director is or was materially interested, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates,
has engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with
the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME B AEST &

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme” or the RARRER T _TF AT NBRITHREAFK
“Scheme”) was approved by the Shareholders of the Company in 2 FHERIRERE ([HARERT 8 S [5T81)) - BEET
the annual general meeting held on 18 June 2020. The details of EMFBERBEEMBRBEI7TENRERBLOT -

the Scheme are disclosed below pursuant to the requirements
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme: the purpose of the 1.

Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the growth of the Group and to provide the Group with a
more flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/
or provide benefits to eligible participants.

2. Participants of the Share Option Scheme include: 2.

(a) directors and employees of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries (including persons who are granted options
or awards under the scheme as an inducement to enter
into employment contracts with these companies);

(b)  directors and employees of the holding companies, fellow
subsidiaries or associated companies of the Company;
and

(c) persons who provide services to the issuer group on a
continuing or recurring basis in its ordinary and usual
course of business which are in the interests of the
long term growth of the Group.
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Total number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme: the total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and other share
option scheme of the Group (if any) must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. not exceeding
101,114,200 shares). Up to the date of this annual report, no
options have been granted under the Share Option Scheme.

At the beginning and the end of the year ended 31
December 2022, the total number of share options that can
be granted under the Share Option Scheme was 101,114,200
and 101,114,200 respectively, which represented
approximately 10% and 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at such dates respectively.

Grant of options to connected persons: grant of options to a
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or any of their respective associates must be
approved by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is the
proposed grantee of the option).

Grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company or any of
their respective associates, which would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant: (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5
million; such further grant of options must be approved by the
shareholders in general meeting.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Option Scheme: for any 12-month period, shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being.
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6. Period within which the securities must be taken up under an 6.

option: an option may be accepted by a participant within 21
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on a day after the date upon
which the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end
in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.

7. The minimum period for which an option must be held before 7.

it can be exercised: unless otherwise determined by the
Directors and stated in the offer of the grant of options to a
grantee, there is no such minimum period.

8. The amount payable on application or acceptance of the 8.

option: a nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option.

9. Basis for determining the exercise price: such price will be a 9.

price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
the offer of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

10. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme: the Scheme
has a life of 10 years commencing on 18 June 2020, being
the date on which the Share Option Scheme was adopted.
The scheme will expire on 18 June 2030.

From the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to
31 December 2022, no share option has been granted or agreed to
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
which would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons or corporations (not being a Director or a chief
executive of the Company) have an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or have
otherwise been notified to the Company:

Shares of the Company

Name Capacity
wnE/EB 14
Bournam Profits Limited Beneficial owner (note)
(“Bournam”)

BanEAA ()

Bournam Profits Limited
([Bournam )

Note:
The entire share capital of Bournam is solely and beneficially owned by

Mr. Chen Chang. Mr. Chen is deemed under the SFO to be interested in
the 701,911,000 shares held by Bournam.

Position

W B B 4 B 1R 2 9 R Bk
BB AR BISh - AR R AN B R RRERER
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TERRRBRORMEEARDNVESZR KR
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VNETDE7)
Percentage of
shareholding
Numbers of in the Company
shares held EEAF
FERODHE BREBSL
701,911,000 69.42%

B 5
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company,
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 62 to 85.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding the dealings in securities of the Company by the
Directors and employees during the year ended 31 December
2022. Following a specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2022.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Group had no significant event after the reporting period
required to be disclosed.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the
benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance when the Report of the Directors prepared by
the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of
the Companies Ordinance.

AUDITORS

KTC Partners CPA Limited (“KTC”) tendered its resignation on
15 November 2022 as auditors of the Company. The Board has
appointed CCTH CPA Limited as auditors of the Company with
effect from 15 November 2022 to fill the vacancy following KTC'’s

resignation.

CCTH CPA Limited shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution will be
proposed for approval by shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to
re-appoint CCTH CPA Limited as auditors of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Chen Chang
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2023
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The Board is committed to maintaining a good standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximising shareholders’ returns.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. The
Board considers that up to the date of this annual report, in the
opinion of the Board, saved as disclosed in section “Chairman and
Chief Executive” below, the Company has complied with the CG
Code. The Company will continue to enhance its corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its
business and to review its corporate governance practices from time
to time to ensure they comply with the evolving regulatory
requirements and to meet the rising expectations of the
Shareholders and other stakeholders.

The following summarises the Company’s corporate governance
practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(A) Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation
The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions, internal control, risk management systems,
monitoring the performance of senior management and
determining the policy for corporate governance. The
management is responsible for daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Chairman. The Directors have the
responsibility to act objectively in the interests of the
Company.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees including the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Further details
of these Committees are set out below in section B of this
corporate governance report.
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The Company had arranged Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance for the Directors and officers of the Company.

Board Composition
The Board members during the year ended 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Chang Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer, Member of
the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee

Mr. Chen Guo Xiong

Ms. Chen Zhao Nian

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Ping Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and Member of
the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee
Mr. Au Yeung Chairman of the Audit Committee
Kwong Wah

Mr. Tian Xiao Ren Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Member of
the Audit Committee and

Nomination Committee

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors from different
business and professional fields. Mr. Chen Chang, Mr. Chen
Guo Xiong and Ms. Chen Zhao Nian are members of the
same family. Mr. Chen Chang is the father of both Mr. Chen
Guo Xiong and Ms. Chen Zhao Nian.

Save as disclosed, there is no other relationship among
members of the Board. The profiles of each Director and the
relationships among the Directors are set out in the “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual
report.
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The Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective delivery of the Board functions. The
number of independent non-executive Directors constitutes
more than one-third of the Board. A list containing the names
of the Directors and their roles and functions is published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company at
www.pck.com.cn and pck.todayir.com.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

Upon reviewing the directorships and major commitments of
each Director, and the attendance rate of each Director at the
meetings of the Board and its committees, the Board is
satisfied that all Directors have spent sufficient time in
performing their responsibilities during 2022.

Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly for at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also be
convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well
as financial performance of the Group. Notice of Board
meeting is sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a
regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice will be given to the
Directors for ad-hoc Board meetings. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of
communication.
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Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information will be provided to all the
Directors at least 3 days before meetings. All the Directors
will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors will
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings. The company secretary of the Company is
responsible for keeping the minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Board committees. All minutes are open for
inspection by any Director at reasonable time on reasonable
notice.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022, eight Board
meetings were held.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest. According to current Board practices, any
material transaction, which involves a conflict of interests for
a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered
and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board

meeting.

The Board is of the view that the following mechanisms
adopted by the Company are effective in ensuring that
independent views and inputs are available to the Board:

. The Board is represented by sufficient number of non-
executive Directors which meets the requirement of the
Listing Rules.

. In assessing suitability of the Director candidates, the
Board will consider their profiles, including their
character, experience, qualifications and time
commitment; the Board will also consider to the Board’s
overall composition and skill matrix as well as the
Company’s diversity policy.

. The Board will review each Director's time commitment
to the Company’s business annually.
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. The Board will assess non-executive Directors’
independence upon appointment and annually.

. Directors are required to abstain from voting in matters
in which he has material interest.

. The Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee are authorised by the
Board to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice as necessary to assist the

respective committee.

The quality of deliberations at meetings of the Board are
reviewed during the annual evaluation of the Board’s
performance.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company is aware of the requirement under paragraph
C.2.1 of the CG Code that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company does not separately
have any officer with the title of “chief executive”. Mr. Chen
Chang, the Chairman and founder of the Group, is also
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board, ensuring that all material issues are decided by the
Board in a conducive manner. The Board will meet regularly
to consider major matters affecting the operations of the
Group. The Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management of the Company. The roles of the respective
executive Directors and senior management, who are in
charge of different functions complement the role of the
chairman and chief executive. The Board is of the view that
this structure provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership, facilitates effective and efficient planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies, and
ensures the generation of shareholders’ benefits.

The Board shall nevertheless review the structure from time
to time to ensure appropriate measures are being taken
should suitable circumstance arise.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The Board is responsible for selection and approval of
candidates for appointment as Directors. The Company has
established a Nomination Committee on 22 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing Board
composition including the board diversity policy, evaluating
the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board
and making recommendations on the appointment of

Directors.

Each of the executive Directors has signed or renewed his/
her service contract with the Company for a period of three
years. All of their appointments are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been
appointed or re-appointed for a term of two years, and are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the re-
appointments/appointment of both executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors and recommended to the
Board of Directors for decision.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and any new Director appointed to fill
a causal vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. In accordance with the Articles of Association,
Mr Chen Guo Xiong, and Mr. Au Yeung Kwong Wah will
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.
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Pursuant to Code Provision B.2.3 of the CG Code, if an
independent non-executive Director serves more than nine
years, his further appointment should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by the Shareholders. As
such, although Mr. Chen Ping has served as an independent
non-executive Director for more than nine years, the Board
considers that Mr. Chen Ping is a person of integrity and
independent in judgement and character. He is independent
of management and free from any business or other
relationships or circumstances which could materially interfere
with the exercise of his independent judgement. The Board
considers that Mr. Chen Ping meets the independent
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and is of
the view that his independence is not affected by his tenure
with the Company. The Board believes that his valuable
experience in the Group’s business and his professional
knowledge will continue to generate significant contribution to
the Board, the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.2.3 of the CG Code and in
accordance to the Company’s Articles of Association, a
separate resolution will be proposed for the re-election of
each of Mr. Chen Guo Xiong, Mr. Au Yeung Kwong Wah and
Mr. Chen Ping and at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

Training Induction and Continuing Development of
Directors

The Directors have endeavoured to keep abreast of the
changes in their responsibilities as a Director and of the
business activities and development of the Company.

Each newly appointed Director receives formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. The
Directors have provided to the Company their records of
continuous professional development during the year ended
31 December 2022.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, all Directors
(being Mr. Chen Chang, Mr. Chen Guo Xiong, Ms. Chen
Zhao Nian, Mr. Chen Ping, Mr. Tian Xiao Ren and Mr. Au
Yeung Kwong Wah) attended seminars and training courses
in relation to corporate governance, Listing Rules update or
financial markets update arranged by professional firms/
institutions. Records of continuing professional development
have been maintained by the company secretary. Besides, the
company secretary also conducted briefings on corporate
governance, directors’ duties and responsibilities and provided
materials for Listing Rules amendments to all Directors for
their reference.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Following a specific enquiry, all the Directors has confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2022.

When the Company is aware of any restricted period for
dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify
its Directors in advance.

Non-Competition Undertakings

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed
the confirmations given by Mr Chen Chang and Bournam,
being controlling shareholders of the Company, in respect of
each of their compliance with the non-competition
undertakings as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 28 January 2010. The independent non-executive
Directors are satisfied that the controlling shareholders have
fully complied with the terms of the non-competition
undertakings and no new competing business was reported
by the controlling shareholders throughout the year ended
31 December 2022.
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Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Board committees are posted on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek advice

independent professional in appropriate

circumstances at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”)
consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr Chen Ping, Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah and Mr Tian Xiao
Ren. Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and the
internal control and risk management procedures and systems
of our Group. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022 and the condensed unaudited
consolidated interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2022, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and the Group.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

. To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
internal auditor or external auditors before submission
to the Board,

. To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their
fees and terms of engagement, and make

recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-

appointment and removal of external auditors; and

(B)
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. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems and associated
procedures.

The Audit Committee held six meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2022, of which two meetings with
external auditors’ presence, and all members of the Audit
Committee attended all meetings. At the meetings, it reviewed
the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the report
of the internal auditor on the Company’s internal control and
risk management systems and processes, and the re-
appointment of the external auditors. No major issue on the
internal control system of the Group has been identified.

There was no disagreement between the Audit Committee
and the Directors in respect of matters about selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of an external auditor.

The Company had established a whistleblowing policy and
system for employees to raise concerns of possible
improprieties where all concerns are addressed to the Audit
Committee.

The Company’ s annual results for the year ended
31 December 2022 and interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Company recognises the benefits of a board that is
composed of a balance of skills, experience, expertise and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the business
development of the Company. The Board has adopted a
board diversity policy in 2013. The Board has reviewed its
composition and considered a number of aspects, including
gender, age, educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service in
accordance with its board diversity policy. The Board
considers that the existing board composition is well
diversified and appropriate to the business development of the
Company.
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The Company established the Nomination Committee on
22 March 2012 in compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr Tian Xiao Ren and Mr Chen
Chang. Mr Chen Ping is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The majority of them are independent

non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee are to
review and monitor the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and make
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors, and review the board
diversity policy and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the board diversity policy, and
the progress on achieving the objectives.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee has reviewed the composition of the
Board and made recommendations to the Board for the re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the
chairman, assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and reviewed the board diversity policy
determined the policy for nomination of directors, nomination
procedure process and criteria to select and recommend
candidates.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2022 and all members of the
Nomination Committee attended the meetings.

According to the Nomination Policy adopted by the Company,
appointments of Board members will be made on a merit
basis and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria. The selection criteria used in assessing the suitability
of a candidate include:

. the candidate’s academic background and qualifications
(including professional qualifications, skills and
knowledge which are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy);
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. the candidate’s relevant experience in the industry;
. the candidate’s character and integrity;
. the candidate’s willingness and capacity to devote

adequate time in discharge of a director’s duties;

. whether the candidate can contribute to the Board a
diversity of perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service;

. (where the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director) whether the
candidate is in compliance with the criteria of
independence under the Listing Rules; and

. any other factors as may be determined by the Board

from time to time.

In terms of nomination procedures, any Board member may
nominate or invite a candidate for appointment as a Director
to be considered by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee will then evaluate the personal profile
of the candidate based on the selection criteria set out
above, undertake due diligence in respect of such candidate
and make recommendation for the Board’s consideration and
approval. For nomination of independent non-executive
Director, the Nomination Committee will also assess the
candidate’s independence in accordance with the CG Code
and the Listing Rules. For re-appointment of retiring Directors,
the Nomination Committee will review the candidate’s overall
contribution and performance (including the candidate’s
attendance at Board committee meetings, Board meetings
and general meetings, his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board), and make recommendations to
the Board and shareholders for re-election at general
meetings.
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The Company continuously seeks to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance and recognises and embraces the
benefits of diversity in the composition of the Board.

In 2013, the Company has adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) for compliance with the Code
Provision of the Listing Rules concerning the diversity of
Board members. The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of diversity in Board members. A truly diverse Board
will include and make good use of differences in the skills,
regional and industry experience, background, race, gender
and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be
taken into account in determining the optimum composition of
the Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit
while taking into account diversity including gender diversity.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six
Directors, one of them is female. Three of them are
independent non-executive Directors, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process.

The Nomination Committee will continue to review the Board
Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness.

Workforce diversity

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total workforce of
824 employees, of which 77% (632 employees) are males,
and 23% (192 employees) are females.

While we believe our future employee recruitment should
predominantly be merit-based and do not consider it
appropriate to set any target gender ratio for our workforce,
we recognize and embrace the benefits of having a diverse
workforce, and will continue to enhance the diversity of our
workforce, subject to availability of suitable candidates.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr Tian Xiao Ren and Mr Chen
Chang. Mr Tian Xiao Ren is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The majority of them are

independent non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
our Directors and senior management, determine on behalf of
the Board specific remuneration packages and conditions of
employment for our Directors and senior management and to
review and/or approve the matters relating to share schemes
under chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Remuneration will be
determined by reference to the duties and level of
responsibilities as well as market practice and conditions.
None of the Directors themselves approve their own

remuneration.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee has reviewed the Group’s
remuneration policy, assessed the performance of executive
Directors and reviewed the remuneration package of the
executive Directors and senior management and
recommended to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and senior management. No share
option has been granted during the year ended 31 December
2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, one meeting of the
Remuneration Committee were held and all members
attended the meetings.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties of the Company. Terms of reference
adopted by the Board include the duties of the Board on
corporate governance functions to develop and review the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance, to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management and
to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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The attendance of individual members of the Board and other
Board Committees meetings for the financial year ended
31 December 2022 is set out in the table below:

AGM
RREAFEAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr Chen Chang BRExXE(EESLRE)

(Chairman of the Board) 17
Mr Chen Guo Xiong GREELE (ZEFLFLE)

(Vice Chairman of the Board) 11
Ms Chen Zhao Nian BKFE L 1n
Independent Non-executive BUFRITES

Directors
Mr Chen Ping BYEE 11
Mr Tian Xiao Ren Mg %+ 0/1
Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah BB L 11

Chairman of the Board had a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Executive Directors (save as the chairman himself) during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the
finance department of the Group, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and
the Group. In the preparation of financial statements, IFRSs
have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies
and statutory requirements have been consistently complied
with. The Board aims to present a clear and balanced
assessment of the Group’s performance in the annual and
interim reports to the shareholders, and make appropriate
disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.

(C)
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Directors’ Responsibility on the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flows for that period. The Company’s
accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and suitable accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
judgements and estimates made are prudent and reasonable;
and the financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 97 to
104 of this annual report.

Management had provided monthly updates to Directors for
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Directors to discharge their duties.

Independent Auditors

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration
paid or payable to the independent auditors, CCTH CPA
Limited, for services rendered is broken down below:
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Internal Controls and Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a
sound and effective internal control system of the
Group. The Company has an internal audit department
to ensure effective internal control system of the Group.
The Group’s system of internal control includes a
defined management structure with limits of authority,
and is designed to help the Group achieve its business
objectives, safeguard its assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the
achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The internal audit department conducts internal audit
throughout the year. The internal audit process includes
conducting supervision and examination on financial
management and contract management, identifying
problems and overseeing the rectification and correction
of these problems, and reporting to the Audit
Committee and the Board any material issues identified
in the internal audit and the rectification and correction
thereof for their review.

The Board has reviewed the internal audit report on
quarterly basis and assessed the effectiveness
(according to its magnitude and significance) of the
Group’s internal control system which covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls as well as risk management
functions during the year ended 31 December 2022.
The Board is of the view that risk management and
internal control systems are adequate. No major risk
was identified which affect operation of the Group.

The Company is in strict compliance with the related
requirements of the Listing Rules, the SFO and the
Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission. The Company
discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable. Before the information is fully
disclosed to the public, the Company ensures the
information is kept strictly confidential.
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Company Secretary

The Board appoints its Company Secretary in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association and in compliance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules. Biographical
details of the current Company Secretary is set out in the
section headed “Profile of Directors and senior management”
on page 36 to 47 of this annual report. The Company
Secretary has complied with the professional training
requirement as set out in the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Board welcomes shareholders to present their views and
shareholders may at any time submit their questions and
concerns about the Group. Enquiries may be put to the
Board by contacting the Company Secretary through our
shareholders’ email at ir@zhujiang.com.hk. Shareholder(s)
holding not less than one-tenth of Company’s paid-up capital
may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general
meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the
related requisition deposited at the Company’s registered
office and addressing to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
extraordinary general meeting will be held within 2 months
after the deposition of such requisition.

Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person
for election as a Director

Subject to the applicable laws and the provisions of the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Company may from
time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect
any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an additional Director. A shareholder may propose a
person for election as a Director by lodging the following
documents to the Board or Company Secretary at our Hong
Kong office at Unit 605-606, 6/F., Tower IllI, Enterprise
Square, No. 9 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,
Hong Kong: 1) a notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person (with full name and biographical details as
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules) for election as
a Director; and 2) a notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected as a Director. Such notices shall be
lodged at least 7 clear days before the date of the general
meeting and the period for lodgement of such notices shall
commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
shall be at least 7 clear days in length.
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To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantial separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
Directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Investor Relations and Communication With
Shareholders

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information, which will enable shareholders and investors to

make the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.pck.com.cn or http://pck.todayir.com,
where up-to-date information and updates on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
posted. A shareholder communication policy is in place to
ensure that shareholders are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to information of the Company. The policy is
available on the Company’s website.

The Shareholders may at any time send enquiries and
requests for publicly available information and provide
comments and suggestions to the Company. Such enquiries,
requests, comments and suggestions can be sent by email to
ir@zhujiang.com.hk or to the Company Secretary by mail to
the Company’s address as shown in the “Contact Investor

Relations” section of the Company’s website.

(G)
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For enquiries about their shareholdings in the Company, the
Shareholders can direct the same to the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 17/F., Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong or by email to
info@hk.tricorglobal.com, who has been appointed by the
Company to handle the Shareholders’ share registration and
related matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, an annual general
meeting of the Company was held on 29 June 2022.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with its shareholders and in particular, through AGMs or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings
for and on their behalf. The chairman of the Board as well as
the chairman of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee will make themselves available
at the AGM to meet with the shareholders.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on Friday,
16 June 2023. The notice of AGM will be sent to
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

The Company attended conferences, roadshows and media
interviews to keep the Shareholders and potential investors
informed of the latest development of the Group. The head of
investor relation will be the primary contact point for
communications with investors and analysts.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the shareholders communication policy. Having considered
the multiple channels of communication and engagement in
place, it is satisfied that the shareholders communication
policy was effective during the year ended 31 December
2022.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on
relevant information on the Group’s business in a timely
manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.
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Memorandum and Articles of Association

There were amendments to the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year. Details were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement and circular dated 5 May 2022
and 18 May 2022 respectively. The adoption of the amended
and restated articles of association of the Company was
approved by the Shareholders as special resolution at the
AGM of the Company held on 29 June 2022. The latest
version of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company is posted on the Company’s website.

2022 Annual General Meeting

The Board is committed to the constructive use of the AGM
as a forum to meet shareholders. The chairman of the Board
and the chairmen of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee, members of the Remuneration Committee and the
external auditors attended the 2022 AGM.

At the 2022 AGM, the Company proposed separate
resolutions on the issues considered. Resolutions passed at
the 2022 AGM were as follows: (i) received the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 together with the reports of the Directors
and auditors of the Company; (ii) re-elected Mr Chen Chang
as executive Director, Mr Chen Ping and Mr Tian Xiao Ren
as independent non-executive Directors and authorised the
Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration; (iii) reappointed KTC
Partners CPA Limited as auditors of the Company and
authorised the Directors to fix its remuneration; (iv) approved
a general mandate for the Directors to allot and issue of new
shares of an amount not exceeding 20 per cent of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the 2022
AGM; (v) approved a general mandate for the Directors to
repurchase shares of an amount not exceeding 10 per cent
of the aggregate nominal amount of the Company’s issued
share capital as at the date of the 2022 AGM; (vi) extended
the general mandate granted to the Directors of the Company
to allot, issue, and deal with additional shares in the share
capital of the Company by an amount not exceeding the
amount of the shares repurchased by the Company; and (vii)
approved and adopt the amended and restated articles of
association of the Company in substitution for and to the
exclusion of the existing articles of association of the
Company and to authorise the Directors to do all things
necessary to implement the adoption of the new amended
and restated articles of association of the Company. All
resolutions were passed by way of a poll conducted by the
Company’s registrar. The poll results of the 2022 AGM were
available on the Company’s website.
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U]

The 2023 annual general meeting (2023 AGM”) of the
Company will be held at 1/F., China Building, 29 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong on Friday, 16 June 2023 at 10:30
a.m.

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the 2023 AGM
and exercise their rights to vote. Shareholders are invited to
ask questions relating to the business of the meeting. Details
of the resolutions to be considered in the 2023 AGM will be
set out in a circular to be sent out to the Shareholders
together with the 2022 annual report.

Others

Share Interests of Senior Management

As confirmed with the senior management of the Company,
they did not hold shares of the Company as at 31 December
2022.

Sufficiency of Public Float
The Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2022.

Dividend Policy
In order to enhance transparency of the Company and
facilitate the shareholders of the Company and investors to
make informed investment decisions relating to the Company,
the Board adopted a dividend policy on 28 March 2019
(“Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, when determining whether
to declare any dividend in the future and the amount of
dividend to be declared, the Company shall consider a

number of factors, including but not limited to:

. the Group’s actual and expected financial results;

. the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the

Company;
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. the Company’s business operation strategy, including . RRAZEBREER BREAHEESR
expected working capital requirements, capital SHERK - BARIBTRERKIERE

expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

. the Company’s liquidity position; . KRB ZREESAMN

. retained earnings and distributable profit reserves of the . KRR Rz BIFWEFIA] 9 Bl A 4
Company;

. the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends . AARTERA K H M ENE R
imposed by the Company’s lenders and other fREHERRR - &

institutions; and

. any other factors that the Board considers to be . EFEITRRR/ERAZAMNEMEZE -
applicable from time to time.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend RRAEE EATEE AR E 5 Bt sk 9 Bt
distribution proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration, EoRBEZER  ENEREHEBHAEZTEHNER
payment and amount of dividends will be subject to the BT R R BEEER -

Board’s discretion. The Board will review the Dividend Policy
on a regular basis.

(J) Anti-corruption and Whistle-blowing Procedures V) REHRRZBHRERX
The Group maintains and effectively implements a REEREIWE NMRATEAE 2 NBEZERFIA
comprehensive system of internal control and stringent REE 2 REFRE - WE AP LW EEREFE
policies for anti-corruption, and is committed to preventing B T EEITA -

and monitoring any malpractices or unethical practice.

The Group is in compliance with all applicable anti-bribery AEFETHRAEEBRARBELRESEE  BRFES
and corruption laws including the Prevention of Bribery B LB B BIN(B B IEPIE201E) - AKH
Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in Hong MEERCEEARTAMERER - S EHR BH
Kong. The Group has also applied the Corporate Governance EfREE: &J%f%ﬁiﬂlzwﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘lﬁiﬁﬂ o REE G
Code as the basis in formulating the internal rules and ETECREEWTHEERE  HAS -

regulations for integrity discipline and clean administration.
The Group will adhere to its corporate ethics and uphold its
reputation to prevent corruption.

To prevent corruptive practices and raise employees’ ABLEESTATRSEERAEFAZEH &
awareness regarding such matter, the expectations and SEKERE=AZHERGERFUKRERE
appropriate procedures of engaging third parties, and EREFERHFAERES REBBEBEE -

standards relating to anti-bribery and anti-corruption are set
out in the anti-corruption and bribery policy of the Group.
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Employees, who are found breaching the Group’s code and
policies will be investigated and may be subject to warning,
suspension, termination of contract, dismissal and disciplinary
discharge.

In addition, a whistleblowing policy has been established to
provide employees with guidance and channels for the
reporting of fraud, corruption, bribery, criminal offences,
conflict of interest, harassment, workplace bullying and other
non-compliances with the laws, regulations and internal
controls or other forms of misconducts without fear of
adverse consequences.

The policy provides a set of transparent and confidential
procedures for dealing with the concerns raised by each
employee and is fully supported by management and
approved by the Board.

Suspected non-compliance issues may be reported to the
chairman of the Audit Committee, the assistant to chairman of
the Company, immediate supervisor or the head of
department who is also required to notify any concerns to the
Audit Committee on a timely basis. According to this policy,
the identities of employees who reported in good faith will be
kept confidentially and protected by the Group without any

form of retaliation, harassment or victimization.

Anti-corruption training material had been circulated among all
Directors and employees of the Group during the Year in
accordance with the applicable laws of the relevant
jurisdictions to enhance their knowledge and awareness on
such issue.

TECCFEERE

EHRARBRAEETAEREZREHAERZH
T UAREAHES FB RLEEH BERX
RERED -

AN AEEERIERRBE - REBRMES
MRBEMAF - B)5  BW - MEFET M
e BB BSHE  UREMERER X
BERNREEREMPEAZTETR MBAE
BHRBEANER -

SRR AR RRYNEFIARES — £ E
%%ﬁZ@E?ﬁ'ﬁﬁ @Fiﬁi%&m
EgHE -

BEARAEZZESE ‘ZIS/‘ﬂEﬁEjJEE~E
BLASMATERRBERTIEREN - ®HETN
BERBEIETEBRNERZES - REZK
B EBEREBRNEEZINDHRRE LXK E
BRERIZETALAZRE BREBIEAE -

REAFE AEBZREZRESECRREEHG
FERBERERERARESZIME - UEFE
RNEBEB 2 ANB N B -

WIAMRARRMEZRERAT 85



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERRE

The Board is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which the Group operates and
continually enhances investment value to stakeholders through
proper and effective internal control systems and ESG risk
management measures throughout its operations. The Board
maintains oversight of and approves the identification and
assessment of ESG issues and confirms that to the best of its
knowledge, this report addresses the material topics related to the
operations of the Group and fairly presents its ESG performance
and impacts.

The Group’s management is responsible for monitoring and
reviewing the compliance with local laws and regulations with
regards to ESG-related issues. The management is also
responsible for establishment of sustainability strategies, policies
and measures to implement sustainability initiatives, provide
sustainability reporting and prepare the ESG report.

This section is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) of the Listing Rules. The Board is pleased to present our
performance and progress on the environmental and social aspects
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

This ESG section would separate into two subject areas — (A)
environmental and (B) social and each subject area included
relevant aspects as follow:

A. ENVIRONMENTAL
The Group is committed to energy saving and environmental
protection. The Group is trying to keep the damage to the
environmental at a minimal level by reducing pollutants and
hazardous wastes during the manufacturing process and
ensuring our activities and operations are to be energy, water
and resources saving, and to prevent pollution, reduce wastes
and minimize the negative impacts on and harmonize with the
environment. The Group has set up procedures and systems

to comply with the rules and impose control on emissions.
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The Group is complying with the following laws and regulations that

are most relevant to the Group:

. Law of the PRC on the Environmental Protection* (% AR
HAMBIRFRER);

. Law of the PRC on the Water Pollution Prevention and Control*

(P EAR KRBT R DF),;

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste* (FF%E A 2 L7015 & £
BEW 5 RIRIFEN L E);

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution*

(FEARKMBARSRIEE);

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Noise Pollution* (/% A R £ FIE IR BS54
Fra7%);

. Law of the PRC on the Energy Conservation* (% A R L #1
Bl & 4 82 IR %);

. Law of the PRC on the Cleaner Production Promotion* (7
ARZMEDNE R EEREE),

. Regulations on Environmental Protection Management of
Construction Projects* (#2278 B IR IB R S B &),

. Measures for the Administration of Hazardous Waste Transfer
Forms* (f& ka2 RE V)88 15 0t 8 B 1B I%);

. Regulations on the Safety Management of Hazardous
Chemicals* (Bt 2mi 2 B EH)
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A.1 Emissions

Types of emissions from the Group were mainly carbon
dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide etc emitted during operation
of production lines.

Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions in 2022 were primarily
generated from natural gas, diesel oil and gasoline.

Scope 2 greenhouse gases emissions were associated with
the electricity purchase in PRC are provided by the relevant
provider of electricity.

Greenhouse gas emissions

i R RE X

Scope 1

#E1

Scope 2:

#E2

The greenhouse gases emissions are calculated with
reference to the “Greenhouse Gas Emission Accounting
Method and Reporting Guidelines for Enterprises Power
Generation Facilities (2022 Revised Edition)” {{b %8 =&, 8
PR E AR E R E BRI (20225 €5ThR)) issued by
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s
Republic of China (1% A R R & 2R 5 50 FT).
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Hazardous waste

Hazardous wastes were produced during production including
waste oil, waste sludge, waste mineral oil, paint, paint
residue, waste grease, waste grease drum, waste paint drum,
waste emulsion drum, waste activated carbon, waste organic
solvent, waste developer, and fixer. Total hazardous waste
produced in 2022 was approximately 109 tonnes and 0.00035
tonnes of hazardous waste was produced for each tonne of
product.

Non-hazardous waste

Non-hazardous wastes were produced during production
including welding slag, iron filings, scrap steel. Total non-
hazardous waste produced in 2022 was approximately 2,490
tonnes and 0.008 tonnes of non-hazardous waste was
produced for each tonne of product.

Emissions are proportional to the production level. Therefore,
total emissions in 2022 were similar as compared to 2021.
However, the Group has implemented the policies to reduce
the emissions of carbon dioxide or greenhouse gas as follow:

1) The design of factory in Lianyungang and Zhuhai is
allowing more natural light and ventilation in order to

reduce use of electricity;

2) Solar photovoltaic power generation equipment are
installed on the roof of the factories of Lianyungang
and Zhuhai factories in order to extend the use of clean
energy;

3) The light and equipment would be turned off during

luncheon rest time.
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Treatment of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes EERBEZEEZYH EE

1.  The Group has set up procedures in the collection, 1. AEEERARUKE GFRH- -EBLEES
storage, transportation and disposal of polluting wastes SABREMHENGE - EXKZE
to prevent scattering, draining, leakage. Authorization is R BREEEEA - HER EENE
need for dumping, stacking, discarding or scattering the By
wastes;

2. The Group has identified specific rubbish bins for 2. AEBEATHEBEANERE TENR-
different types of wastes like scrap steel, industrial EENR  SHBEVSEEENRETH
wastes, domestic wastes, oil-bearing wastes, and RiEMN N RAE  UREEREELMEN
delivered the wastes to units with waste treatment B B s BIYCR A

qualification for waste disposal or recycling;

3.  The Group has strengthened training for employees to 3. AEEBENEESSINRAHEEEEZE
enhance their skills and knowledge of handling waste; Y18 K A0
4.  Hazardous wastes are disposed to qualified and 4. BEBREVYHEBRLERETHERE -

designated institutions with special care.

The Group has received no cases of environmental pollution REBR T ZF I BWEIRIR SR IILFN
or complaints in 2022. EY
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A.2 Use of Resources A2 BREHR

The major resources used by the Group relates to electricity,
water, petrol and natural gas. The Group aims at and has
been reducing consumption of various resources. Resources
consumption by the Group during the year is listed in the
table below:

Resources Consumption

BIFH#E

Electricity consumption
Water consumption
FEK

Petrol

i

Natural gas

Packaging material

BRI

Measures on efficient use of resources:

1. The Company will assess its staff to reduce the

environment impact from the major resources;

2. The design of factory in Lianyungang and Zhuhai is
allowing more natural light and ventilation in order to

reduce use of electricity;

3. The light and equipment would be turned off during
luncheon rest time;

4. Use of energy efficient lighting products;

5. Increase the awareness of employees on energy saving
by training.

Use of resources like electricity is proportional to the
production level. Therefore, electricity usage in 2022
decreased as compared to that of 2021.
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AEBERNEREERE N K- THRRA
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TREINFAREENERHEF

Intensity
Amount per

Total amount each tonne of

Unit in 2022 product in 2022
T
R=-B== R=T==

B BnyE BHEMHBE

kWh 31,400,000 100
FRE

Tons 368,000 1.17
s

Litre 223,000 0.71
ﬂ_

M3 13,000 0.04
S5 K

Tons 170 0.0005
r
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A.3

Water source

The water source that is fit for purpose of the Company and
is the running water supplied by the government which
guarantees reliable quality and supply. There has been no
suspension of water supply.

Water was consumed mainly for office general use,

hydrostatic pressure test and ultrasonic tests.

Measures to enhance water efficiency:

1. Reuse water for production use;

2. Use of water-saving taps and sanitary wares with
sensor;

3. Increase awareness of employees on water saving by
training.

Water consumption efficiency was improved. Total water
consumption in 2022 was similar to that of 2021.

Package material
The Group uses packing rope, packing tape and dunnage for
packaging final products.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group endeavors to calculate the amount of materials
needed for our production based on the principle of
minimizing surplus materials. In addition, the Group puts in
place a scrap metal recycling mechanism to sell the wasted
steel produced in our process of production to recycling

companies.

A3
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A.4 Climate Change

Extreme weather events are becoming more frequent and
severe, while tackling climate change has become a global
consensus. The Group has realized that climate change will
affect its business operations. The Group regularly reviews
global and local government policies, regulatory updates and
market trends to identify potential climate-related risks which
may have impact on the Group’s business operation.

In accordance to the reporting framework developed by the
Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, there are
two major categories of climate-related risks, physical and
transition risks. Climate change can pose threats to the
Group such as business disruption, physical damage and rise
in operational costs due to severe and extreme weather
events. The Group has insurance policies in place to mitigate
such risks.

SOCIAL
Employment
The Group has committed in cultivating a good workplace
practice free from discrimination and providing equal
opportunities for all regardless of age, gender, race, colour,
sexual orientation, disability or marital status to increase
employee satisfaction.

The Group has also adopted principles in hiring new
employees regardless of colour, religion, gender, nationality,
race for selection, hiring,

training, compensation and

promotion.

TECCEEERE

A4 RIRE1

B R REMHEERETBBEENERE  RFE
HRIRECEXBZHRAR - AREZHBIRR

BEBTEEEBES AEBEREHEHLE
WHBARE EEEFLTHBY - LB

EFELAKEEBELNEERKABBAR -

RIBRIRAERE N B E TEEFEREER
R AE R R R 0 IR KRR R oK HR o SRR
BCERARETREE  MEERBHRARE
HIER R ETE P - MERREER AR LT -
AR HIE R R EUR AR E R R o

T

(]

AEEBNEEEEEORT TIERE
TmeEh MR ik BE - 'R
IR ER T ERE - HEMIER R
o

<$EBT
B 3k
THzE

AEBEBRBHEIRTTIRES R
BB BEERG EEIEREEMA - IF
A R B E RS R R R RA

BIAMAAREEERERAT 93



The Group has complied with the all the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong, including but not
limited to:

. Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China (/& A
RHEFIB & EE);

. Labour Contract Law of People’s Republic of China (&
EARKMBILE S RE);

. Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China

(PEMEREZE);

. Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong;

. Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Cap.485 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Our employment contract specified the terms including
compensation and dismissal, working hours, rest periods and
other benefits and welfare of our staff. The Group’s employee
handbook distributed to employees also includes information
of policies on compensation and dismissal, employment
benefits, rights on termination, business conduct and leave
benefits.

In relation to 2022, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with the relevant labour laws and regulations
in to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, and other benefits and welfare
that have a significant impact on the Group.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 824 (2021: 862) R-BE-_—F+-_A=+—H AEEHAFET
employees. The demographics of the Group’s workforce was 824% (ZE=—%5:862%) - AEEME LD
as follows: BRI

Percentage of

each group
to total
employment
FARILEANEN
Btk
By gender tc gl
+ male - B 76.7%
- female - it 23.3%
By age group REE AR
» 20-30 « 202 305% 12.4%
* 31-40 « 3124055 34.1%
* 41-50 « 4125055 35.8%
* 51-60 * 51£605% 16.1%
« 61 or above « 615% A 1.6%
By category ZEE R
- office management members cMREEEAB 38.5%
« production operation c HEREE 61.5%
By geographical location 7t =
* PRC - FEIAH 99.0%
+ Hong Kong B 1.0%
The following table shows the employee turnover rate by TR TR R FHRARE DB E TRAEX

gender and age group:

Turnover rate

A=
By gender =R
+ male - B 62.4%
+ female g 37.6%
By age group REEAER
» 20-30 « 202 305% 33.9%
* 31-40 « 312405% 34.9%
* 41-50 « 41 ZE505% 21.1%
* 51-60 * 512 605% 8.3%
+ 61 or above * 815K £ 1.8%
By geographical location i @
* PRC s FEIAH 100.0%
+ Hong Kong - B 0%

T EEERE BIAMAARMEERERAT 95



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERRE

B.2 Health and Safety B2 REHEZZE

The Group has complied with the laws and regulations and
adopted the Health Safety and Environmental (“HSE”)
management policy, in an effort to prevent pollution, to
ensure people’s health and safety, and to promote
sustainable development. Our target is to achieve zero
accidents, zero injuries and zero losses in order to meet the
international HSE management standard.

The Group’s employees reside in the neighbourhood areas.
Within our plant zone, there are gardening landscape, fish
ponds and recreational facilities, which offer a comfortable
environment and a sports ground for our employees.

Occupational Safety

We have adopted the HSE risk identification, risk assessment
and control procedures to manage our occupational safety
risk. The Group’s management is responsible for organising
periodic risk identification and evaluation exercises, and is
responsible for sorting, aggregation and distribution of
relevant information, which includes the identification of risk
factors for occupational safety and health, risk assessment on
operating conditions, possibility of accidents, the formulation
of operational control procedures, contingency plans, safety
level standards, as well as training and education issues.

The Group has kept records and documents relating to risk
management, including the “Control procedures of the new,
rebuilding and extension projects”, “Risk sources identification
and risk evaluation form” and “List of major risks” for staff
reference.

The Group always finds great importance in occupational
safety and regularly provides training for staff. In 2022, the
Group hosted trainings and rehearsals in productions bases
for fire alert, so as to enhance safety awareness and
emergency response, and held hazards identification
programs and assemblies of risk management activities.

Q6 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Work-related injuries and fatalities of the Group for last three M=FAEERIBETER

years:
Work-related Work-related Working
injuries fatalities Proportion days lost
(individual) (individual) (%) (day)
IHEAR EIRTAH ke BAIEBEH
Year F14 (A) (AN) (%) (X)
2020 —ZECTF 0.01 90
2021 —EZ—F 0.01 85
2022 —F=-= 9 0 0.01 292
B.3 Development and Training B.3 R KIEI
Staff Development and Training BT #EEZ

Through meetings, trainings and notifications on notice board,
the Group promotes its safety philosophy and amiable
working environment among various departments and teams.
We offer our employees access to learning and
understanding about the Group, so that each employee and
contractors of the Group or visitors can recognize their
responsibilities and obligations in the aspect of improving the
environment and enhancing occupational health and safety
performance. We make great efforts on improving the
environment and occupational safety.

Our adherence to the HSE management policy is a testimony
of the greatest commitment of the Group towards environment
and occupational health and safety. This policy is available for
review by employees at any time. In the year, the Group
further improved site management standards, achieved the
goal of dedicated management, and further promoted the 6S
management model in the Company. Project meetings were
kicked off in the production sites of Zhuhai and Lianyungang.
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The Group endeavours to enhance the skills of each
employee in various aspects by providing staff trainings,
which include the “Weekly Star” and “Weekly Talk”. A wide
array of training courses is provided for employees to
strengthen their work-related knowledge and skills. Also, the
Group hosted an “advanced employee’s election”, whereby
each of the employees obtaining a certificate of honorary was
offered an outdoor training opportunity. To enable excellent
employees to take up management positions and to bolster
our team’s management capabilities, the Company also
organised the “team leader for production and management
training” courses during the year.

The Group has set up a labour union to further promote
spiritual positive energy with various social activities.

To reinforce the employees’ sense of belonging to the Group,
a wide range of sport events are provided by the Group for
its employees every year, including basketball and table
tennis contests and a game of tug-of-war, etc. In addition, we
have provided activities that are of educational significance
and served to enhance the work performance of our
employees, including the “Business Oral English”, “Training
and Assembly for Fire”, “Sales Training”, “Joint Training and
Team Building Program for Financial Department”, and
“Annual Sales Meeting”, etc. The Zhuhai Company of the
Group also held the third quarter award ceremony of “Set an
example around you and consolidate the strength of the
Company”. The Company honored the advanced teams and
individuals emerging from various functions with great
ceremony, and called on all employees to learn from such
advanced teams and individuals. The Zhuhai Company also
organized a warm spring trip for the 8th March Women’s
Day.

We encourage our employees to take an active part in local
community activities, including the “Green Enterprise Cup”
Table Tennis and Badminton Tournament of Panyu District
Youth Entrepreneur Association and the private enterprises
working concern group activities. Various events were held,
including the second “We Are Family « PCK” friendly wall
donation, the hike of female employees for the 8th March
International Women’s Day, the Lantern Festival Fair jointly
held by the Lianyungang base of Chu Kong Steel Pipe and
the Community Workstation of the Neighborhood Center of
Xuwei New Area, and the employee-oriented “1st May Caring
Show” organized by the Artistic Association of Zhuhai Trade
Union.

98 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERRE

AEBEFNRAZE T TR EAKREE - Bk
FEIGI BRIGE-EIXIGE—H] -3
BREIRFETENBIRE  BEETERFE
R TEMBRIREE - ARBETERTERTE
B UIRARSREFENEIRHPINAET
REBOHRE  RIBBREFETIEAEEMMUNR
BEEREREN  ARBREFATAS AR
EEBEEIIIRE -

AEECORELE  BBRSBALRESHERRBH
MALIEREE °

RRSEIHAKENRER  A&ESFER
BETHESREY BRERLE FXRE -
BOILLEE  SEEMAHERERRENETY
THERBENHERLZEY - 2R [EHEERZBEIIR
B DEPSEIIRER] - T#HERAEI] - [&
By HHBeeR I M HEFSE AEEN
KERRAMBRTE=FEH LT ERERE
RANE] REXRZAREL  RRRERETE
B BRI EERERREA  KE 2R
BTRAXRENTEBBRMEEBASZE - KB
REFRHF T = N\RLEHEEFZIR -

AARHBHEIRGBLNEWLEES  BEE
BESFCERBE TN FEBR R TR
HERRZGCEBAI AT B TE-]E
[We Are Family«PCK] &k Z 7 fEiBHES) - =)\
SIS T TRERSERLEY T
MEESEEMMASRITHEMEPOLETTE
UERTENES KT I SEMEARNE
ABIH— -BBEEL]ES -

Annual Report 2022



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE -HERERRE

B.4

B.5

Performance of professional trainings

By gender

& B 82
Male
Item A B
Percentage Bkt 89.7%
Average training hours FH5E 5|/ N6 9

Labour Standards

The Group has complied with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China (F#FE AR EXMH L &)’L), Labour Contract
Law of People’s Republic of China (FZE AR KXFIBHLEH AR
7%), the Law of the PRC on Prohibition of Using Child
Labour* {ZE|F{FAEZE T FE) and other relevant laws. The
Group has specified staff recruitment procedures which avoid
the recruitment of child labour and ensure the fulfiiment of
entry requirements by recruited staff through examining their
identification card and certificate. The Company is required to
enter into written labour contracts with employees upon their
entry. There is no forced labour within the Group. The Group
has not employed any staff aged under 16.

Staff Code

The staff code of the Group is prepared based on the PRC
labour law and is in line with the national standards of the
PRC. The Group has also been providing its staff with
guidance in accordance with the national legislation.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has maintained proven track records of high
production efficiency and timely delivery. We have established
deep and cordial relationships with our suppliers. The Group
keeps a list of qualified suppliers, whose appraisal is based
on their track record of compliance with international
standards and the Group’s past cooperation relationship with
them. The Group also consider factors such as compliance
with environmental

requirements in our supplier vendor

assessment, selection and evaluation process.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has 1,410
suppliers which are located in the PRC.
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B.6

=5 2
B /A $E( %
The Group has adopt the following procedures to select and

evaluates suppliers:

their
including but not

1. Evaluating product quality and company

background limited to the

environment, health and safety awareness;

2. Comparing historical level and test results of products;
3. Evaluating the standards of their products;
4. Evaluating their production capacity, delivery time and

stability, reputation, cost and services;

5. Inspecting the sample of purchased products fulfilling the
requirements;

6. Checking the products fulfilling the specific requirements
under the laws and regulations or supply contracts.

Product Responsibility

Product quality

With its state-of-art technology, equipment, management and
well-established reputation, the Group is dedicated to the
provision of high-quality products and services that satisfy
customers’ needs. Our product quality has met a number of
international standards. We are also the only domestic
welded steel pipe manufacturer being granted five honors,
namely the “Superior Quality Award for Actual Quality of
Metallurgical Products”, “Gold Cup Prize for Actual Quality of
Metallurgical

Products”, “High and New Technology

Enterprise”, “Province-recognised Enterprise Technology

Center’, and “National Key New Products” and hosts a

“Academician Workstation”. We are the main drafter of the
national standard for longitudinal welded steel pipes in China.
Meanwhile, with the setting up of the “Post-doctoral Research
Station” and “Academician Workstation”, the Company strives
to further enhance its product quality and extend the

application of its products.

B.6
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Quality assurance process

The Group strictly upholds the 1SO9001 quality management
system. With the use of advanced testing equipment, and the
conduct of on-line and off-line testing as well as mechanical
and chemical properties testing, we inspect the products at
each production process stage in accordance with the best
product quality requirements through a myriad of tests, such
as steel ultrasonic testing, ultrasonic welding detection, weld
X-ray inspection system, hydrostatic testing and flattening test.
Upon obtaining post-test data, we will make a rigorous
analysis on product quality, so as to ensure that each
product meets customer requirements. We have built a
testing center in compliance with the national standards, and
the center has been recognised by China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS). The
Group’s testing center is equipped with a wide variety of
laboratory equipment, including universal materials testing
machine, low temperature impact material testing machine,
drop weight tear test (DWTT) machine, hydrogen induced
cracking (HIC) testing, sulfide stress corrosion cracking
(SSC), crack tip opening displacement (CTOD) test,
computer-controlled chemical composition vacuum direct
reading spectrometer and microscope. Achieving six
standards, our measuring chamber has passed through the
1ISO10012: 2003 AAA measurement management system
certification. This proves that our measuring instruments are
of high qualification and effectiveness. The Group’s testing
centre has passed the “National safety quality
standardisation” and obtained the “TUV SUD Metal Materials
Laboratory Accreditation Certificate”. Our products, an
unfailing symbol of quality, are blessed with unparalleled
reputation in the international market under the “PCK” brand.

In 2022, return of products sold or delivered due to safety
and health reasons was zero. The Group would repair the
products to customers if there are problems.

TECCFEERE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE -HERERRE

EERTHARE

RNEB L HNITISO001 REEIRREE - AL
IR RE  BBG L FIE R IA R L
BHEAREFR  BRESEBEQREERR
BREEEERENEMRE  BBMREE KRR
A~ IREERBERARA « REEXORROR R AT - KB
RANMBRABRSHRN - EMERAERE  BE
HEMBEERENSN  BREHERHFEE
BEMER - QA A EDEREEMRA AP
D EREABTIEBRRAZ 8 E(CNAS)R
Ao REBBARLEBRESEMEERE -
EREEMBHRE  ZEHAHEROWTT)H -
DEFZ(HIC) IR - i k¥ FE 1 & &k FI % (SSC)
OB - RAR IR (CTOD) A5 - BHIEH
TEROHETHBALENSERNRESERS
% o REFFEZEEBIS010012 : 2003 HIE E 1B 82
FAAARE - ERRIERE  AIRENEHAA
BAER - AEEORAFLERB(RRELEIEZ
A DEEZTE) (TUVEEBESBMEER
ERAFE)  c EMERGARE - LU[PCK] @
FREBEMS EZEERNMNEE -

RZZF-_—F RAZzkRERAMERZEH
ERNEMNBALST - EEMBARE - K&
BEgnEFPHEER -

BIAmAAREEERERAR 101



The Group put emphasis on product quality and customer
satisfaction. The Group will handle any product complaints
immediately. Our staff will identify, evaluate and record every
product complaint and reply and suggest ways to customers
as soon as possible. In 2022, the Group did not receive any
product complaints.

Intellectual property rights

The Group is an industry pioneer, particularly strong in
research and development, holding 105 patents (including 41
invention patents). The Group treasures its intellectual
property rights. To protect our proprietary rights, the Group
rely on the applicable patent and trademark laws, laws
relating to protection of other intellectual property rights, and
impose confidentiality obligations on our employees. The
Group also protects our know-how by requiring our
employees, in particular, the technical and mechanical
personnel, to enter into confidentiality and non-competition
undertakings with the Group. In addition, in order to improve
the Company’s intellectual property protection system,
strengthen the company’s core competitiveness, promote
technological innovation, promote technological progress,
encourage employees to invent and create, and increase
employees’ enthusiasm for applying for independent
intellectual property rights, the Group rewards employees for
independent research and development on intellectual
property rights.

Consumer data protection

The Group respects the values and rights of the customers’
information assets, and in the process of providing our
customers with products, we strictly comply with the
customers’ information security management systems and
standards. The Group has classified the business-related
information as highly confidential and requires employees not
to disclose confidential information to third parties to ensure
that the data will not be leaked. The Group has also
formulated the rules and regulations in relation to data
protection in the employee handbook for employees to
perform their duties.
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B.7

B.8

Anti-corruption

The operation of various departments of the Group is in
compliance with legal regulations and legislations. We have
established a whistle blowing policy, which enables our
employees to express their views to the management
anonymously. The Group conducts stringent management on
procurement and tender process. Various approval on
contract review and tender process is adopted, reviewed and
monitored. In addition, the Group has formulated the “Good
Professional Conduct” policy on conflict of interests, which are
included in the employee handbook for employees to perform
their duties with the highest level of integrity and professional
attitude. All employees are not allowed to engage in any
activities that conflict with the interests of the Group.
Employees must report any activities and situations that may
lead to conflict of interest to the Group. Relevant activities
can only be carried out with the consent of the Group.
Employees failing to report potential conflicts of interests may
be subject to disciplinary actions. In 2022, the Group did not
encounter any corruption procedures or cases.

Community Investment

Contribution to the Community

The Group has been playing an active role in charitable
activities in Panyu, Guangdong Province, China and other
regions in which we operate. With the organisation of a
couple of educational, sports, cultural and charitable activities,
thus
enhancing foreign interest in Guangzhou and fostering urban

we promoted the exuberance of Guangzhou City,

development. These activities included:

. Sponsoring Panyu District “PCK Cup” 1st, 2nd and 3rd
Table Tennis Contest

. Sponsoring Zhujiang “PCK Cup” 1st and 2nd World Go
Team Championships

. Sponsoring “Golden Dragon City Cup” 1st and 2nd
Dragon Boats Championships

. Sponsoring the 9th Table Tennis Competition of
“Mayor’s Cup” of Guangzhou

TECCFEERE
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. Exclusively supporting the 2nd National Calligraphy
Poster Exhibition and Invited Exhibition, to promote the
art of calligraphy and inherit national cultures.

In addition, the Group also participated in the assessment by
the government and other organisations. We participated in:

. Supporting the events related to Chinese Bonsai Art
organized by the Flower Bonsai Society of China

. Supporting the events organized by Baiyue Art
Association of Panyu District

. “Panyu District Mayor Quality Award Assessment
Management Approach” granted with the Quality Award
by the provincial government

. “Guangdong Enterprise with integrity”

The Group has also encouraged its employees to actively

participate in community activities in Guangdong Province,

including:

. Participating the seventh “Guangzhou’s Mayor Cup” for
table tennis tournament sponsored by Chu Kong Steel
Pipe Group

. Joining the photographic contest arranged by the district

. Participating the “Charity Hiking” activity arranged by the
City of Guangzhou

. Arranging a “Paternity Day” on the Nation’s Day

. Arranging the “Mid-Autumn Celebration” activity

. Joining the “International Dragon Boat” competition
arranged by the City of Guangzhou

. Participating in the Charity Projects of Guangzhou
Association of Women Entrepreneurs
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. Participating in the poverty alleviation activities organized . 2NEM Tl - mm - mad - &L
by Guangzhou Federation of Industry and Commerce, P S EAMNEEEY

Guangzhou Women’s Federation, Guangzhou
Association Of Women Entrepreneurs and District
Federation of Industry and Commerce

. Participating in the poverty alleviation projects organized . 2NMEREFELZEESE MEBEK
by Guangdong Women And Children’s Foundation, rHEeEEHEAKFARNKEIER

Guangzhou Women’s Federation and Guangzhou
Association Of Women Entrepreneurs

Charity Fund EEEE

In April 2013, the Group established a charitable fund, named RZE—=FNA AEERIEBRIHKIMES
as the “Chu Kong Steel Pipe Group Co., Ltd. — Blessing BAERAR — FTRESINEEES  BEHD
Charity Fund”, aiming to improve the living environment of BHEBB RN ZREETFRE  URBEERS
single mothers and orphans and assisting single mothers for 95K B o

seeking job.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BY 2B RS

CCTH CPA LIMITED
FIERE &5 A RAF

To the shareholders of Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas

Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chu Kong
Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 116 to 266, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

106 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

B IAMARRAEEZRERAAZERR

(RASHESTMATABERLA)

=
ZEREZRANEM6E266 BN I AMRARME
ZRBERAR(TERRDEENBLRAR (GEAIEE
B mEZEaMBHRE  WEMBRREEN - _—F
TZAZT—HOSRAUBRRAREREZ R LFEN
FEERR HARANER FARREPHRNEGS
ReanER UERMBRERME(BRIZSHBERM

Z)-

EERE FAUBRRERBEER ST EIEEE
(TERgtERREE ) RMENBRBRT RS LR ([H
R REEN D EEMATRR EEER T
—ET A= HNEARBBEIRRARBEZA LF
ENGAMBRAMIARERE YO EREBRA
RPN BRREZ RRE -

RRzE®

BEENRBRBEAGHMAE ([BAEMAE]) BHZ
BABER ((HBEER ) ETERIIE - BER
ZERJNAT 2 EFEABREDRUMAFEAEHE
WAAAENEF—EE— 0 - REFZEGMQ
SRz EXREETA (TR EFTVEYL
B BEREE YORBRTABETHEMEREE BFH
B BEFBRSNEREEBRONMGRE  ATREEN
BREMER -

Annual Report 2022



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BY 2B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS BAREEREE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional REBFENEXEHE  BREZFBEAETSERAHE
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the EUMBHREPEREENTIE - ZEFFHHEESTERE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These BIGAMBMEMMAZTRETRE mESIETEH
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the ZEFEEFHHERER -

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter

HERELSHE

Write-down of completed properties held for sale

B FEYFEZ M

Refer to note 19 and the accounting policies in note 2.4 to
the financial statements.

LBV IE MR 19N FE2.4PF 8 2 AR

The carrying amount of completed properties held for sale
was RMB2,212,824,000 as at 31 December 2022,
represented 33.8% of total assets.
RZBZZF+ZA=+—0 EXNSFEVENE@MAEARA
R¥#2,212,824,0007T * HE XA ER33.8% °

These completed properties held for sale are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Determination of net
realisable value involved key judgements and estimates
made by management by reference to the estimated
selling prices provided by an independent professional
valuer.

ZERRFEDERRNARE A FEFEMRE R AEIEESIER -
EERAS2RFESNEREZERH I EEGEMEH—NMGE
$HE BAS M VR # = 2 2B R A5 -

We have identified the write-down of the completed
properties held for sale as a key audit matter due to the
magnitude of the properties and the management
judgments involved in the estimation of the net realisable
value.

EERENSEMEMBBN REREREE  REAME
BHEEBARGRAIERFES R EIRE A -

TECCFEERE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNNEERARERSE

We performed the following procedures to address this matter:
EEDRITA TR F AR ERE

. Obtained an understanding of the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key internal controls around
the property development cycle with particular focus on
controls over cost budgeting and periodic review, sources
of data and calculation of cost and net realisable value;

. THRYEERBIRATENDEE R RITEREERK
B R RIS BRI B AR TEE IOE BAR R BUE HOR BA KR
MA#RFEZE

. Evaluated the competence, capability and objectivity of the
independent valuer engaged by the management for the
estimation of selling prices of the properties;

. ERMEEBLAFHEEEEZENB L EMNERE
CEPANSES - Jiax

. Assessed the methodologies used by the management and
external valuer for the estimation of the net realisable value
of the properties;

. AR EIEE RIMNE L ER AT Y EFTERIFEMB 2 A

IR BRARMEZERERD A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY 2B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BREZBE®
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
HEEZEE EENERNTEEBRELEE

Write-down of completed properties held for sale (Continued)

ERIFEYFEZ M (E)

. Compared the expected sale prices of properties for the
forecast of future sales, on a sample basis, to the
contracted sales price of the properties with comparable
locations and conditions, where applicable; and

. AR REBYERREERAME Z%EHH%%E i E
RAKRAELL R WE 2 BTXEEE (WEA)

. Checked the reasonableness and calculation of the net
realisable value of the properties prepared by the
management.

. BEEEEMGRENENERFELAEELFTE -

Impairment non-financial assets

FHEEZHIE

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the net We performed the following procedures to address this matter:
assets of the Group was more than its market ZZDHITATEFAMRILMRE
capitalisation, that was an indication that an asset may be

impaired. The impairment assessment was performed to . Reviewed the management’'s assessment on the
ensure that the Group’s assets are not carried at more recoverability of the assets and the reasonableness of the
than their recoverable amount. judgements and estimates used by the management in the
RZZEZ=ZF+-A=+—H0 EEEEEFEZEEES value in use calculations made by the independent valuer;
RETE BAEEAREHRAEDRR - ETRENEE - FEHEEBHZSEENARLOMEMNTE  ANEERELES
REREEEEEIABRBETT KSR ZEEYIR - MEEMETOEREEAEPRERANHE RATHEIE
/|$ :
. Discussed the indication of possible impairment with the

management and, where such indication were identified by
the management, assessed the impairment testing
performed by the management;

. HEREMNmAEERNAETR  NEEBEREHIR
ST I AT MR

. Tested the cash flows projections on whether they were
agreed to the budgets approved by the directors of the
Company and compared with actual results available up to
the report date;

¢ :Eualﬁiﬁi\//|h§%§ EU 73—5?;53 ﬁ&?ﬁ%ﬁt;ﬁg\]?ﬁ%_ﬁ 2

HEZWmE RN ERERETHE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREELRSEE

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

HeHEEZRE (F)

Management estimated the recoverable amounts of the
cash-generating unit of steel pipes using the value in use
model. The estimated value in use was dependent on
management’s determination on the Group’s future events
and its measures to improve its efficiency of cash flow
management, macroeconomic assumptions about future
demands of steel pipe products, the discount rate and
exchange rates as well as the production levels and
operating costs. These estimates were particularly
significant due to the uncertain economic outlook, product
price volatility, forecasted future production and market
demand. The outcome of impairment assessment can vary
significantly when different assumptions are applied.
ERERACAEERE MG HENIRSESBEMAF LK
SR MFFRAEEIAREEEY ESERKREHRK
EHROREEERE EE EEMNEERRARERZR
BB RR - MR RERARAEEKT EERRZRE -
BERCENS EMEREE  BARKEERETSEHR KT
WE ZERFLRERZ - BEMGZERTESEERAT
R MEREEER -

Relevant disclosures are included in note 2.4 “Summary of
significant accounting policies” and note 3 “Significant
accounting judgements and estimates” to the financial
statements.

FRBBEIHNVBERERMF242 [ FES T EEBE ] R
3z [EEZ gt HE RfhEt] -

TECCFEERE

HREZSZE@®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNNEEHREERER

. Challenged the appropriateness of the management
judgements and estimates used in the cash flows
projections, including the sales growth rates and gross
profit margins;

. HReREFAPCEANEEEHE RMEHESEREE
5 BREFEEERILENE

. Engaged an independent expert to assist us in challenging
the discount rates adopted in the value in use calculations
by reviewing its basis of calculations and comparing the
input data to market sources;

. ZEBUERMHETERBENEFERER I REARE
ETIS AR R E R BEEFERRANITERE

. Engaged the independent expert to assist us in assessing
the valuation methodology used and the appropriateness of
the key assumptions and checked on sample basis, the
accuracy and the relevance of the input data adopted in
management’s value in use calculations; and

. ZEBYERGIE ST EAEAMGESERBRRENE
Bl WAMESTARETREEAEEABERRANEA
BRI AR R

. Assessed the adequacy of the relevant disclosures in the
Group’s financial statements.

. At ERBEMBEHREREBRESSRD
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREELEE

Impairment of trade receivables

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade receivables
of gross carrying amount of RMB407,709,000, of which
impairment allowance of RMB28,853,000 was provided.
RZTB_—_F+-_A=+—H BEXE#HEZEIEUEFE
H#EAR407,709,0007T - Hi AR#28,853,0007T 2 1E
R ERE -

The calculation of the expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for
trade receivables, including the assessment of the
historical observed default rates and forecast economic
conditions involves significant management judgements
and estimates.

SAHEZESERVERZEHEESR ((RHAGEEEERD (24
HBREERINNENRREUNLBEMRR) - P RERNER
[& BT K fl &t e

Specific factors which management would consider include
the ageing of the balances, past collection history and
other available information related to the forecast economic
conditions. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
EREEZENARBRAZBEARKRR  ATEKGCEULE
SHEMABRANCBEGENEN -BEREERE EY
RIF M LI B R BB U -
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HREZSZE@®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNNEEHREERER

We performed the following procedures to address this matter:
ZEBITA TR T AR IR -

Reviewed and assessed the application of the Group’s policy
for calculating the ECL;
FHH RN BEEEEEREESBERNER

Evaluated techniques and methodology adopted by the
management in the ECL model against the requirements of
IFRS 9;

RIEER I B RELRFIRNMATE  FAEEEREREE
B R AE B AR R A B BT R 0%

Assessed the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information used by
management to form such judgements, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data, evaluating whether
the historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted based on
current economic conditions and forward-looking information
and examining the actual losses recorded during the
current financial year and assessing whether there was an
indication of management bias when recognising loss
allowances;

HEEEBHERERBAEGNEGEL HEEREEEER
RIZEE @A H E R B3R HUE 28 QO BUR M ER T -
B BEERRRRERE B GRE RATEIEERETHE
ENHEE UTREXAMBFELENERER  HHEER
FREESESEEEEBROOTR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREELRSEE

Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

E SN RN Z B E (&)

Relevant disclosures are included in note 2.4 “Summary of
significant accounting policies”, note 3 “Significant
accounting judgements and estimates” and note 21 “Trade
and bills receivables” to the financial statements.
EARBEINUBRRMFT242 X EGBEBRE] - Wi
Iz [EBEEAHE KGRI TE21 2 [E 5 IR K ek
R

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial

statements on 29 April 2022.

TECCFEERE

HREZSZE@®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNNEEHREERER

Inquired management for the status of each of the material
trade receivables past due as at year end and
corroborated explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as understanding ongoing
business relationship with the customers based on trade
records, checking historical and subsequent settlement
records of and other correspondence with the customers;
and

MEEESHANFEEEERHINERNE HRBRRNBER -
VAXFEREEEEENRE  PIMBEE ST HE
EPHBEXEBRER REEPNEL REELELEAR
HEFHEAMEA &

Checked, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2022 to the underlying
financial records and post year-end settlement to bank
receipts.

LHEFAREB8E T -_—_F+-_A=+—HBHNEZEK
AR SR BR R 15 00 R AR B B 75 R 8 T F AR B A& B SR T UK -

Hitb=18

AEEBE S —F+_A=T-HIFENGaH
BRROHZ 2R BEESL  ZRBEAR T ==
MA-tTHARZEGAMBERREREREER -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
hose risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

TECCFEERE

RN ERGEMBERRARENER

EEFNER  EHEAMBRRBEBRES T FERRK
FFEEERMERMMEMEAERBOLRGEERE - I
HABERESERZBERAMEZER 2RBMHRE - &
HER BT (EREBE) WME  BRULZIAREREE
EH -  BEETERARENATAEMEMALE £
FAREEMEE - SRRBESKFORE - BTEER
EREBBMERETOEZBEERFENERER
PR - $ARRFRAM T A B RFF SR EE AR 512 - IR A IETAH
FARRFRAL(E B SR E AR R I e B R A M HmREME
FYEH BV R TE - RIB BRR S R BUR AT AR (FE K o
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

REMRER GRS M BRRAZENET @
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY 2B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF REMBERREMBEHRREAENESE @
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with HEBEEARAEBRNERMS  EFETWESHY
governance, we determine those matters that were of most KEGR M BERENEZRAEE BMBKEREZ
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of BIH - EERZRBARERHAZEEIR  RIPEEE
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We BIATHEGSHEELARERE - R ERNG
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or AT EBEEBHRESHMEREBEFEMERD
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in AEERGEHBEEEN ARG BB e Rl
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should EERTHERERBEBZEAE-

not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CCTH CPA Limited HEXREEFHERDE
Certified Public Accountants HEEEED

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023 B T =F=A=1H
Ng Kam Fai RiRE

Practising Certificate Number: P06573 HEFERI - P06573

Unit 1510-1517,15/F., Tower 2 IR

Kowloon Commerce Centre OB EEK515%

No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung NEEZEHH D

New Territories, Hong Kong 2FE151£1510-1517 =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
REBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

=3 ARBT T ARETT

REVENUE ON 5 2,362,015 1,813,370
Cost of sales and services $HE R ARTE AR AN (1,891,392) (1,617,854)
Gross profit EF 470,623 195,516
Other income and gains E A A K Uz 5 238,743 1,580,778
Selling and distribution expenses HERDERAXT (55,062) (52,906)
Administrative expenses THEHR (245,826) (263,635)
Exchange gain/(loss), net &5 ks, (&518) B8 16,416 (33,476)
Other expenses EEMR 6 (209,786) (376,014)
Fair value loss on investment properties REWMEZ XN HEER 7 (8,000) (17,000)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment #1% 5 & &R &2 B E 7 — (596,765)
Finance costs BEKA 8 (44,643) (144,253)
Share of loss of a joint venture B —EE 2 RazEE 17 — (15,020)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B Al 0% R 7 162,465 277,225
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiE e, (BH) 11 569 (371,579)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, KRR EBANBLEEAFE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF =R (EE)

THE COMPANY 163,034 (94,354)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE RATEEAEEESR

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF &7, (BE)

THE COMPANY RMB RMB

AR®TT AR®TT

— Basic and diluted — EARREE 12 0.16 (0.09)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2022 2021
—E-—F == —ks
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, AATEEANEBGEREERF,(FHE)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY 163,034 (94,354)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME Hit2HE (FE) ki
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be — REEHIE A EE#T 7 Z R s 49
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent H 2 E (F5E) W -
periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign MEIINEEBEENELZ5
operations (68,152) 67,149

Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that REBENBURENR>EZREN
may be reclassified to profit or loss Hitt2mE (F1]) WEFE
in subsequent periods (68,152) 67,149

Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will not RE AR 5 T EFT 77 28 2 1B 7Y

be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent B2 E K (EE) :
periods:
Exchange differences on translation of the BREARRAVBREREINEEEED
Company’s financial statements into the N =5
presentation currency 10,541 (3,974)

Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that REEHEAETENR2EZREN
will not be reclassified to profit or loss Hitt2mEWK R (FHE) F8
in subsequent periods 10,541 (3,974)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FOR AFEHIRFEAHMEE
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (B8], ki (57,611) 63,175

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR AATREEAEEAEEZEWE
THE YEAR, ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF (F5|) #5E
THE COMPANY 105,423 (31,179)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R a B EIR R &

As at 31 December 2022 W —Z - —F+-HA=+—H

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KB 13 1,769,994 1,874,309
Investment properties wEYE 14 362,000 370,000
Right-of-use assets PRAEEE 15 646,013 661,172
Long term prepayments and deposits RHENRIERES 16 72,406 61,494
Investment in a joint venture R—HEEERARIZIRE 17 — —
Total non-current assets IEREBEERE 2,850,413 2,966,975
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Properties under development BERPYE 18 — 2,255,293
Completed properties held for sale SERREEE 19 2,212,824 385,203
Inventories FE 20 402,694 416,885
Trade and bills receivables B S RBER R EREE 21 378,856 503,106
Prepayments, other receivables and other TEATFRIE ~ B FE IR IE K
assets HEEE 22 679,102 1,125,353
Pledged and restricted bank balances EHEEEZREIRITE R 23 14,920 249,719
Cash and cash equivalents ReMB2EEY 23 16,128 20,588
3,704,524 4,956,147
Non-current asset classified as held for sale D EAFIERE ZIERBEE 34 — —
Total current assets mEEEAE 3,704,524 4,956,147
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBas
Trade and bills payables BHRNERRENER 24 636,069 1,289,635
Other payables and accruals Hofth fE AT B K FESHE A 25 838,326 693,026
Contract liabilities AHaE 26 704,255 1,351,558
Fixed rate bonds and notes FEEBEHFREE 27 85,330 88,930
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T ESRTTREMEE 28 880,409 881,394
Due to a director JENEERIE 39 390,195 449,111
Tax payable R R I8 43,823 25,844
Provision B 29 49,283 30,488
Total current liabilities mEAEEE 3,627,690 4,809,986
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 76,834 146,161
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAERRBAE
LIABILITIES 2,927,247 3,113,136
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A P BRI R

As at 31 December 2022 R - - —F+-H=+—H

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

=3 AR¥TT ARETT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T ERITREMEE 28 810,239 839,905
Deferred tax liabilities RLEHIEAE 30 294,289 349,578
Long-term tax payable RAEAFENBIIR 11 789,187 767,930
Government grants I8 478 B 31 102,593 330,207
Total non-current liabilities FERTEELE 1,996,308 2,287,620
Net assets BEFE 930,939 825,516
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of RATEBEAEGEER
the Company
Issued capital BEITIRA 32 88,856 88,856
Reserves (ke 33 842,083 736,660
Total equity T AARE 930,939 825,516
CHEN CHANG CHEN ZHAO NIAN
[c =t BRIKE
Director Director
EaEa EaEa
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERBS R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AR AEENEE
Statutory
Issued Asset  Contributed Capital reserve Exchange
capital Share revaluation surplus* reserve* fund* Accumulated  fluctuation
(note 32)  premium* reserve®  (note (a)  (note (b)) (note (c)) losses* reserve* Total
BRIRA EE RAER ArRf EELARE Ex
(Wi32)  RGEE* EfEEE*  (WE@) (b))  (HEc) B2HER  RBRE 3t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥Tn AR%ETR ARETn AR%TR ARETR AR%Tn AR%Tn ARET:R
At 1 January 2022 RZEZZ5-f-H 88,856 767,097 612,661 224,589 53,934 274185 (1,240,775) 44,969 825,516
Profit for the year KEERH = = = - - - 163,034 - 163,034
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ AEEH{2ENE
Exchange differences on translation of NENBEBELNERZE
foreign operations - - - - - - - (68,152) (68,152)
Exchange differences on translation BERRAHBERZNEHE
of the Company’s financial statements EAMEREE
into the presentation currency = = = = = = = 10,541 10,541
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERARELE - - - - - - 163,034 (57,611) 105,423
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+ZR=+-8 88,856 767,097 612,661 224,589 53,934 274185  (1,077,741) (12,642) 930,939
Attributable to owners of the Company
RAREENES
Statutory
Issued Asset  Contributed Capital reserve Exchange
capital Share  revaluation surplus* reserve’ fund* Accumulated  fluctuation
(note 32) premium* reserve® (note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)) losses* reserve” Total
BEARE EE  EREH  AXREB EEfER Ex
(Mi32)  RiyaE  shEE*  BEE)  (Ee)  (HEe) 2368 RIEE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARBTR AR%TR AR®TT ARETR ARETR ARETR AR¥T:R
At 1 January 2021 RZZ--§-f-A 88,856 767,097 612,661 224,589 53,934 275,523 (1,147,759) (18,206) 856,695
Loss for the year rEEEE - - - - - - (94,354) — (94,354)
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ AFEH {2 ENE
Exchange differences on translation of RENEEXBEENEL 2R
foreign operations — — — - - — — 67,149 67,149
Exchange differences on translation BEARAGBRRZIES
of the Company’s financial statements EANERZE
into the presentation currency — — - - - — — (3,974) (3,974)
Total comprehensive loss for the year rEEREFRLE - - - - - — (94,354) 63,175 (31,179)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RHEAR - - - - - (1,338) 1338 - -
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-F+ZA=+-8 88,856 767,097 612,661 224,589 53,934 274185 (1,240,775) 44,969 825,516
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREaBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

Notes:

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an
owner-occupied property to an investment property carried at fair
value.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMB842,083,000 (2021: RMB736,660,000)
statement of financial position.

in the consolidated

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
the Group Reorganisation before the Company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 2010, and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

Capital reserve represents the excess capital paid over the registered
capital of Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co., Ltd. by Lessonstart
Enterprises Limited.

In accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are
required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory net profit after tax
(after offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory reserve fund.
When the balance of an entity’'s reserve fund reaches 50% of its
registered capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory
reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to
increase the registered capital. However, such balance of the
statutory reserve fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of

the registered capital after such usage.

i -

(c)

ERYEARAGEEERRAFEINRNIREMEME
TEREEMGEE -

ZERBRAREGAVBRARTEERBARYK
842,083,0007T (=T = —4% : ARK¥736,660,0007T) °

AEENEHRRERARANR_ZE—SFEFBBAR
ZMERRAE ([BRAM]) LAl RIFEESHEMKE
M8 A RO R EEEAR B ETIMEAIRR M E
ERER -

ERRHEREANZESBEERARAXNNERABEER
WITHMEBRARAEMERN SR -

REBEHEARKMBE ([HE]) RADE - ARBE R B
MM BEAR  ARRREFEEEF M RHEBE
FENIMEERR M10%BNEERAES - E—EE
BOATEDEREDEZMERNS0%E  AIEEESR
BERIOEELNES  EZERARSTANKHBESFE
IR RIBMEMER - AW - FEERATES AR Lt
RERARNGE  KREREARFEMELRN25% -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2022 2021
—E_— —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

=3 ARBT T ARETT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETBFERSRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B F AT 4 ) 162,465 277,225
Adjustments for: RPN B IEFE
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary s — B ATz s 5 — (11,728)
Bank interest income |ITH B WA 5 (3,741) (2,576)
Subsidy income from the PRC mh B T Y 8 G U A
government 5 (231,636) (13,193)
Gain on resumption of land use rights T E R T AE
by the local authorities s 5 — (1,540,336)
Finance costs BERA 8 44,643 144,253
Share of loss of a joint venture B —EaERaEzEE 17 — 15,020
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BERERETE
equipment 13 61,432 50,051
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 14,431 28,089
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BERERBZ
and equipment, net (Wax) K18 - F58 (1,752) 9,425
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets PEFREEEZES 6 — 292,780
Write-off of property, plant and equipment W R &R 225 78
Write-down of inventories to net realisable WORTF & 2= Al & 1R FE
value 6 = 11,443
Fair value loss on investment properties REWMEZ A FEEE 14 8,000 17,000
Impairment of property, plant and Y - HE REERE
equipment = 596,765
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 EWERFURE 21 24,225 7,183
Impairment of other receivables H b FE UK IERUE 22 2,184 —
80,476 (118,521)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD /(8 m) 14,191 (12,619)
Decrease/(increase) in properties under BRBPMERLD, (LM
development 2,255,293 (190,733)
Decrease in completed properties held for SEEEEMER D
sale (1,827,621) (19,781)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables B 5 MR R R R TR 100,025 1,249
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, other TR FRIE ~ Bt FE U R IE K H A
receivables and other assets BERL,/($Em) 284,904 (979,766)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged and restricted =K KR HEITLELRE L,
bank balances () 234,799 (227,007)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills B RNERRENZEE
payables A,/ # i (653,566) 675,124
Decrease in contract liabilities, other payables & #) & & + E & {208 & fE =t
and accruals 2 RR D (353,052) (10,919)
Increase/(decrease) in provision BEEm O D) 18,795 (24,091)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2022 2021
—E_— —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

=3 ARBT T ARETT

Cash generated from/(used in) operations KERTR (TR RS 154,244 (907,064)
Interest received 2 F B 3,741 2,576
Interest paid EAF B (57) (109)
Corporate income tax paid B ERER (335) (31)
Land appreciation tax paid BT LA (3,525) —

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating BETBRE (A BESRE

activities =2} 154,068 (904,628)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHMBHRERE

ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWE WELLZHEELR

equipment (13,312) (37,801)
Purchases of items of right-of-use assets BECAEEEER — (31,162)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE  HENMEZEEE TG

plant and equipment KIA 57,722 51,395
Proceeds from disposal of items of right-of- H&EFMEEEHER FEHRAE

use assets 150,312 —
Considerations received from disposal of a HE—RHBARERE

subsidiary 35 = 8,511
Receipt in advance from disposal of non- HESHEARBEHE ZIERDEE

current asset classified as held for sale B R IE 41,378 —
Decrease in an amount due from a related JiE W R Bt T SR IR

party = 84,522
Refund of capital injection from a potential BEREERNTARK

investor (50,967) —
Receipt of government grants WS BB A 6 B 31 4,022 7,389
Land resumption costs paid B U R R AR (150,986) —
Receipt of compensation for land resumption W ER + i Ui i+ > %8 18 =X = 2,479,109
Net cash flows from investing activities RETEMBREREFHE 38,169 2,561,963
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERERE

ACTIVITIES
New bank loans and other borrowings BT ERREMEER 523,585 2,115,354
Repayment of bank loans and other BERITERREAER

borrowings (554,814) (3,940,562)
Proceeds from issue of bonds BITESFMERIE 6,013 1,662
Repayment of bonds and notes EEEFLEE (19,450) (57,912)
Interest paid 2AIFE (44,586) (144,144)
(Decrease)/increase in an amount due to a  JERTEEFHIE G4 ) /&N

director (58,916) 318,343
Principal portion of lease payments MENRZAEE D (934) (1,897)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEZEFFAREHRETHE (149,102) (1,709,156)
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HERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE
2022 2021
—E-C T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR® TR ARBTT
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BR&RREZEWH M (GRD)

CASH EQUIVALENTS FE 43,135 (51,821)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 4MNEF|RE S~ 2 2% (E (47,595) 52,943
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of  F#H & NESEEY

year 20,588 19,466
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRARSERESEFED 16,128 20,588
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND B&RRESZEUNEHRIN

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances He RIRITER 23 16,128 20,588
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 9 January 2008 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
involved in the following principal activities:

. manufacture and sale of welded steel pipes and the
provision of related manufacturing services; and

. property development and investment.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the

ultimate holding company of the Company is Bournam Profits

Limited (“Bournam”), which was incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Company name

DREH

Lessonstart Enterprises Limited

(“Lessonstart”)

MEEsEARAR(HEE])

Lucknow Consultants Limited

(“Lucknow”)

Lucknow Consultants Limited

(I'Lucknow )

TECCFEERE

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
ML
EUNE-E 3 b

British Virgin Islands

REBRIES

British Virgin Islands

RBREXES

Particulars of issued
and paid-up capital
ERTR
BRRANFE

300 shares of
US$1 each

300/
BREE1ETRG

10 shares of

US$1 each

10A%
BREETIETRG

AAREEER
WIRBAARMBERRERR A (TARE]) R
BT\ F-ANAREHASHSEME2ER
AR (—AA—FEIFER - LA RBIDE
HeHsEMR I ARRENERAR

ARRREMBRAR (RBIAEE]) T2REN
TEBRD

. SUERHEIRZINE RITHAARRIERT
P54

. MEZERIIKRE -

BEERA ARANERAREEEERARA
Bournam Profits Limited ([Bournam]) * %2 &)

TA B3 8 e 2B B RE M A AL

ERMEBARZES
ARBEEMBRB ZFEBENAT :

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company  Principal activities

b NN
EERETSL ETEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE L
% %
100 — Investment holding
100 — KEZRK

— 100 Investment holding

— 100 WEERK
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AREBER @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BRHMBATZER (&)

ARRAEBMBARZFHENT : (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Continued)

Place of

Company name

incorporation/
registration
and business

Particulars of issued
and paid-up capital

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Principal activities

ML BRTR N
NGRS AR R i B BRRANFEE BEREESL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE L
% %
Crown Central Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares — 100 Trading of steel pipes
(“Crown Central”) of HK$1 each
KPEERRAR (K] N 1,000A% — 100 HEES
BREEVETEER
Chu Kong Steel Pipe Group Co., Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary — 100 Investment holding and
Ltd. (“CKSPG") shares of HK$1 each trading of steel pipes
KIMESERRAA Bk 100,000 - 100 REZREEEES

(RIMESE]) BREETETEER

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co., The PRC/ HK$1,957,070,700 — 100 Manufacture and sale of

Ltd. (*PCKSP”)

Mainland China

welded steel pipes

EBWIMERRAR hEhEAM 1,957,070,7007% 7t — 100 HERHERENE
([HEBWIRE])
Guangzhou Pearl River Petrol- The PRC/ RMB4,870,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Fittings Co., Ltd. Mainland China petrol fittings
BMEZHRAACEHBRAF LR A i AR 4,870,0007T — 100 FERHERCEN
Guangzhou Pearl River OCTG The PRC/ RMB18,860,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. Mainland China oil country tubular
goods
BMNZHTRAMEERRAT B, B A AR #18,860,0007T — 100 BERHERMEN
Guangzhou Pearl River The PRC/ RMB8,980,000 — 100 Steel pipe casing and
Petroleum Steel Pipe Coating Mainland China lining services
Co., Ltd.
BNZHRARARENRERART FE/ HEAN AR #8,980,0007T — 100 H0E B R NE 2 B IR TS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AREBEH @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BRHBATZER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RARREEWBRATZFBET « (&)

follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration Particulars of issued equity attributable
Company name and business and paid-up capital to the Company  Principal activities
ML BRTR NN
NGRS EUNE-E 3 BRRANFEE BEREESL FTEEH
Direct Indirect
HE L
% %

Guangzhou Pearl River The PRC/ HK$50,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Petroleum Steel Pipe Co., Ltd. Mainland China welded steel pipes
(“GPRPS”)

BMNZ AR mAEFRAT hE/hEAM 50,000,0005% 7T — 100 HERHEREHE
(TEMB IR A mHE )

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe The PRC/ RMB1,110,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Lianyungang) Co., Ltd. Mainland China welded steel pipes
(“PCKSP (Lianyungang)”)

FEWIHE EZR)AR hE/hEAM AR #1,110,000,0007T — 100 HERHEREHE
RAN(EBWINE
(#EE#)D)

Guangzhou Panyu Chu Kong The PRC/ RMB20,600,000 — 100 Steel pipe casing and
Hualong Petroleum Steel Pipe Mainland China lining services
Anti-Corrosion Co., Ltd.

BT EBITERAMH B, B A AR #20,600,0007T — 100 SHE DR AEZE RS
ENRER AT

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe The PRC/ HK$1,088,402,072 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. (“PCKSP Mainland China welded steel pipes
(Zhuhai)”)

FERWIHE KB ARAF B, B A 1,088,402,0727% 7T — 100 BERHERENE

((EBHTHE (58)))
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AREBER @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BRHMBATZER (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RARREEWBATZFBET « (&)

follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Percentage of

Particulars of issued equity attributable

Company name

and business

and paid-up capital

to the Company

Principal activities

HmEL BETR YN
NGRS B S 30k BEREAMFE EERETSL ETEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE L3
% %

Lianyungang Kaidi Heavy The PRC/ RMB470,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Equipment Technology Co., Mainland China steel pipe equipment
Ltd. (“Kaidi”) and metallurgy

equipment

BEBYFEIRRERAA R i AR ¥470,000,0007T — 100 E3ERIEEMERE R
(s ) Ea L

Lianyungang Pearl River Petrol- The PRC/ HK$303,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of

Fittings Co., Ltd. (“LYG Petrol-

Mainland China

tubular piles

Fittings”)

EERDRAOLEHARAR  HE/PEAG 303,000,000/% 7 — 100 RERHEEN
EERALEN]D

Lianyungang Zhugang Coating The PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 100 Steel pipe casing and
Engineering Co., Ltd. Mainland China lining service
(“LYG Zhugang Coating”)

EEERAMBRETRAERAR HE/ PEA AR #10,000,0007T — 100 SHE DR AEZE RS
(TEEHHRMHE)

Guangdong Pearl Steel The PRC/ RMB50,000,000 — 100 Property development
Investment Management Co., Mainland China and investment
Ltd. (“Pearl Steel Investment”)

BRUAMIREERBRAR ([ZM HE/ HEAM AR #50,000,0007T - 100 MEFABERERE
KE])

Nanjing Rongyu Group Co., Ltd. The PRC/ RMB75,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
(“Nanjing Rongyu Group”) Mainland China welded steel products

HRANEEARAR ((BHREW T8/ HEAM AR #75,000,0007T — 100 ZERHEREMAMER
£8))

Nanjing City Qixia Hill Roll The PRC/ RMB20,316,500 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Steeling Co., Ltd. Mainland China screw-thread steels

BRmEE L RERAR hEHEA AR #20,316,5007T — 100 BUERHE RN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AFIREEER @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BRMBATZER (&)

ARRAEBMBARZFHENT : (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Particulars of issued

Company name and paid-up capital Principal activities

MR BRTR PN
NCECE EUNE-E 3 BRRANFEE BEREESL FTEEH
Direct Indirect
HE L
% %
Chu Kong Steel Pipe (Nanjing)  The PRC/ RMB24,423,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. Mainland China welded steel products
HIME (AR BRAA hE/ BN, AR 24,423,000 — 100 RERHEREMMER
Yunfu Zhugang Technology The PRC/ RMB40,000,000 — 100 Technical service
Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China (former activity:
(formerly known as Guangzhou property
Zhu Gang Property management)
Management Co., Ltd.)
ERREMRERBRAA hE R EAM A K #40,000,0007T - 100 H iR
(BIFE BN BRI EE 12 (AU - MEER)
BRRA)
Zhuhai Zhugang Wharf Co., Ltd. The PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 100 Port services
Mainland China
KERMBRNRAERAF hEhEAM AR #10,000,0007T — 100 & AR
Chu Kong Steel Pipe (Yunfu) The PRC/ RMB35,344,360 — 100 Sale of welded steel
Co., Ltd. Mainland China pipes
WINME (EZ)ARAA hE/hEAM AR #35,344,3607T - 100 HEREMRE

RN EERBRIBZZEFNEEIBRLE
BEEFENIZHD Z2ARAMBARAE -
BEERR NHEMMBRRFBEREHIIRS
RITEK e

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include
all International Financial Reporting standards,
(“IASs”) and
interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”), and

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

International Accounting Standards

the disclosure

They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current

ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

2.
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EXREEE

21

mAEE

AEBEGEEMBRERTIRIEER S ER
e (ARG EIEEE]) ARM
XA B RS R (TBIBR M 5 5 2 )
(BERBEEMABERYBREER  BRE
FHERI(TEIRERHER)) k2B REEA
BRI 2 B EREE - HTIAE LA

EPRR - HEIREMRIR A FETER
ZEFBREAARE(TARED 25
BRBIAEN  AEBERZEERE
T -

n \ég;}g

RAEVBRREERARERE_T _—
TZAZ=+T—HALFEZHBRSRK - HE
NEEAR QB EEXEEENZER (B4
RERBLER) EASEREBESHARE
ZEEREHRAEE R R HAER -
VEEHAREHREREENZELORS
B (NRARN A EAEEENEFIEER
BHRZHEREY) IRRAEEEE KR
BHR G-

EANREERAMEEFINREERK
ZHRZRIALUENE  RFGEAEE
HRREHRELRERNE  AEEE
BFFERBEEERER B

(a) HEZBREHRZEMBERBEAZ
BHRRYE:

(b) HMANLHELEZEMN: Rk

(c) ARBZREENREEREE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intragroup assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and

over a subsidiary, it

liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
recorded

translation differences in equity; and

recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or

liabilities.

TECCFEERE

2.

BEAREFHEE @)
21 REEXE(HF)
HEEE(F)

B X B B 7% R 5k B0 SR 5 HA R B KX R AR
Rl YRA-BNEABRRER - -HER
A EERAEERGEHEZ BEGS
AE BEETEREE LRI ZB /L -

EakHEMemiENSARBIHEBER
AEBBRREE ANIFFEEER @ BIE
RS BOFERE S B BAER -TEER
BASESKERRBZEER S 2EE
NEARIMEENRAE - #m - WA -~ FX
EREREGNEFEATER 2R -

i = E RAFRBE R E Xt =845 6 A
RZ-HRRZALBREL AEEGEH
AHEERTEGIREE R - WEKEIZH
HzWBRAREAREREHUREIRZ S
N

HAEBEREEMB AR 2T - QK
IFEROZWBRAZEE (REHE) &
B1E - (i) E AT IR 2= 2 BREE K (i) 7
BENREZ R EREZRE  RERGOE
WREBZAFE  ()FTRETAEEZA
B R (ii)Em P ER A EE 2 BRI E
Bk EREMEEKREANERZASE
EEEHDEFDEEBHIRBTEN (W
WA  EERASEEHEERE D EHBEES
BEMBERZEEER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2022, the Group maintained cash
and cash equivalents of approximately RMB16,128,000
(2021: RMB20,588,000). The Group may not have
adequate cash flows to pay creditors on due dates. As
at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded net current
assets of approximately RMB76,834,000 (2021:
RMB146,161,000). In view of these circumstances, the
directors of the Company have considered the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of finance in assessing whether the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to continue as a

going concern.

In order to improve the Group’s liquidity and cash flows
to sustain the Group as a going concern, the Group
implemented or is in the process of implementing the
following measures:

(1) Active negotiation with banks to obtain
adequate bank borrowings to finance the
Group’s operations
Subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this report, the Group obtained the new
loan of RMB50,000,000 with related bank. The
Group will continue to actively negotiate with the
banks for the renewal of the Group’s borrowings
when they fall due or obtain additional sources of
finance to meet the Group’s working capital and
financial requirements in the near future. The
directors of the Company have evaluated all the
relevant facts available to them and are of the
opinion that they have a good track record or
relationship with the banks which will enhance the
Group’s ability to renew the Group’s loans upon
expiry.

2.
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BEAREFHEE @)
21 REEXE(HF)
HFEAERE

RZZBEZZF+ZA=1+—8 K~EEH#H#
BRHSLRASEEBEWAHOARE
16,128,000 (=T = —F : AR
20,588,0007T) - NEE N EIA AT BER A
FTEHREREXNTERA RZ2ZT=
—HF+ZA=+—8 AEEHBRHE
EFEHARET6,834,000C (=8 = —
F: ANR#146,161,00000) - ERZE 1B
o ARAREEEEREAEBZRARRE
B RFRBEUREATARERIR - AT
AEBREHEABENVIEERIFELE -

REEAEENRBETRRERE - &
AEBBURELE AEECERKE
B AT

(1) HERTETERGE - LERT
EBIRITIEN + BAEE ) EE
EHRES
R-E-_—F+=-A=+—H%LKE
ZAREAH  AEERBBARTE
B EHARS50,000,0007T © A&
E s R ER AP
RE RS EENESTEIINES TR
IR EREERTAG RN EEE R
R BER - AAREREFHES
AFANMEEEEE  TRAKS
BIRTTE RFMEECHREE &
P AR E IR RS EERE
FREVBE S ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREITEE @)
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HmEEE (HE)
Going concern basis (Continued) FEAEEE (&)
(2) Improvement of the Group’s operating cash (2) HEAXFEMKERETE
flows
The Group is taking measures to tighten cost REFEFRREZRSHEEENS KA
control over various production costs and SE K AE SIS I - DAEEA T K%
expenses with an aim to attain profitable and MEERERE - FMMIEHARELE
positive cash flow operations. The eventual REBIEETRER  BEEEMFE
outcome of the above measures is inherently EM o

uncertain and cannot be estimated with
reasonable certainty.

The directors of the Company have prepared a ARRERCHFEAEEREHME
cash flow forecast for the Group which covers a HRBFTZE A MR e REE
period of twelve months from the end of the Al o RIS BT EBHRIER
reporting period. Taking into account the positive EREARFEHEAEENRBERE
cash flows from the Group’s steel pipes business HMERE  EFRALAEEKAGBR
and the continued sale of the Group’s existing Mg EE ABNECEMTERE
real estate projects, the directors considered that THIMPBEE - At BRFE
the Group will have sufficient working capital to LE R ERHAREBMNIGE VR
finance its operations and meet its financial o

obligations as and when they fall due.

Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements

of the Group have been prepared on a going

concern basis.

Should the going concern assumption be W ELENREILTMEE - RIAT 8
inappropriate, adjustments may have to be made EEERABRUARMREER AR
to reflect the situation that assets may need to be JEERIRERE MR ARABRNERE
realised at amounts other than those which are BIMAIEN o IbIN - REE A REAR
currently recorded in the consolidated statement AR EEZE— P EBIELE
of financial position. In addition, the Group may % REERBEERIERBEED
have to provide for any further liabilities that REFHEARBEEMRBAER -
might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets ZERR BN BN TS M@K
and non-current liabilities as current assets and MR .

current liabilities, respectively. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T _—F+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures
The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts
— Costs of Fulfilling a
Contract
Annual Improvements to Amendments to IFRS 1,
IFRS Standards 2018-2020 IFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41

The nature and the impact of the new and revised
IFRSs are described below:

(a) Reference to the Conceptual Framework
— Amendments to IFRS 3
The amendments replace a reference to a
previous version of the I|ASB’s Conceptual
Framework with a reference to the current version
issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements.
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EXRSTEE @
B BREEBREKE
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%‘ FRIEET A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREITEE @)
(Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 22 EBIFBREESBHRIFEEHEH)

disclosures (Continued)

(a) Reference to the Conceptual Framework (a) HBEZELZEL — BEHMH
— Amendments to IFRS 3 (Continued) HEEREIFANSTT A ()
The amendments add an exception to the ZEER AN E BRI GRS ERIES
recognition principle of IFRS 3 Business SREF S FFR TR IR BIFTIE — 18 f1 5
Combinations to avoid the issue of potential ‘day B AR BB R g5
2 gains or losses arising for liabilites and AIE37REE IARBBERIAEBE
contingent liabilities that would be within the SERMBERERELZEY — 28
scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities FHRBE(WEBES) HEAWY
and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies, if BEMKABEMSIBNEBEIEZ
incurred separately. The exception requires KIS EERE - ZOIINEEE
entities to apply the criteria in 1AS 37 or IFRIC B2 Rl fE R BIR & 5T 42 A1 38 37 5% sk B
21, respectively, instead of the Conceptual BRI BEREREEZEYS — RES2
Framework, to determine whether a present FANZEEREBSIELR - UETER
obligation exists at the acquisition date. WEBHESFEEMET -
The amendments also add a new paragraph to ZEEFT AN BER I B EERE
IFRS 3 to clarify that contingent assets do not IR — BT EE - UBEBRAE
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. ETRFERYE B HmERNER -
In accordance with the transitional provisions, the RIBBERY  NREBEEHZFBEAR
Group applies the amendments prospectively, i.e., EITHIREMRER e X ERZEE
to business combinations occurring after the RIARERE mE MR (PnER
beginning of the annual reporting period in which HER) BEMEBAO -
it first applies the amendments (the date of initial
application).
These amendments had no impact on the HRREAN EEEBRZFEEI A
consolidated financial statements of the Group as EAMKAEE  BEIKABE -
there were no contingent assets, liabilities or HMEZF BRI RN AR EE 2 76 TR
contingent liabilities within the scope of these R EmEE o

amendments that arose during the period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(b)

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use — Amendments to
IAS 16 Leases

The amendment prohibits entities from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment, any proceeds of the sale of items
produced while bringing that asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the
proceeds from selling such items, and the costs

of producing those items, in profit or loss.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the
Group applies the amendments retrospectively
only to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented when the entity
first applies the amendments (the date of initial
application).

These amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as
there were no sales of such items produced by
property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREITEE @)
(Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 22 EBIFBREESBHRIFEEHEH)

disclosures (Continued)

(c) Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a (c) BEEH — BITEHNZHEX —
Contract — Amendments to IAS 37 BB &5 E R E 37 H 55T K
An onerous contract is a contract under which the BEEHOREABITEAOTHRBAH
unavoidable of meeting the obligations under the EEZAAER KA (BIAEEE
contract costs (i.e., the costs that the Group HEEAMEERPOKA)BIBE
cannot avoid because it has the contract) exceed HIRZ AN T BB Z & EMmNE
the economic benefits expected to be received 7 o
under it.
The amendments specify that when assessing FZIERT AR - EREEHEREE
whether a contract is onerous or loss-making, an MEAEER - BEH 2 ARRE
entity needs to include costs that relate directly to HERIRBHENEEEBERERAONK
a contract to provide goods or services including R BEEERA(MHNEZALR
both incremental costs (e.g., the costs of direct MR AR EE R EEEEZBE
labour and materials) and an allocation of costs IR A DB (Pl EITE BT A 2R
directly related to contract activities (e.g., HEHOINERGANBTEREENK
depreciation of equipment used to fulfil the ) o —MERITHAANANEE O EE
contract and costs of contract management and BEEBTTEA - BRIEZFHR AR
supervision). General and administrative costs do RS KX ZEF HUE -
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded
unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract.
These amendments had no impact on the ARSIV ERETH2EE
consolidated financial statements of the Group as BER - MZIEET RNYREE 2 47
there were no contracts for which it had not A BHmRIWMEE -

fulfilled all of its obligations at the beginning of
the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(d)

(e)

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards —
Subsidiary as a first-time adopter

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects
to apply paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1 to measure
cumulative translation differences using the
amounts reported in the parent's consolidated
financial statements, based on the parent's date
of transition to IFRS, if no adjustments were
made for consolidation procedures and for the
effects of the business combination in which the
parent acquired the subsidiary. This amendment
is also applied to an associate or joint venture
that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1.
This amendment had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as
it is not a first-time adopter.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in
the ‘10 per cent’ test for derecognition of
financial liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial
liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. There is
IAS 39
Recognition and

no similar amendment proposed for
Financial Instruments:
Measurement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAREHEE®@
(Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)
(e) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in (e) EIREIBHEERFEIHREMT

22 B BRSFRKE @)

TECCFEE

the “10 per cent’ test for derecognition of
financial liabilities (Continued)

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the
Group applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies the amendment
(the date of initial application).

This amendment had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as
there were no modifications of the Group’s
financial instruments during the period.

lllustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16

The amendment to illustration example 13
accompanying IFRS 16 removes from the fact
pattern a reimbursement relating to leasehold
improvements, as the example had not explained
clearly whether the reimbursement would meet the
definition of a lease incentives in IFRS 16.

This amendment had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as
it did not have any payments from the lessor
relating to leasehold improvements during the
reporting period.

IAS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair
value measurements

The amendment removes the requirement in
paragraph 22 of IAS 41 that entities exclude cash
flows for taxation when measuring the fair value
of assets within the scope of IAS 41.

This amendment had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as
it did not have assets in scope of IAS 41 as at
the reporting date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T _—F+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2,

(Continued)
2.3 Issued but not yet effective international

EXEFBER@®

23 CHEMEERERZERMBEREE

financial reporting standards Al
The Group has not applied the following new and RIEEVBHRERY ANEBTEERIAT

revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet B AR 1B 18 R A B2 BT ET I A (& 5T B PR B

effective, in these financial statements. THHRE AR o

Amendments to IFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of BRI B mEER RREEZHEAE A
IAS 28 (2011) Assets between an 105 KB BENAZELES
Investor and its FEER JEAEES
Associate or Joint EVELACTIES
Venture? (ZE——%)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’ RIS EER R4
FATH
Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’ * BRI E &R Ry
FITHIBE A
Amendments to IFRS 17 Initial Application of IFRS BRI EER 215 EFE R E
17 and IFRS 9 — FATREFT A ERIFE 175 R BB
Comparative BB &R E IR
Information’ — HREH
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale B EI S EER EAMOHHEESRE?
and Leaseback? 5!5 165k IEE] A
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities Re TR RS IETE B B S
as Current or %1ﬁ1aﬂ$ ([ZFE=FFKET
Non-current (the “2020 A))zs
Amendment’)? °
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Re &R WER BB B
Covenants (the 2022 F1RIEFT A ([ZFEZZFEF74))?
Amendment’)?
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Re &R BEEIHE
and IFRS Practice Policies’ %15}%& X
Statement 2 B s E ER
EBAEE2R
f ZHEN
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Re TR Bi A B EE
Estimates’ %STF EHEN
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to REET R HE—XGEFHAER
Assets and Liabilities 125 EFT AR B E1GR B IR

arising from a Single
Transaction’
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective international

financial reporting standards (Continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
for adoption

4 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued
in June 2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS
39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

5 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the
effective date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and
in 1AS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
(2011) was removed by the IASB in January 2016 and
a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective international
financial reporting standards (Continued)
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The 2020
Amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The 2020 Amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The 2020 Amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
However, an entity that applies the 2020 Amendments
early is also required to apply the 2022 Amendments,
and vice versa. The 2020 Amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants clarify how to treat liabilities that are subject
to covenants to be complied with, at a date subsequent
to the reporting period. The 2022 Amendments improve
the information an entity provides when its right to
defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months
is subject to compliance with covenants. The 2022
Amendments clarify that only covenants with which an
entity must comply on or before the reporting date will
affect a liability’s classification as current or non-
current. The 2022 Amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall
be applied retrospectively. Earlier application of the
2022 Amendments is permitted. The 2022 Amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

2.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective international

financial reporting standards (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information

included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 provide
nonmandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
IFRS Practice Statement 2 is

non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments

the amendments to

is not necessary. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the amendments on the Group’s accounting
policy disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T _—F+_A=+—RHILFE

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective international

financial reporting standards (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined as
monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
The

amendments are effective for annual reporting periods

and inputs to develop accounting estimates.
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of
that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at
the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or
other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied
prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements.

2.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investment in a joint venture is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of a joint venture is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investment in the joint venture, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of the joint venture is included as part of the
Group’s investment in a joint venture.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T _—F+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREIEE @

(Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERMBE (H#)
(Continued)
Investment in a joint venture (Continued) REELATZRE (&)
If an investment in a joint venture becomes an MEREERAIZIREZKREEERFZ
investment in an associate or vice versa, the retained WE(RZIA)  AIRBES T TUER
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment HFE R -RBREBERERETEA
continues to be accounted for under the equity method. R -EHMAEBAT REAEHBER
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence AMERNTE NG SR L EIEHM
over the associate or joint control over the joint BRT  AEBIZEAFEFENERE
venture, the Group measures and recognises any FRFIERIEE BB RAIHEERFREK
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference FERZE NN HARE %Uﬂﬁﬁ’lﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬂ
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint HIEERNEMSRENAFTEZENE
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control MZEEIRERANER

and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill EBEHREE

Business combinations are accounted for using the ¥BAMRAWEEAR #EZ o RED
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is LR ATERTE  ZATFTEAR
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the SEEERCEE  AEBEREWES 28
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets EHEAEREZBR  RAEERBREE
transferred by the Group, liabilites assumed by the W R EGEMETRERNKERR A
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the FEBE NEEBEOMHP KEBEESR
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for %EJ«X’A$T§@Z?&H§ZB§%_—J?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ”ﬁ?i%ﬁ
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, E’Wéfﬁtmﬁw CETE RIS 5 R FE IR AR R
the Group elects whether to measure the (Efﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁ%%\ I TR A AR
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present THRRIELE OIS ERNEETFE) - I
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a f&tE s —DEME D TR A FETE -
proportionate share of net assets in the event of LK B B A B AR PO EE A R SR B o

liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business EMEN—AEDREERE —HER
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes BAR—IBEERE mMMEHEEED
an input and a substantive process that together MEE N BERERME  AEBRAEED K
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. IR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREITEE @)
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERME(#)
(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill EBEHREE (#)

(Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% R 3k Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREIEE @
(Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERMBE (H#)

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and
derivative financial instruments at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREIEE @
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERMBE (H#)
(Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued) RFEE (&)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties, goodwill, non-current
asset classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T _—F+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(ii)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan

for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T - —F+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2,
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

EXEFBER@®

24 FESHEEHBE @)

Related parties (Continued) BES (%)
(b)  (Continued) (b)y (#&)
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled (vi) FZEEEMH(a)EATMATES K
by a person identified in (a); HEZES
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (viiy R @)()BFFLATHZERSE
influence over the entity or is a member of EATENNEZER (K%
the key management personnel of the entity EBROERADFEETREK
(or of a parent of the entity); and 8K
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of (vii) ZEBNKAETMAEEKER
which it is a part, provides key REEEE? }\EHW&%$%
management personnel services to the BN SE SN
Group or to the parent of the Group.
Property, plant and equipment and ¥ BMERZGERITE

depreciation

Y BB REEE (EEIRRRIN AR
WEGTINERERIREEBEAR - W% -
HEREZEBEBEENKNABDEEBEERT
ol & EZE BT BB EEMR KB
HEETTHIRA o

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and ME BMELSBEHERAEERELED
equipment have been put into operation, such as A flngERERS  —RREEH
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the B Bm&P IR - WiED#RIRE - A

statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% R 3k Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREIEE @
(Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERMBE (H#)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives and residual values used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings

BF

Plant and machinery

B 5= % % 23

Office and other equipment
W= R EMERE

Motor vehicles

nE

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREITEE @)
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERME(#)
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and ¥ BMERZERITE (#)

depreciation (Continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction, which are stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and are not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as right-of-use
asset which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of
the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T _—F+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREIEE @
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERMBE (H#)
(Continued)
Investment properties (Continued) REY¥ (&)

For a transfer from investment properties to
owner-occupied properties or inventories, the deemed
cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair
value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
for owned property and/or accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Right-of-use
assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to
the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of
the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer
from inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and
its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held
for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sales transaction rather
than through continuing use. For this to be the case,
the asset or disposal group must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such
assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly
probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
classified as a disposal group are reclassified as held
for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a
non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREITEE @)
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERME(#)

(Continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held
for sale (Continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:
Leasehold land 10 to 50 years
Buildings 2 to 3 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

2. BERSFHBEM®

24 FESHEEHBE @)

HE (&)
KEFEREABENA (B)

(a)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREITEE @)
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERME(#)
(Continued)
Leases (Continued) HE (&)
Group as a lessee (Continued) FREEIEBATAN ()
(b) Lease liabilities (by HMEEBRE
Lease liabilities are recognised at the HEAENRHEERL B BiESEHRR
commencement date of the lease at the present AZNNESHIRERR HE8E
value of lease payments to be made over the EE MR (BEEEEENR) B
lease term. The lease payments include fixed ERHERSE  ERE I8 E
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) # A B & RIB BRI EERI AR
less any lease incentives receivable, variable NS - HeNBEAERE
lease payments that depend on an index or a EHEMSTEMNEEEERNTRE
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under R IFHES OISR (MEEHR
residual value guarantees. The lease payments BRSBTS ERE) - I
also include the exercise price of a purchase FEERFE BRI E#E ST
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the B B AN R T 1 ok iR B A BRI RERR
Group and payments of penalties for termination RBAX o

of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease EETEHSMNRER - AREENE
payments, the Group uses its incremental EMETZHEE  AEEEEHREE
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date Fis B HIRIS S EE R - Fis B A
because the interest rate implicit in the lease % HEEENSBESRAFFEHE
is not readily determinable. After the 3 NI h B 2 A S E U o UL
commencement date, the amount of lease SN WMAHE R £ - HEEE
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of SEFH (Pl AE B ERE
interest and reduced for the lease payments PMERAKELES) LB ERE
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease AEMEEETGEY  MEEARE
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, WREETNENE -

a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in REBENHEEABIFAGERITR
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. Hifg g -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREIEE @
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERMBE (H#)
(Continued)
Leases (Continued) HE (&)
Group as a lessee (Continued) FREEIEBATAN ()
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value (c) EHHEEREKEEBEEEMEE
assets
The Group applies the short-term lease AEBBCHEERRHREANE
recognition exemption to its short-term leases of K REENRPEE(NEHEAR
machinery and equipment (that is those leases BRI HEIA12EASAT - AR
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from PEREEERENEE) HE®R
the commencement date and do not contain a HEIMERRESR ABEENEERE
purchase option). It also applies the recognition BE -

exemption for leases of low-value assets that are
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases RHRREREEEEERENHER
of low-value assets are recognised as an HHNEEREERARE
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
Group as a lessor K& FERML A
When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease WASBEEAHEA  EHEMBAR (3
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each EEATR) AEEBHESERKEHEE
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance IMEHEE -
lease.
Leases in which the Group does not transfer REBITABREEMBRENT 28K
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to NEBRER S HE  HOBAKERE -
ownership of an asset are classified as operating MEXNBEHRENIERESS D - NEREIZ
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease HEUBYEBEEHSAOREDEERE
components, the Group allocates the consideration in 2y o HeWARBBHRNLEHEY R
the contract to each component on a relative BIBFEGEHEEREZRANNBIA B
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is R EHERE AV S EEK AT
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease AMEZEEREE  TiREASKARR
terms and is included in revenue in the statement of ZEERHB AR o LAHE SR B
profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct R AU A -

costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised
as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREITEE @)
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERME(#)
(Continued)
Properties under development BREFY*

Properties under development represent properties
being developed for sale and are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the
prepaid land lease payments or cost of land together
with any other direct costs attributable to the
development of the properties and other related
expenses capitalised during the development period.
Net realisable value is determined by the directors
based on the prevailing market prices on an individual
property basis less estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in selling the property.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond the normal operating cycle. Once the
development of these properties is completed, these
properties are transferred to completed properties held
for sale.

Revenue is only recognised upon completion of the
development. Sales deposits/instalments received and
receivable from purchasers in respect of the pre-sale of
properties under development prior to the completion of
the development are included in current liabilities.

If a property under development is intended to be
redeveloped into an owner-managed property, it is
transferred to construction in progress at the carrying
amount.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2,

(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

EXEFBER@®

24 FESHEEHBE @)

(Continued)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all
development expenditure, applicable borrowing costs
and other direct costs attributable to such properties.
Cost is determined by an apportionment of the total
costs of land and buildings attributable to unsold
properties. Net realisable value is determined by the
directors based on the prevailing market prices on an
individual property basis less costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

If an item of completed property held for sale becomes
owner-managed, it is transferred to property, plant and
equipment at the carrying amount.

For a transfer from an item of completed property held
for sale to investment property that will be carried at
fair value as its use has changed as evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and
its previous carrying amount shall be recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREITEE @)
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERME(#)
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets KBEREMZHEE (&)

(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREIEE @
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERMBE (H#)
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets BEREMZHEE (&)

(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)
The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T - —F+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value
change recognised in other comprehensive income is

recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXREIEE®@®
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERMBE (H#)
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets REREMEZHEE (&)
(Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued) Higz12 (8)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

This category includes equity investments which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends
on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

—  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

—  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREITEE @)
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERME(#)
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets KBEREMZHEE (&)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T _—F+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAREHEHE®@

(Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERMBE (H#)
(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) EHEERE (&)
General approach — A%
ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit TEHEEEES ﬁmll%ﬁx}_ﬂﬁ B ?ﬁ@
exposures for which there has not been a significant MiptEREREEZEINNEERRMS -
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are TEHEEEE AR R121E A W—J ?F‘ii
provided for credit losses that result from default events HEHMERNEEREE (12 A BBREES
that are possible within the next 12 months (a E518) E‘I'?Eﬁf%ﬁ E‘JLE%)]?‘*E?’EL BEERE
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which EMNEERRMS - TR AEELD -
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since Rer TR iﬁﬂﬁqﬁ’ﬂ*gﬁiﬁﬁ HBETIRE
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit BEE (HBEHEEERE) -

losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a

lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the AEBESHRERHTEHEESRITAED
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased EERBEVKRERERESEEEEM-
significantly since initial recognition. When making the PEH ST RT AR - AN B i 3hs B ER ﬁ7f
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default BLTAHBERANSH ZEREGRER
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting OB TARRENEH AR Lﬁtbf
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial W& EHAENRERBEKRANIE NERNE
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and BEERER  BIEBATRAEEER -

considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

For debt investments at fair value through other HRERATEFARLMMEZERENEBRR
comprehensive income, the Group applies the low & AEEFBEEERRBGILE -RE
credit risk simplification. At each reporting date, the BRERH AXEEEAMAEHELERE
Group evaluates whether the debt investments are ARG D BN R Y & 12 B 1R & R aT il
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable EBRESCHERAEERBRE - £
and supportable information that is available without TR ARBENFHEBRENI
undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the HEERTR - 1IN AEERE - BEHN
Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt B EARB30KRE - FERB ARG o

investments. In addition, the Group considers that there
has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T - —F+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade and bills receivables and contract assets which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T _—F+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREIEE @
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERMBE (H#)
(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) EHEERE (&)
Simplified approach L%

For trade and bills receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade and bills receivables that contain a significant
financing component and lease receivables, the Group
chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described
above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, a derivative financial instrument, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T - —F+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the
higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of
financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREIEE @
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERMBE (H#)
(Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued) TEEE (&)
Derecognition of financial liabilities IFBERTFE F

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of
profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash
flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or

loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

172 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

BERERTWEERAERIEUEER -
BRILEREHEE-

ERACRBERA-—ERXRANERER
BEHERBEAEZRNEREERNK B
BRBEGRREEKRNER Bl LR E
AIRERRIIERARERE  LHERHME
B - MEMEAENEZREESERPER
N

BE2HT A

RS R FORRBIMITRREFEED
BRELE BEBRNFREEXFARER
BERBEED AemEERSRERE
EAREE  XAHFEINAMBRRARA -

TEEMITA

B R R KE G E
TEESRTANPUITLITETAGNE
BRAFERR  LHERAXFESHE -
WAFEREH ITETANEEARK
MEAFERBE  MAAEAK-

ATETARAZAFEESESHMES ZEFAK
ARBEERFTABRR  EREREY
BB BRSN - AR R E A 2 E U S
MR TREREHPREFERHEZE
ATEHNAEER -

Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BERETBE®
(Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERME(#)

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each
product to its present location and conditions are
accounted for as follows:

Raw materials Purchase cost on the
weighted average

basis
Work in progress and Cost of direct materials,
finished goods direct labour and an

appropriate
proportion of
overheads

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T _—F+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREIEE @
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERMBE (H#)
(Continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities BEREAERE

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred income tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T - —F+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2,
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

EXEFBER@®

24 FESHEEHBE @)

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

(@) when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

(b) in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a
joint venture, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

(@) when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAREHEHE®@
(Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

24 FESTHEREBEH)

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

(b) in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a
joint venture, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BERETBE®
(Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERME(#)

(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to deferred
income account and deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest for the
construction of a qualifying asset, the initial carrying
amount of the government loans is determined using
the effective interest rate method, as further explained
in the accounting policy for “Financial liabilities” above.
The benefit of the government loans granted with no or
at a below-market rate of interest, which is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loans
and the proceeds received, is treated as a government
grant and released to the statement of profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by
equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREIEE @
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERMBE (H#)
(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued) WA R (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Sale of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at
the point in time when the purchasers obtained the
physical possession or the legal title of the completed
property and the Group has a present right to payment
and the collection of the consideration is probable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREITEE @)
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERME(#)
(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued) WA R (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Manufacturing services

Revenue from the provision of manufacturing services is
recognised over time, using an input method to
measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the
service, because the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced. The input method
recognises revenue based on the proportion of the
actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs for satisfaction of the manufacturing services.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREIEE @
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERMBE (H#)
(Continued)
Employee benefits A=k Fil
Pension schemes RIKEiE

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
central pension schemes operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentages of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.

Other benefits

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC
government undertakes to assume the benefit
obligations of all existing and retired employees under
these plans. Contributions to these plans by the Group
are expensed as incurred. The Group has no further
obligations for benefits for their qualified employees
under these plans.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T - —F+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% R 3k Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEAREIEE @
(Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESHBERMBE (H#)

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction date
for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

182 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

S ()

BANE 2 BELRAGTEZIFEHIRET)
RANERHER ZERBE o REIMNE
ZAFEMEBZIFERBERIRAEER
FEEAZEXSRE MEFERHEE
EZRERERZABATEEIZAEE
E—2EE (AR FERBEREM2HKE
HBERER BB 2BREEREAD RN
Hip 2k B am R HER)

BEEEHEERYIHERE KILBAHE
BENREAMNGFEEHEESFER L
BEEEMNRAXIRAMNERE Y152
SARR/AEENFERRABHREME
AFRERMEERFEREBENRE -
7 A Z RN RRFAWGRIR - AEEEE
BNRESNRRWAZZEH -

Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of
dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
subsidiaries in Mainland China according to the relevant tax
jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing and amount
of the payment of the dividend. Withholding taxes are only
provided for the profits of the subsidiaries in Mainland China
which the Group considers probable to be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from a
variety of sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production, or from a change in the market demand for the
product or service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the
asset is based on the experience of the Group with similar
assets that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation
is made if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual
values of items of property, plant and equipment are different
from the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each financial year end date based on
changes in circumstances.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the unused tax losses can be
utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition primarily
involves significant management’s judgements regarding the
future performance of a particular legal entity or tax group in
which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety
of other factors are also evaluated in considering whether
there is convincing evidence that it is probable that some
portions or all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be
realised, such as the existence of taxable temporary
differences, tax planning strategies and the periods in which
estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amounts of
the deferred tax assets and related financial models and
budgets are reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
to the extent that there is insufficient convincing evidence that
sufficient taxable profits will be available within the utilisation
periods to allow the utilisation of the carryforward of tax
losses, and that the asset balance will be reduced and
charged to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

A write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the write-down involves management’s
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
such differences will have an impact on the carrying amount
of inventories and the write-down/write-back of inventories in
the period in which such estimate has been changed. Further
details are given in note 20 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group applies the provision matrix method in the
assessment of the ECLs on trade receivables at each
reporting period. This method studies the probability of default
to arrive at the ECLs of trade receivables.

The provision matrix method is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of
customers’ actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in
note 21 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Recognition and allocation of construction costs of
properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties
under development during the construction stage and will be
transferred to completed properties held for sale upon
completion. Apportionment of these costs will be recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss upon the
recognition of the sale of the properties. Before the final
settlement of the development costs and other costs relating
to the sale of the properties, these costs are accrued by the
Group based on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide the
development projects into phases. Specific costs directly
related to the development of a phase are recorded as the
cost of such phase. Costs that are common to different
phases are allocated to individual phases based on the
estimated saleable area of the entire project.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related cost
allocation is different from the initial estimates, any increase
or decrease in the development costs and other costs would
affect the profit or loss in future years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T _—F+_A=+—RHILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS EEEHE R A 8
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued) AT T RERE (F)
Revenue from the provision of manufacturing XK E R RRE R WA

services

Revenue in respect of manufacturing services is recognised
over time using input method to measure progress towards
complete satisfaction of the service. In addition, revenue and
profit recognition is dependent on estimating the proportion of
the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs
for satisfaction of the manufacturing services. Based on the
Group’s recent experience and the nature of the activity
undertaken by the Group, the Group makes estimates of the
point at which it considers the work is sufficiently advanced
such that the costs to complete and revenue can be reliably
estimated. Based on the latest information available in
respect of the market environment, the Group prepares
budgets for contracts individually and the budget, which is
used in the Group’s financial reporting, is reviewed regularly.
Onerous contracts are provided for when identified. Material
adjustments to the budgeted costs may occur in future if
there is a significant change in the market environment.

PRC land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in Mainland
China. The provision for land appreciation tax is based on
management’s best estimates according to its understanding
of the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. The actual land appreciation tax liabilities are
subject to the determination by the tax authorities upon the
completion of the property development projects. The Group
has not finalised its land appreciation tax calculations and
payments with the tax authorities for certain property
development projects.

The final outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, and any differences will impact the
land appreciation tax expenses and the related provision in
the period in which the differences are realised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEEHITER
For management purposes, the Group is organised into HEEMS  AEEREER LRSS HZE
business units based on their products and services and has EBEMN UWHEEMENREREES I - &5
two reportable and operating segments, as follows: W
(a) the steel pipes segment engages in the manufacture and (a) HESHNSRERFEEEENE RIEH
sale of welded steel pipes and the provision of related HERERY - &
manufacturing services; and
(b) the property development and investment segment (b) WERBEREENHVEEREFEMER
engages in development of properties for sale and MECMERSWAETYERE -
property investment for its rental income potential.
Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating ERERVERASEEEDIAESR  URE
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions BAOMRERBEFTEELRE - D EERRIIBER
about resource allocation and performance assessment. WEDIRER,EIBE T - MU AR
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable BRELATEF, B 2T E - CHAERBATEF,
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss BED—EUNREBOKRBRAER,EIE=E
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured AR T E W EmET KRB R AT
consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax except that
head office and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.
Segment assets exclude unallocated head office and DEEEIBERSEABRAREE (AZE
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group BERSEREEER) -
basis.
Segment liabilities exclude unallocated head office and PHEETEEADELRRATEE(BZSE
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a BEREEELEERE) -
group basis.
There were no intersegment sales during the years ended BE_T-_—_FRZTF—F+ZRA=+—HL
31 December 2022 and 2021. FE  HESIHEBEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS HRR M &

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4,

(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2022

Segment revenue (note 5)
Sales to external customers
Segment results

Reconciliation:

Corporate and other unallocated income
Corporate and other unallocated expenses
Unallocated finance costs

Profit before tax

Segment assets

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment receivables
Corporate and other unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment payables
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment

results or segment assets:
Subsidy income from the PRC government
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Impairment of trade receivables

(Impairment)/reversal of impairment of other

receivables

Compensation

Reversal of/(provision of) claim arising from
litigation

Land resumption costs

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Capital expenditure*

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE
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EEIHER @

BE-_E_—_F+-A=+—HLEE

Property
development
Steel pipes and investment Total
L/ES
HE MBERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR AR®TR AR®TR
1,810,097 551,918 2,362,015
206,311 (46,982) 159,329
14,758
(8,252)
(3,370)
162,465
3,166,119 3,927,937 7,094,056
(874,825)
335,706
6,554,937
3,786,909 2,551,962 6,338,871
(874,825)
159,952
5,623,998
231,517 119 231,636
1,752 = 1,752
(24,225) = (24,225)
(2,412) 228 (2,184)
(63) (22,995) (23,058)
19,920 (38,715) (18,795)
(108,450) = (108,450)
(41,273) = (41,273)
(75,841) (22) (75,863)
14,598 = 14,598
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2021

Segment revenue (note 5)
Sales to external customers
Segment results

Reconciliation:
Corporate and other unallocated expenses
Unallocated finance costs

Profit before tax

Segment assets

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment receivables
Corporate and other unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment payables
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment

results or segment assets:

Gain on resumption of land use rights by the

local authorities
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Compensation
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Provision of claim arising from litigation
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ARREMRAERE

BwafE

o RE

Hftrn HEH

AR EE XD B E
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R (E

HEFEREERERR

HEME  BERREZ
BB

RARELZ RIERE

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 7 &% Al #15 #E

Impairment of trade receivables
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation
Share of loss of a joint venture
Capital expenditure*

*

equipment and right-of-use assets.

TECCFEERE

B ERETRE
BEKK

EREH
EE—HagnmzBa
NG

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

EESBER B
BE-ZE-—S+-A=Z+—-HLFE

Property

development

and
Steel pipes investment Total
e FEERE HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIL ARBTFIL ARBTFIL
1,802,568 10,802 1,813,370
400,289 (70,843) 329,446
(9,486)
(42,735)
277,225
3,061,158 6,117,547 9,178,705
(1,607,400)
351,817
7,923,122
4,617,796 3,897,520 8,515,316
(1,607,400)
189,690
7,097,606
1,540,336 — 1,540,336
11,728 — 11,728
(3,072) (6,674) (9,746)
(292,780) — (292,780)
(10,635) — (10,635)
(29,290) — (29,290)
(11,443) — (11,443)
(7,183) — (7,183)
(94,633) (6,885) (101,518)
(78,118) (22) (78,140)
(15,020) — (15,020)
83,148 == 83,148

* EARAXBRERAENE BEERBRERESR

Eo
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 = - - —F+ - A=

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

T—HIEFE

Information about steel pipe products and services

The revenue from the major products and services is

analysed as follows:

EEIHER @

HEEmRBEESY

IZERLBRBOBRASHAT :

2022 2021
—E-=F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Manufacture and sale of steel pipes: ERHEHE
LSAW steel pipes BHEEEE 1,171,679 1,351,040
SSAW steel pipes ZHER R E 287,111 129,359
ERW steel pipes BIEEE 4,983 —

Steel pipe manufacturing services: ) B BE AR S

LSAW steel pipes HEEEIREE 231,123 158,640
SSAW steel pipes eI RE 34,088 90,617
Others* HAth* 81,113 72,912
1,810,097 1,802,568
Sale of properties HEME 551,918 10,802
2,362,015 1,813,370

*

Others mainly include the manufacture and sale of steel fittings,

screw-thread steels and scrap materials, and the trading of

equipment and steel plates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBEHITER @)
(Continued)
Geographical information i & & R
(@) The revenue information based on the locations of the (@) WABREEPFEMREISHT :

customers is as follows:

2022 2021
—TEC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBEF T

Sales to external customers: MANBEPHE -
Mainland China HF B i 1,701,332 965,305
Africa FEM 157,774 490,831
Europe BUM 8,007 46,967
Middle East R 263,318 78,924
Asia and other Asian countries am M R E b gm N B R 226,601 159,515
South America mEM 4,983 71,828
2,362,015 1,813,370

(b)  Over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets and capital (b) AEEMERBEEKREANFHLZEI0%A
expenditure are located in Mainland China. F R B A o
Information about major customers FEEZEFEH

Revenue of approximately RMB168,023,000 (2021:
RMB490,831,000) was derived from sales by the steel pipe
segment to a single customer, including sales to a group of

MEDHA—RE—BFPHHEEEERANAR
168,023,000 (== —F: ARK
490,831,0007T) ' BiEMA —HEBRXZEF XA

entities which are known to be under common control with THINEEEEITHHEE -
that customer.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA-~HMKRARKE
Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold and WA - BBFEFRNEEEMMARERBHEZRE
services rendered, net of value-added tax (“VAT”) and other B - MBREER (EER]) REAMIEER -

sales taxes, during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains REEHRA - EMRARKZES AT -
is as follows:
2022 2021
—E-_— —EF-—4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®T R ARBTT
(Restated)
(E25))
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZWA
Manufacture and sale of seam welded steel pipes %3 N 846 A #1250
and the provision of related manufacturing ERBHARRE
services AR 7% 1,810,097 1,802,568
Sale of properties HEYE 551,518 10,351
2,361,615 1,812,919
Revenue from lease contracts REEEEHZWA
Rental income HEWA 400 451
2,362,015 1,813,370
Other income and gains Hil A R K&
Bank interest income FRITF B U A 3,741 2,576
Subsidy income from the PRC government Fh B T B 8 B A (a) 231,636 13,193
Gain on resumption of land use rights by the local thJ7 & & Uk & £ 0 1 F
authorities 1z W s (b) — 1,540,336
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HBWBARZ
Y& = 11,728
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment H&¥¥ « BE & &E
W 1,752 1,210
Short-term rental income EEHEERA — 2,690
Others HAb 1,614 9,045
238,743 1,580,778
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year

ended 31 December 2022 #{EZ —ZE - —F+-A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The subsidy income represents subsidies granted by the local
finance bureaus to PCKSP, Pearl Steel Investment, Kaidi,
Nanjing Rongyu Group, LYG Zhugang Coating, GPRPS, LYG
Petrol-Fitting and PCKSP (Zhuhai) as awards for their products
and PCKSP (Lianyungang) as awards for investment. There
are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to such
subsidies.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a piece of land held
by PCKSP located at Qinghe East Road, Shiji Town in Panyu
District of Guangzhou, the PRC, was resumed by the local
authority with a compensation amount of RMB4,144,000,000, of
which a compensation amount received or receivable of
RMB2,072,000,000 and a net gain of RMB1,865,000,000 was
recognised. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
remaining compensation amount received or receivable of
RMB2,072,000,000 and a net gain of RMB1,540,000,000 was
recognised.

WA~ Bl AR s (8)

CEX

(a)

AL A T 77 T BB TEBIVTME - IR
BE % BRANEER EEERADE -
BEMNBIOTAmEE  EEEAEEHFRERR
THE (8 MR EREERERIEAE
BINTHE CEER) MIRARD - Z2FHERE
RERWGHREMEBENLAER -

REE_Z-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HILLFE FE
WIMEREZ —BURNTFRENTERRAE
BN REN T HE W T E Rk  MERA
AR #4,144,000,0007T + E A 82 dsk UK
18 5 A R#2,072,000,0007T @ DRERFRZEAA
R#1,865,000,0007T - REE-ZT=-—F+=A
=+ —AIFECERE T E D W BT
AR #2,072,000,0007T & % Wz AR
1,540,000,0007T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5, WA HW AR U= (@)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZHWA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information () DEUAZH
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_ZE-_—_F+-RA=+—HLEE
Property
development
and
Steel pipes investment Total
LY
wmE FHRERE wat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR® TR AR®T T
Sale of goods/properties HERM,/ ME 1,544,886 551,518 2,096,404
Rendering of services IR AR 265,211 — 265,211
Total revenue from contracts with KEBP AL ZBIWA
customers 1,810,097 551,518 2,361,615
Geographical markets it & 45
Mainland China A 1,149,414 551,518 1,700,932
Africa FEM 157,774 — 157,774
Europe &M 8,007 — 8,007
Middle East PR 263,318 — 263,318
Asia and Other Asian countries oM R H A 25 M B =R 226,601 — 226,601
South America EEF) 4,983 = 4,983
Total revenue from contracts with REBP &R ZBWA
customers 1,810,097 551,518 2,361,615
Timing of revenue recognition WA TERRRE
Goods/properties transferred at a o ERE —
point in time ZheEis 1,544,886 551,518 2,096,404
Services transferred over time & B R 8 75 AR 7 265,211 — 265,211
Total revenue from contracts with RERFPALHZBIA
customers 1,810,097 551,518 2,361,615
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ Hftlr AR Uz (#)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) REEFEHZRA ()
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i) DEPRAZH (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HLEE
Property
development
and
Steel pipes investment Total
/e
i B 8 BN F #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E7) (E7)
Sale of goods/properties HEmm/ W 1,553,311 10,351 1,563,662
Rendering of services RS 249,257 — 249,257
Total revenue from contracts with RERFPALHZBIA
customers 1,802,568 10,351 1,812,919
Geographical markets ih & T 35
Mainland China R A A 954,503 10,351 964,854
Africa FEM 490,831 — 490,831
Europe BN 46,967 — 46,967
Middle East R 78,924 — 78,924
Asia and Other Asian countries TN R b M B =R 159,515 — 159,515
South America EEF) 71,828 — 71,828
Total revenue from contracts with KEEFPENZBKA
customers 1,802,568 10,351 1,812,919
Timing of revenue recognition W\ B R I
Goods/properties transferred at a B ERE B
point in time e 1,553,311 10,351 1,563,662
Services transferred over time Wa iy 8 R IR TS 249,257 — 249,257
Total revenue from contracts with RKEBFPAELZBIA
customers 1,802,568 10,351 1,812,919
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T _—F+_A=+—RHILFE

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were

5. WA~ EMWAR W (#)

REFEFEHZWA D)
(i) DEUAEH (&)

TRIRAERE BB ERBBA PG AR
BERNENEERRNBATRED ZX

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the BHEARR R
reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in the current periods:
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR¥ETT
(Restated)
(E7))
Revenue recognised that was included in contract 3 ARBEHAAEH
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting BEBEZEEARA:
period:
Manufacture and sale of seam welded steel pipes 238 I IHE B 45 1R % i
and the provision of related manufacturing B REHARRE
services iz 7 218,251 174,648
Sale of properties MEHEE 551,518 10,351
769,769 184,999

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations
is summarised below:

Sale of steel pipes

For sale of steel pipes, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the customer’s specific
location (delivery). Transportation and handling activities
before customer obtain control

that occur are

considered as fulfilment activities. Following the
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has
the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to
the goods. Payment is generally due 30 days to 90
days from the invoice date, except for new customers,

where payment in advance is normally required.

(i)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Performance obligations (Continued)
Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon the
physical possession or when the legal title of the

completed property is obtained by the purchasers.

Manufacturing services

The Group provides manufacturing services to
customers. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time as the Group
creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. Revenue
is recognised for these manufacturing services based
on the stage of completion of the contract using input
method. Payment is generally due within 50 days from
the date of delivery or customer acceptance of the

product processed.

The Group generally offers one-year warranties for its
product. The Group recognised retention money as
contract assets as the Group’s entitlement to the
consideration was conditional on satisfactory completion
of the warranty period. The retention money will be
recognised as trade receivables at the end of warranty
period.

The Group does not recognise the warranty service as
a separate performance obligation in a single contract
as the warranty service is assurance type, and the
Group’s obligation to repair or replace faulty products
under the warranty terms is recognised as a provision,
if any.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

Since most of the sales contracts of the Group are for
periods of one year or less. The transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

TECCFEERE

5.

WA~ Bl AR s (8)

REEFEHZRA ()
(i) EAEE (&)
Y EHE

(iii)

BHEEIRETENERCS T IMES
BEGETIMEEERBREN -

HEIRTE
AEBERFFIRHBERE - EAEEA]
EREARFPRAIESIEFEERE
MEER  ZEREHERABEZRME
BMEKNBHET %SEERBHUK
ATHIRIEE KR T2k B BR BR R 88 A A TERR o
NRBEAEINIEFESNIERZ
H#508 A e

AEBBRFREERRHR—FER K&
ERRECHEIRANEE RASEHE
B EHRER T AL R A0 B 2B
Gt - REEERERMERFER/E
ZIEWIRIR

AEBEYELERRBERSE-—GOT
B EOEE  HERREERERE
AEBERBEERGRECAELBEREE
) EAETER R E (E) -

TEHEREFEXNHIG T B EEH
XZE%

HRAEENABOHEANNHRRS—
FHER VEFRBEIEEXSAETA
KM HETE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

6. OTHER EXPENSES 6. HMEHR
2022 2021
—E-C T —F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
{hr=d AR®T R ARBTT
Compensation e 23,058 9,746
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets HEGREEEZER 15 — 292,780
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment L&MW - BE K&
Z 518 = 10,635
Provision of claim arising from litigations FrEAE R RETRE 29 18,795 29,290
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value  H#URF & = 7] IR F & = 11,443
Land resumption costs + b UL R AR 108,450 —
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 W ER FURE 21 24,225 7,183
Impairment of other receivables H b B W SR BB 22 2,184 —
Others H A, 33,074 14,937
209,786 376,014
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBAER
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging: REEDNRBMANAN DMK T SERZES
2022 2021
—E-C —E -4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T R ARBTT
Employee benefit expenses EERAMAX (BRIEEE
(including directors’ remuneration): ) -
Fees, wages and salaries we IEBERFS 123,652 140,789
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIFFEI R 6,570 9,375
130,222 150,164
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAR 1,221,533 1,431,877
Cost of services provided R AR S A A 174,624 176,740
Cost of properties sold EEWMEKAR 495,235 9,237
Auditor’'s remuneration 2% HBT B & 1,283 1,064
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment V- BELRRBITE 13 61,432 50,051
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRAEEERE 15 14,431 28,089
Impairment of trade receivables Z 5RO E 21 24,225 7,183
Impairment of other receivables H fth & W R IB R E 22 2,184 —
Impairment of property, plant and equipment W - WEK&RERE 13 — 596,765
Fair value loss on investment properties KEWMEZ A FEBIE 14 8,000 17,000
Research and development costs i 35 B AN 64,283 64,526
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. ®EMA&
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEXADTHET :
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B =t AR®T T ARETT

Interest on bank and other borrowings (including 1T M EMEEF S

bonds and notes) (BEEHFLER) 88,378 205,320
Interest on lease liabilities HEGGERE 57 109
Interest on discounted bills BEIREER S 1,486 3,427

Total interest expenses on financial liabilities not at 3 3Fi1% A F{Et AIB %

fair value through profit or loss ZEBEBERSR
T B @B 89,921 208,856
Less: Interest capitalised B BARERE (a) (45,278) (64,603)
44,643 144,253
Note: FftsT -
(a) Interest capitalised during the years ended 31 December 2022 (a) BEZ-_—_FR-_FT-_—F+-_A=+—HL
and 2021 arose on the specific borrowings for properties under FEAMEAMEDHRERTOENFEERME
development. g
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEFHM

Details of directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed FRN EEHFMoFBERBECMES LR
BIl - BB RFHEBIZE383(1)(@) * (b) * (c) () &Kk
A(HBZEFNRER ROIFE2HHBOT

pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, section 383(1)(a),(b),(c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

D

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Fees we 585 579
Other emoluments: HEibie -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBREY
B 1,954 2,248
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RORIE T BN 74 44
2,028 2,292
2,613 2,871
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors REA - ENBELIERTESZ RSN

during the year were as follows:

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Mr. Chen Ping BRF Se A& 198 198

Mr. Au Yeung Kwong Wah B 5 2 5 A 189 183

Mr. Tian Xiao Ren HB 8 k& 198 198
585 579

There were no other emoluments payable to the REAR  BEENTEIIENTEZTNE

independent non-executive directors during the year e (ZT - —F: |)-

(2021: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 9.

(b) Executive directors

Salaries,

and benefits

EEHMN @
BITES

Retirement

allowances benefit

scheme Total

Fees in kind contributions remuneration
;e 2ZUR RAKBR
we BEWEF T8It Exd0 o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥TR AR¥T T AR¥TR
Year ended 31 December 2022 HBE-Z_-_#fF
+=—A=+—H
LFE
Executive directors: WMITESE
Mr. Chen Chang BRE A& — 997 — 997
Mr. Chen Guo Xiong R B 2 e A — 261 29 290
Ms. Chen Zhao Nian PRIKF L — 696 45 741
= 1,954 74 2,028
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions  remuneration
e MK RIRAEF
we Bt SHEIf R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFTT
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE_T_——%F
+ZA=+—H
IEFE
Executive directors: WMITESE
Mr. Chen Chang PR & S — 1,342 — 1,342
Mr. Chen Guo Xiong PR B 4 5% A — 241 9 250
Ms. Chen Zhao Nian PRIKEF 2+ — 665 35 700
— 2,248 44 2,292
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EEFM@
(b) Executive directors (Continued) (b) HITES(F)
There was no arrangement under which a director RERIT BEMESRENXRBREEM
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the R HE
year.
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were FHHTEEFOH T ESPRBEEHNER
mainly for their services in connection with the ARBIRAEEEB A RS o LatsE
management of the affairs of the Company and the UFHTEFOMEETESRBEERE
Group. The independent non-executive directors’ NEIBEFMREORE
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services
as directors of the Company.
10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. TEEREFES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two AEERUGSFHEEREMU(ZE - —F
directors (2021: three directors), details of whose )EE BEFHFBENR LEXMEE - F
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the NAT=A (ZE—F M) &= FHBES GF
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2021: two) ARBIEEFRETEZTHAS)NHFHFBEEHI W
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief N
executive of the Company are as follows:
2022 2021
—E-C—F —EF-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBEF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUREDEAN 2,128 1,037
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRAE T T B3R 77 15
2,205 1,052

204 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

10.

11.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration which fell within the
following band is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

10.

Z£%1,000,0007% 7T

hERSHEES @)
THFHEENFEEERIIETBTHRAERSH
EEAZLT

Number of employees

EEHE
2022 2021
—E_-= T —
3 2

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the directors or any of the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Company, which was incorporated in the Cayman

Islands, is not subject to CIT.

Lessonstart and Lucknow, which were incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, are not subject to CIT. Crown Central,
CKSPG and View Sharp International Limited, which were
incorporated in Hong Kong, were subject to profits tax at the
rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the
Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits
regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2021:
HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this subsidiary are
taxed at 8.25% (2021: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%).

tax rates

TECCFEERE

11.

RER  AEEHEANZEEEALERSFE
BEM—2NEAMEERRSIMAKRER K
ARG B H) SRE BB -

5 B
7 5 [ B St A S A B 2 T BE AR A 1 DA
A SRR R - RR RIS -

EMEB ([REMEHR])
ARBRRAEREEMARL - BAGREEMS
73t o

FZE3Z K Lucknow N H B R L BE S FE A - 5B
BEMEEMER kP HIMEEE RS
BEEERAR (HEEBEMERIL) RERERS
E HE WIS R FE SR B I B 12 16.5% B9 Bt 3 45 41 71
BR - EAEE—RMEARIRI - EBRARS
MEMBETHEERER -ZMBRAAE
2,000,000 7T (=& = —4F : 2,000,000 7T) &
FER TR K E1%8.25% (—F — —4F : 8.25%) Fi &
B MR T ERTRAERIZ16.5% (2T =—
F:16.5%) BLEHM -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

11.

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Corporate income tax (“CIT”) (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits derived from or earned in
Hong Kong during the year.

PCKSP (Zhuhai), as a High and New Technology Enterprise
(“HNTE”) qualified on 30 September 2015 and with the
qualification renewed in 2018, is entitled to a reduced tax rate
of 15% from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. PCKSP
(Lianyungang), as a HNTE qualified on 5 December 2019, is
entitled to a reduced tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2022.

Pursuant to the Notice of Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation on the Implementation of the
Inclusive Tax Relief Policy for Small and Low-profit
Enterprises (Cai Shui [2019] No. 13), thirteen (2021: ten) of
the Group’s subsidiaries are eligible under the Inclusive Tax
Relief Policy for Small and Low-profit Enterprises. For small
and low-profit enterprises, the portion of annual taxable
income which does not exceed RMB1,000,000, shall be
subject to the CIT at the tax rate of 5%; for the portion of
annual taxable income which exceeds RMB1,000,000 but
does not exceed RMB3,000,000, shall be subject to the CIT
at the tax rate of 10%. Pursuant to the Notice of the Ministry
of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on the
Implementation of Preferential Income Tax Policies for Small
and Low-profit Enterprises and Individual Business (MOF and
SAT Notice 2021 No. 12), for small and low-profit enterprises,
the portion of annual taxable income which does not exceed
RMB1,000,000, shall be subject to the CIT at the tax rate of
2.5%, which is further reduced by 50% according to the
preferential policies provided in Article 2 of the Notice of
Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation
on the Implementation of the Inclusive Tax Relief Policy for
Small and Low-profit Enterprises (Cai Shui [2019] No. 13).

11.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

11.

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Corporate income tax (“CIT”) (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law and the respective regulations,
except for the above-mentioned preferential tax treatments,
the companies of the Group which operate in Mainland China
were subject to CIT at a rate of 25% on their respective
taxable income for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been
calculated at the prevailing tax rates, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT effective from 1 January 1994 and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT effective from 27 January 1995, all
income from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use
rights and buildings in Mainland China (being the proceeds
from the sale of properties less deductible expenditures
including borrowing costs and property development
expenditures) is subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% of the appreciation of land value with an
exemption provided for property sales of ordinary residential
properties if their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of
the sum of the total deductible items.

The Group estimated and made provision for LAT according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the
determination by the tax authorities upon completion of the
property development projects and the LAT determined by the
tax authorities might be different from the basis on which the
provision for LAT is calculated.

TECCFEERE

11.

Fr&® ()

SEFEH (EEMREHRD @
REBFECEMETERMERER  RLAEE
MBI AEBBETRHEABEEZ AT
BRBUHNRMERESERE_T_—_FR_-F
TF T AT R IEFEZERBRBAZZ
DEMEH -

RIBAMAZSEHEBENRITER  RERE -+
M Y FESRBUS MR B RITH R H -

+ b SEEB ([ LB EB )
RIE—AAEE— A —BERN(REARLRMN
HEiEEREI TR — A AF—A =+
+ B AR EARLME L 18 EHETIE
PIE AR Bk - 2EEA TR AP E
RERFEREMRSED (NEEREMEMSHK
N EATHR S Y (B 45 8 B A 7R 7 55 3 22 A B
T ER T EEISERI30% E60%8) RAET
RHH - U T REEDEBEERMEHE (MR
LB EYEMILER BB IMRIEE B
20%) °

REBIRE BB BTUENER R E MEH L
RT LHIZER - ERTMIEERAGHFME
FIZETH B 3k THy LIS BR TR TE - T 50 7% 4 B A
ER TR ER AT RN E LR ERERE
T EVRER ©
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11.

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Long-term tax payable

Certain subsidiaries of the Company relocate their factories
and offices during the year ended 31 December 2020. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, the tax authority in the
PRC agreed their CIT and LAT payables can be paid within 5
years or upon completion of the relocations, whichever is
earlier. In the opinion of the directors, the relocations will be
completed after 1 year from the reporting date. Therefore, the
relevant tax payables amounted to approximately
RMB789,187,000 (2021: RMB767,930,000)
31 December 2022 are classified as non-current liabilities.

as at

The major components of the income tax (credit)/expense for
the year are as follows:

11.

Fri8 % (5)

REEMBIER
RAABNETHEBRARCRBE_TE-_TF+=
A=+ HLEFEARBEIBENRLAE - RE
BT F+-A=+—HALFER " HEMK
BHERZEENNCERSH kI tIgER A
ERAFARBBRAE URFEERE) SN2
ERE REBERSARBT —FREK -
B RZE_—F+=-_A=+—8 BBEEMNH
B AANRET89,187,000L (ZE-—F : AR
#767,930,00070) - WHERIERBEE -

FAMGH(EL)  EROTEEARBAWT

2022 2021
—E_-C T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% TR ARBTT

Current — Mainland China BVER — B
PRC CIT charge for the year FRRETCERSH I 54,720 375,877
Deferred tax (note 30) EFERIE (BT 7E30) (55,289) (4,298)
Total income tax (credit)/expense for the year FRNER (KE) BRBE (569) 371,579
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

11. INCOME TAX (Continued) 11. FIB% (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before BARFTERTAENOTIEER (RARE R
tax at the statutory tax rates for the countries in which the HREHBOMBATAENBEROEERETE
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to HAEEERERBEFENRIESERANEERRE
the tax expense at the Group’s effective tax rates, and a AR ERERTENYRAT :

reconciliation of the applicable rates to the effective tax rates,
are as follows:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Profit before tax B A5 B )t ) 162,465 277,225
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEERMETTEMNTIA 38,173 77,622
Tax effect of: MG
Lower tax rate enacted by local authority E R A A 2 B
S (58,594) (23)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR A 12,127 164,658
Income not subject to tax BERBBA (22,468) (3,352)
Loss attributable to a joint venture EliE—HEaERa
18 = 3,755
Temporary difference not recognised in the current year REBRERZ
TR 4) (20)
Utilisation of tax loss not recognised in prior years HABATFELRER
(B IE 5 1R (23,473) (26)
Tax loss not recognised in the current year NFERERTIE
18 53,670 128,965
Tax (credit)/expense at the Group’s effective tax rate EREBERMEE
ZBER) BA (569) 371,579
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12.

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share is
based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners
of the Company and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,011,142,000 (2021: 1,011,142,000) in

AR EEAREERERN (BHE)

GRERAF,(F1B) HIREBEAR RS AEN
FEHEF(F518) RFRNDBHTL B MEFS
#1,011,142,000/% (== = —4 : 1,011,142,000
B ETHE -

issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue

during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

AEBUTENBE T -_—_FR-_F_—F+=
B=+—BLFERTBEHELERE -

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% -BERRZRE
Office and
Plant and other Motor Construction
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BWAZR
BF BERRE Hit R AE EEIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR®Tn AR%Tr AR%Tn AR%TR AR%Tn
As at 31 December 2022 R-E—-—
+=—HA=+—8H
At 1 January 2022 RZTEZ—_F—H—H
Cost (BN 660,837 2,004,646 20,872 27,585 168,479 2,882,419
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2R ERRE (162,538)  (806,571) (18,241) (20,760) —  (1,008,110)
Net carrying amount REFE 498,299 1,198,075 2,631 6,825 168,479 1,874,309
At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated W-_ZTE-_—_F—HF—H8"
depreciation and impairment kR REHTE KRE 498,299 1,198,075 2,631 6,825 168,479 1,874,309
Additions NE 333 3,411 122 274 9,172 13,312
Disposals e = (1,222) (16) (243) (54,489) (55,970)
Depreciation provided during the year FRNTERE (11,550) (48,248) (143) (1,491) - (61,432)
Transfers from construction in progress ERATETR 13,150 10,776 - - (23,926) -
Write-off ] = (225) = = = (225)
At 31 December 2022, net of accumulated R-ZZE—-—
depreciation and impairment +=—A=+—8"
MR EFERBE 500,232 1,162,567 2,594 5,365 99,236 1,769,994
At 31 December 2022 R-Z—-—
+ZA=+—8
Cost R 674,320 2,016,014 20,076 26,570 99,236 2,836,216
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2t ERREE (174,088)  (853,447) (17,482) (21,205) —  (1,066,222)
Net carrying amount R FE 500,232 1,162,567 2,594 5,365 99,236 1,769,994
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BERRE @

(Continued)
Office and
Plant and other Motor  Construction
Buildings machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
RRAER
BF BREREH A ki "E EEIR it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETR
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZT=——4F
+-—A=+—H”
At 1 January 2021 RZE=Z—F—A—H
Cost R 660,837 2,165,564 25,559 41,170 712,905 3,606,035
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2R ERRE (141,133)  (885,148) (22,304) (27,413) —  (1,075,998)
Net carrying amount BREEE 519,704 1,280,416 3,255 13,757 712,905 2,530,037
At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated R-—E-_—4F—HF—H"
depreciation and impairment MR 2EHTE RRE 519,704 1,280,416 3,255 13,757 712,905 2,530,037
Additions NE - 21413 144 131 30,298 51,986
Disposals e - (33,470) (592) (3,420) (23,338) (60,820)
Depreciation provided during the year FRNTERE (21,405) (24,896) (136) (3,614) — (50,051)
Transfers from construction in progress EEATEEIR — 65,173 — — (65,173) —
Impairment A - (110,561) (40) (29) (486,135) (596,765)
Write-off LS - - - - (78) (78)
At 31 December 2021, net of accumulated RIE_—%F
depreciation and impairment +—A=+—8"
Hk 25 E LRE 498299 1,198,075 2,631 6,825 168,479 1,874,309
At 31 December 2021 RZBEZ—F
+-A=+—H
Cost AR 660,837 2,004,646 20,872 27,585 168,479 2,882,419
Accumulated depreciation and impairment RETERRE (162,538)  (806,571) (18,241) (20,760) —  (1,008,110)
Net carrying amount REFE 498,299 1,198,075 2,631 6,825 168,479 1,874,309
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Details of the Group’s property, plant and equipment pledged
to secure the Group’s bank loans are set out in note 28.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings of the
Group located in Zhuhai and Lianyungang with a total net
carrying amount of approximately RMB13,079,000 (2021:
RMB13,079,000) as at 31 December 2022 have not yet been
issued by the relevant PRC authorities. As at the end of the
reporting period, the directors of the Company were still in the
process of obtaining these certificates.

Impairment testing of property, plant and
equipment

When any indicators of impairment are identified, property,
plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment based on
each CGU. The CGU is an individual plant or operating
entity. The carrying values of these individual plants or
entities were compared to the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs, which were based predominantly on value in use.
Value in use calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using the same cash flow projections
of the fifth year. Other key assumptions applied in the
impairment tests include the expected product price, demand
for the products, product cost, finance costs and other related
expenses, with the consideration of the possible significant
decrease in finance costs following the measures adopted by
management.

13.

212 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

M3 BB KRR E @)

AEBEREYME  BERREBABERAEER
TTERHF ISR M E28

RIE-_—F+-A=+—H AEBNRAKE
REEHENE TEF wRERRE S B BT P8
BBERE ZEEFOEEDFESHOAAR
#13,079,000 T (=T = —14F : AR% 13,079,000
TL) e RIEER - ARRIERNERBZERE
BEREFE -

M- BERRBZEERNR

WALBREMRETR  ABRESRESELS
¥YE - BEMREERERN S ReELSE
UAEEREXEEER ZFEAMEIER
MEEEERRSESSUOTRESBELE
MREEEEM 2 AIRESEDEERIEERE
EBFtE -EREENREEEECHAEZRFH
HEEFRAHANRSRERNFE - BEEFH
ZHERENERAELFARNRDRERAE
TTHER - ZEEIE IR B REUEER B EKARA
BERIER D - RMERHTERZ EtERRRE
REHERER EmFR EmRAE  BEK
AREAMAREFEX -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% - BERRZRE @
(Continued)
Impairment testing of property, plant and M- BERSEZRENRE (&)
equipment (Continued)
Management determined that these key assumptions were ERERAZSTHEBREZDABERRELEH™M
based on past performance and their expectations on market BEREBEHRAKIE - bIN AEBEHABRHAKR
development. Further, the Group adopts a pre-tax rate of AR R S EE BN ERBR 2 BRI FE15% (=
15% (2021: 17%) that reflects specific risks related to CGUs T —F T%)ERREIRE - FIREFTIAR D
as the discount rate. The assumptions above are used in MEEDHRNIRSEAEM 2] RO &5 -
analysing the recoverable amounts of CGUs within the
operating segments.
As a result of the impairment assessment, no impairment loss BREBERETGHZ2ER BET-__FR-Z=
had been recognised against the property, plant and —F+ZA=T—HLFE  TEBERMEHH
equipment in the steel pipes segment for the years ended ZE - -BERZBEZRERBE A REZ
31 December 2022 and 2021. However, due to T —F+ZA=T—HLEFE #MEDEHH
obsolescence, an impairment loss of RMB596,765,000 was ETWE - BELIBEREMERRBERBIE
recognised in respect of certain property, plant and equipment AR #596,765,0007T °
in the steel pipes segment for the year ended 31 December
2021.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REWHE
2022 2021
—E-_— - —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREEF T
Commercial properties in Mainland China, the PRC R B At 2 i B %
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—RZEKREE 370,000 387,000
Net loss from fair value adjustments RNEEAEZ FERE (8,000) (17,000)
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+t A=+—HZ2KEE 362,000 370,000

The Group’s investment properties consist of commercial
properties in Mainland China, which are held under medium
term leases. The directors of the Company have determined
that the investment properties are commercial assets, based
on the nature, characteristics and risks of the properties.

TECCFEERE

AEENREMERBELNFTEALNEREY
X P HEOEE ARXVENEE  BREK
PIAROER  RAAREEFBRENEEETRE
REE -
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Based on the valuation by RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer, as at 31 December
2022, the fair value of investment properties of the Group,
which were mainly shops of Golden Dragon City Fortune
Plaza (&8 & &%) (“GDC”) Phase | shops, was
RMB362,000,000 (2021: RMB370,000,000). The Group’s
property manager and the chief financial officer decided, upon
approval from the audit committee of the Company, to
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the
external valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group’s property manager and the chief financial officer have
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results twice a year when the valuation is performed
for interim and annual financial reporting.

Maturity analysis of lease payments from
investment properties

14.

REWE (&)
RIEBYEEAERGEMXFTIEEBREGR
NEIZIEE RZEZZF+ZA=+—H K
EEOLEDE  NeEBUEES ((SEH]))
E-—HERNEIEEH EAFEAARE
362,000,000 (& = —4 : AR#¥370,000,000
TL) o AR B A W) S LS I B TS 4R BE R TR ANIE A (B
2z NE CESARRERZZESHAER £
TEBEAEEMEZINBEHE - TR EHERE
TIHME - B2 BIUMEREGETEEKRE-
REBNMEKBERVBBESFRTHRFE
BRI T AR - BE AR EERE R
BERETMR® -

REVNEHENTNEBER 2

2022 2021

- T —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARBEF T

Within one year —FNR 510 420
In the second year F_F 960 510
In the third year F=F 960 960
In the forth year ke 800 960
In the fifth year FRF = 800
Total it 3,230 3,650

Rental income received from investment properties for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB400,000 (2021: RMB451,000) which was included in
revenue (note 5). There were no direct operating expenses
(including repairs and maintenance) included in cost of sales
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. Profit
arising from investment properties carried at fair value for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB400,000 (2021: RMB451,000).

The Group has no restrictions on the realisability of its
investment properties and no contractual obligations to
purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for
repairs, maintenance and enhancements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REYE (&)
Fair value hierarchy NEEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRHAAREBREMEZ AT EFEER :

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

Fair value measurement using

FERWABTEZ N FE
Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs input
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

REBRT S EXAEHE BAFUERE

FR R B A% WAE WAE
(B—4) (B=#) (B=#) e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARBT ARBTR AR¥T T

As at 31 December 2022 R-ZE-—F
+=-A=+—H
Recurring fair value LEMNFERZ
measurement for:
Commercial property Gl EIES — — 362,000 362,000
Fair value measurement using
FABABTEZAFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs input
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
& BT 5 ERABE BEARTAER
FrER(E & PN & A B
(B—#H) (B=@) (B=8) #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT AREETTT ARBTT
As at 31 December 2021 RIZEZ—%F
+=-A=+—H
Recurring fair value LEM QT ERE
measurement for:
Commercial property [EREEE/ES — — 370,000 370,000
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RERN F—HREEF_H2EATELAFEFEZ
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers B TEAE-fEARER(ZE_—%F:
into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil). ) o
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14.
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

REY* 8
DAPEZRE)
ATEZHE=MAZ AT E EHE -

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Carrying amount as at 1 January W—A—BZEmE 370,000 387,000
Net loss from fair value adjustments NTERAEZFER (8,000) (17,000)
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ZA=+—HBZEHEE 362,000 370,000

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the
key input to the valuation of investment properties:

HEREMEGEMEANBERMTREEZERGAE
M EEIIMT

Valuation technique Significant unobservable input Range or weighted average
fhE R M EXTAUEHEEGAE EE R ME T
2022 2021
GDV GDbV
Phase | Phase |
Shops Shops
—E-— T —
GDV GDbV

Commercial Direct comparison method Market unit sale rate
properties (RMB/sq.m.)
EhikZES HELEUE miHEAERE
(AR¥/BFFHXK)

The valuations of investment properties were arrived at using
the direct comparison method with reference to the
comparable sale prices in the relevant locality, adjusted for a
premium or discount specific to the quality of the Group’s
properties compared to recent sales of comparable
transactions. A higher discount for lower quality properties will
result in a lower fair value measurement.
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E—HES £ —HE

21,731-23,323 19,663-23,485

21,731-23,323 19,663-23,485
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

15. LEASES 15. &
The Group as a lessee AEBEREEA
The Group has lease contracts for office premises used in its FEBERAREEBEENRLAEMENEES
operations. Leases of a factory and office premises generally W IMMFRNIGHHOEERSEB2FMNHEE
have a lease term of 2 years. Generally, the Group is Hlo—MRME  ANEETERNEEIIBEZER
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets SHEBEEEE o Wtoh - BRATEL — IR MR FRIA
outside the Group. In addition, lump sum payments were MEB ARBHEE T - A AS0F - MIRIEZ
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with SLHENGKR BT SEENEMRIEA -
lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases.
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EHEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets FRNAEEFEREEENREERERH
and the movements during the year are as follows: T -
Leasehold land Buildings Total
HE+ i B3 et
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5 ARBTR AR TR AR TR
At 1 January 2021 R-ZZTE——%F
—H—H 1,029,103 2,173 1,031,276
Additions NE 31,162 — 31,162
Disposals e () (372,527) — (372,527)
Depreciation charge TERE (26,238) (1,851) (28,089)
Exchange realignment P& 3 & (618) (32) (650)
At 31 December 2021 and RZZEZ—F
1 January 2022 +=ZA=+—8xX
—H—H 660,882 290 661,172
Additions NE — 1,286 1,286
Depreciation charge TERX (13,507) (924) (14,431)
Exchange realignment [ 5, 58 2 (2,057) 43 (2,014)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZTZ—F
+=-A=+—H 645,318 695 646,013

TECCFEERE
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15. LEASES (Continued) 15. #HE @)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEEREEA (B
(a) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (a) EHAEEE &)
Notes: P eE -
(i) The leasehold land disposed during the year ended (i) HE_Z-—F+-A=+—HLEFEH

31 December 2021 was initially purchased by the Group
for establishing a steel plate processing production line
in Lianyungang, the PRC. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the local government implemented
a series of environmental policies which did not support
the steel plate processing production. Due to change of
government policy, the Group cannot implement the
production plan. The leasehold land was subject to land
idle charge as it is vacant and no construction has been
commenced on the leasehold land. The directors
considers that the disposal of the leasehold land could
provide the Group with cash flow to repay the bank and
other borrowings and avoid the land idle charge. As a
result, the leasehold land was disposed at a loss of
approximately RMB292,780,000 (note 6) during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

(ii) As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s (ii)
leasehold land with an aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB489,399,000 (2021:
RMB501,928,000) were pledged to secure certain bank
loans granted to the Group (note 28).

EMNHAETHEYHASEREUNTE
EESRIHARNIGE BE_T=-—%F
+ZA=+—HLEFE EHBEEE—
RIRRBUR - TZHMWMRIMNT - BRI
FRENEl  AEBEBEREEEET
ZomRAELEE RAAE L I
EFREHE T - B A E i 78 W ER
EERA -EFRA LEHEELHEAR
SEEHBSRUEERTREMEEN
ket EEER Bt B2
—F+-A=+—HLEFE ZMAE+H
WHE - BB ARK292,780,0007T (Hf
£6) °

R-E-_—F+-A=+—8 AEEZE
THRmEEN A AR 489,399,000 (=
T——4%: AR%501,928,0007T) 2HE
T ERERE  URERFAEEZE
FERITE K (HI7E28) -

(b) Lease liabilities (b)) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under FR-HEEENEREE GTAGERITR
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the HMEERET) RESHIOT

movements during the year are as follows:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZERHEE 325 2,365
New leases EHEE 1,286 —
Accretion of interest recognised during the year R EET TS 57 109
Payments (BN (991) (2,006)
Exchange realignment PE 5 3 & 45 (143)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—BZkHEE 722 325
Analysed into: BUATH A

Current portion BVEREB > 686 325

Non-current portion FERNER &L 5 36 —
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HE & &SI HIE R I h B 75 W& it 5%
note 42 to the financial statements. A2 FE
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15. LEASES (Continued)

17.

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in

relation to leases are as follows:

15. HE @
REBEREBEA B

(c) HHEERAZERZHA

HMF :

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBFIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 57 109
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENERX 14,431 28,089
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBmER 2 BT 14,488 28,198
16. LONG TERM PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 16. REANRERRE

2022 2021
—E_-_F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBETT
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment W BRE R E 2 B FIE 69,558 58,508
Deposits paid BEffiLe 2,848 2,986
72,406 61,494

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 17. R—REEEQARAZRE
2022 2021
—s-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT
Share of net assets DIEEEFE — —
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 %

17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows:

2-E_—

“FFT A=+ -HIEFE

17. R—BEERAZRE W@
AEBAZRRZFBINEHDT

Percentage of

Aot

Particulars of Place of
issued shares registration and Ownership Principal
Name held business interest Voting power Profit sharing activities

PESI=E- £y 1
=18 R4 1B EiEME BEEER REE PE AL R FTEXEK
Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Registered Kingdom of Saudi 50 50 50 Manufacture and
Company capital of SR50 Arabia sale of welded
million each steel pipes
Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe gfEAR  DERREER 50 50 50 HHiER
Company £#%50,000,000 HEREME

DB

The above investment in a joint venture is indirectly held by

the Company.

Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company (the “JV Company”), which is
considered a material joint venture of the Group, acts as the

Group’s producer and distributor of steel

pipes

in the

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and is accounted for using the

equity method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 17. A—BEEEQTAZRE @)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRINTEEBRRZHMBEERGE  EFERS
information of the JV Company adjusted for any differences STBCR M EEEL AT - WM BREKAYK
in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amounts EEHER -

in the financial statements:

2021
—E-—%F
RMB’000
AREET T
Other receivables o fth fE U R IE 49,209
Trade receivables Z S BRI 132,983
Inventories FE 64,926
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTHE R 2,036
Total current assets mEEELE 249,154
Right-of-use assets CREEE 23,846
Property, plant and equipment LE NS e 560,047
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 583,893
Other payables o E < B 17,679
Trade payables B 5 RN 3,878
Short-term bank loans — unsecured MEIRTTER — EEE 403,202
Current portion of long term loans REEF RIS 51,663
Tax payable JE 1~ A 18 82
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,637
Total current liabilities mEAEER 478,141
Non-current financial liabilities, excluding trade and BB E  TEREESENERK
other payables and provisions H b A~ FR0E N BB 280,882
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERTE 280,882
Net assets BEFRE 74,024
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T _—F+_A=+—RHILFE

17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

17. R—BEERAZRE W@

2021
—E-—%F
RMB’000
AREETF T

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the joint venture: HASEREGENA 2 #En ik
The loss from contribution of non-monetary assets AAEEEEZERE (85,007)
Net liabilities after reconciliation HERR B EFRE (10,983)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RNEE 2 A RELLA 50%
Group’s share of net liabilities of the joint venture REBEELRGE AT BEFE (5,492)
Carrying amount of the investment Y ERREE —
REVENUE PN 174,837
Cost of sales $HE AR (193,519)
Gross loss B (18,682)
Other income and gains H A U A R U 2 16,806
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (1,155)
Administrative expenses THER (7,176)
Finance costs R E AR (21,931)
Loss before tax B 75 A 5 48 (32,138)
Income tax expense TS BRI XX —
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FRNEBERTEEBELSE (32,138)
Share of loss (50%) FE(R B 18(50%) (16,069)
Realised profit from down-stream transactions THR 5B 28 EF 1,049
Share of loss of a joint venture Eh—E&E Rz EE (15,020)

As at 31 December 2022, investment in a joint venture was
reclassified to non-current asset classified as held for sale
(note 34).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

18.

19.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 18. BREPYH
2022 2021
—E-_— %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
Properties under development BERPYE — 2,255,293
As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s properties R-E-_—F+-_A=+—8 AE£EEETEE
under development with an aggregate carrying amount of BEL B ARY1,086,130,000 T2 ERFYED
approximately RMB1,086,130,000 were pledged to secure BEER - IS E T ARER 2 & THRTE R (M
certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 28). 128) °
All properties under development are situated in Mainland RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H FEZETYE
China and were held under long term leases as at BHRURFPRERH - WIRERAAHELNEE
31 December 2021.
In the opinion of the directors, all properties under EERAE FEERTUERNTEROFNES
development are expected to be realised in the business BEEAEIE - AR LT A B E R WEBEN AR
cycle of four years. Since all of the above properties under SENEELEBRALE  BWEEREARY
development are to be sold within the normal operating cycle BEE -
of the Group, they are classified as current assets.
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 19. ZHBFEME

The Group’s completed properties held for sale are located in
Mainland China. All completed properties held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. No write-
down of completed properties held for sale has been made as
the net realisable value of the properties was higher than
their carrying amount.

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s completed
properties held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB913,698,000 (2021: RMB93,778,000) were
pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to the Group
(note 28).

TECCFEERE

REBEERFEYEURTEAM - FAEE
P B IRARET HRFEREERT -
HRBEHENDERYEN 2R FESNE
RmEE - S EMEZEYE -

RZEBZZF+_A=+—H AKEETEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

20.

21.

INVENTORIES FE
2022 2021
—E-C T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREET T
Raw materials JR 1 K 134,249 104,953
Work in progress R 79,168 76,120
Finished goods RUEY oA 202,938 249,473
416,355 430,546

Less: Provision against slow-moving and W OB RRETERE
obsolete inventories (13,661) (13,661)
402,694 416,885

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

BEZRWERERRERRE

2022 2021

—s-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARET T

Trade receivables E S EWERER 407,709 508,402
Impairment allowance VERERE& (28,853) (13,516)
Trade receivables, net B 5 EWERFEE 378,856 494,886
Bills receivable JE U 2= 95 — 8,220
378,856 503,106

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally 30 days to
90 days. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. ESRWERREERER @
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of REEMR  EREZAHKEHNREEREED
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of Z S REWRFRRE T T

loss allowance, is as follows:

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Within 60 days 60H A 153,001 248,838
61 to 90 days 61HE90H 17,342 10,810
91 to 180 days 91HZ180H 58,830 24,499
181 to 365 days 181H £365H 18,282 105,091
1 to 2 years 15225 57,804 25,019
2 to 3 years 2E34F 7,456 6,170
Over 3 years HBE3IF 66,141 74,459

378,856 494,886
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade ERBEFREBEREEZSHNT

receivables are as follows:

2022 2021
—E_— —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B =t AR¥TT ARETT

At 1 January ®n—A—H 13,516 6,333
Impairment losses recognised BERBEEE 6 24,225 7,183
Amount written off as uncollectible Hiss =K U [el & B8 (8,888) —
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 28,853 13,516
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T _—F+_A=+—RHILFE

21.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The Group applied the provision matrix method in the
assessment of the ECLs on trade receivables at each
reporting period. This method studies the probability of default
to arrive at the ECLs of trade receivables. The process
involves a review of, among others, the Group’s historical
sales recordings and trade receivables, in order to determine
the default rate of the debtors.

The Group have considered and conducted, among other
things, the following key steps:

. Define a period of sales and bad debts relating to those
sales;

. Collect the historical data of trade receivables;

. Calculate the historical default loss percentage; and

. Calculate the ECL using the default rate determined

aforementioned.

The provision matrix method involves the definition of an
appropriate period of time to analyse the proportion of
receivables written off as bad debts. Based on the best
estimation of the management, over 3 years unpaid trade
receivables as at each reporting date have been defined in
this exercise.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB54,240,000 (2021: RMB54,240,000) and
RMB179,943,000 (2021: RMB7,517,000) due from a debtor
(the “Debtor”) and state-owned enterprises respectively (the
“Specific Debtors”). Based on management’s experience and
best estimation, as a business partner, there is a high
likelihood that the amount payables held by a subsidiary due
to the Debtor could provide coverage against the potential
financial losses embedding in trade receivables due from the
Debtor.

normally with lower credit risk,

Meanwhile, as the state-owned enterprises are
it was assumed by the
management that their default probability was insignificant.
Therefore, the trade receivables from the Specific Debtors
have been deducted from ECLs.

21.
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R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. ESRWERREERER @
Based on the provisional matrix method, the Group has BRBEBEEREE  AEEEST T —RFEZ
analysed the historical observed default rate from 2016 to TI_FNRLBERENE  BRREMHEEESRE
2022, assuming outstanding payment 3-year after credit terms ZFEMEAREENIE AR ETTESRLE
is written-off. The amount of outstanding receivable amount at BrmREERWERSRE  EEERME -

the end of each time bucket could then be determined until
the point the bad debt is written off.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk UTEHINERAREBRAREBEEREETENES
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using the provision EYEFHEERBRER

matrix method:

As at 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+=-A=+—H

Age of trade receivable

B 2 EBUR TR R
Within 1to 2 to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
—FR —EMF ME=F BB=fF st
Expected credit loss rate HHEEEEX 4.1% 20.9% 47.8% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) #EEE(ARETT) 252,246 65,275 11,866 78,322 407,709
Less: Specific Debtors (RMB'000)  J&i : B EEBA
(AR®FT) (135,944) (29,465) (2,633) (66,141) (234,183)
Net carrying amount (RMB’000) REFE(ARBTT) 116,303 35,810 9,232 12,181 173,526
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) FEHI{=ZE/E1E
(AR®EFT) 4,791 7,471 4,410 12,181 28,853
As at 31 December 2021 (Restated) R-ZEBE-_—F+=-A=+—H(EZF])
Age of trade receivable
B 5 RUR TR
Within 1to 2 to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
—FR —EMF WE=F BR=F it
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBEE 0.5% 4.5% 7.4% 38.4%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) #4fREE(ARETT) 391,343 26,143 6,623 84,293 508,402
Less: Specific Debtors (RMB’000)  Ji : #EEBA
(ANREFT) (1,405) (1,194) (473) (58,685) (61,757)
Net carrying amount (RMB’000) FEEFEARETT) 389,938 24,949 6,150 25,608 446,645
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)  FAHZ & 518
(AR®FT) 2,105 1,124 453 9,834 13,516
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21.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the
“Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order to
settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB48,643,000. The
Derecognised Bills had a maturity of three to twelve months
at the end of the reporting period. In accordance with the
Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the
Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the Group
if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full
carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the
associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss
from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills was equal to their carrying amounts. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills
were not significant.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had not
recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the
Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were recognised from
the Continuing Involvement, both during the year and
cumulatively. The endorsement had been made evenly

throughout the year.

There was no Derecognised Bill during the year ended 31
December 2022.

21.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

22. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 22,
OTHER ASSETS

ANRE - HUERREREGEE

2022 2021
—E-C —ETE-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBETT

Prepayments TE A 5RIE 418,305 457,972
Deposits and other receivables e K& H b fE W EKIE 275,867 781,555
Tax recoverable A Y [B] % 18 9,731 49,512
703,903 1,289,039
Impairment allowance Ve RERE L] (24,801) (163,686)
679,102 1,125,353
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of BeREMEBUGREREBERHEEZESHOT

deposits and other receivables are as follows:

2022 2021
—E-= T —F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

=3 ARBT T ARETT

At 1 January ®n—A—H 163,686 163,686
Impairment losses recognised BRI ESE 6 2,184 —
Amount written off as uncollectible G b= g El Rk (141,069) —
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H 24,801 163,686

Based on management’s experience and best estimation,
over 2 years unpaid other receivables and overdue other
receivables as at each reporting date have been defined as
bad debts in the assessment of the ECLs on other
receivables.

The financial assets included in the above balance were
categorised in stage 1 as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
Except for the default receivables, the Group estimated that
the expected credit loss rate of other receivables is minimal.

TECCFEERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23. REeRBESEEYURCEARIZIRE
PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK RITHEER
BALANCES
2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B =E AR¥TT ARETT

Cash and bank balances [ e RIBITEH 16,128 20,588
Pledged and restricted bank balances B R REIRT
e 14,920 249,719
31,048 270,307
Less: Ve
Pledged and restricted bank balances — current B K [ 2R $$R 17
ek — BNHR
— Restricted cash — ZREEe (a) (12,117) (12,928)
— Pledged for bank acceptance notes — BRIRITHEH EE
2 (2,800) (236,788)
— Pledged for letters of guarantee — BERKEER (3) (3)
(14,920) (249,719)
Cash and cash equivalents RekRSEFEY (b) 16,128 20,588
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T - —F+_A=+—RHILFE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23. HERBESEEBEYURBERARZRH

PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK RITHE @

BALANCES (Continued)

Notes: B 5

(@)  Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property (a) IREBEHEEERA  AEEETHEERRD 2
development companies of the Group are required to place at RIEERITEPFAE TRENEEMEME
designated bank accounts certain amounts of pre-sales HEREXBEDNENRESR - 2175 1§TﬁHBA
proceeds of properties as guarantee deposits for the REMYEEEREEIMBRINERER -
construction of the related properties. The deposits can only be RZE_—F+-A=1+—8 ZRESHAEA
used for purchases of construction materials and payments of R#12,117,000c (== —F : AR
construction fees for the relevant property projects. As at 12,928,0007T) °

31 December 2022, such guarantee deposits amounted to
approximately RMB12,117,000 (2021: RMB12,928,000).

(b) As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash (b) RZTFZZHF+ZA=+—8  "EENUET
equivalents denominated in US$ amounted to approximately {Emfﬁi&ﬁ/i\ﬁfﬁ%,ﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬂ 534,000
RMB4,534,000 (2021: RMB1,090,000) and denominated in —E=—F: AR%1,090,0007T) & AARE
RMB amounted to approximately RMB11,415,000 (2021: FHMEMNESMRSEEMOAARKE 11,415,000
RMB18,226,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other TL(ZZE=—%F : AR%18,226,0007T) - ARWE
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange TRAIEBRABRAEMEY - BREPBEAMEIN
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and HEE HMEDI RAEE EERNEERRTE A%
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is Er B REREETINEEBRNRITHARE R
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks BRAEEME -

authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RATIR IR RITIF AT R B EERF B FI L HRE
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits FE - RITERRBERTRDFENMEBEE
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of B HR S0 A4 R S8 B SRAT

default.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 24, ESERARREESRRE
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the RBEMKR BRIEEHEAHPAENE SFEMNER
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as RENZBEERRTHET
follows:
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Trade payables B OREMNER
Within 90 days 90HRA 372,595 729,282
91 to 180 days 91H=2180H 51,645 45,093
181 to 365 days 181H £365H 35,803 34,126
1 to 2 years 155225 44,972 56,669
2 to 3 years 2FEIF 33,622 75,642
Over 3 years 3FA F 66,548 62,153
605,185 1,002,965
Bills payable RS 30,884 286,670
636,069 1,289,635
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally BORNERATHE B—RER—FAX
settled within a year. The maturity dates of all the bills 7o PR B R T\IT 365 B A FH -

payable are within 365 days.
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. HWENRERETEHR
2022 2021
—=-= —E_—%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T AREET T

Deposits received [REE &R (a) 59,434 59,917

Other payables H th fE K08 (b) 503,012 410,763

Payroll payables JE 1< 5 EM 23,074 19,821

Accruals and other liabilities EEERREMEE 216,061 201,567

Other tax payables HhEHiia 36,745 958

838,326 693,026

Notes: MeE -

(a) Receipt in advance from disposal of non-current assets (a) HESHEARFELEZIFRADEERRKELNR
classified as held for sale of approximately RMB41,378,000 AR #41,378,000 Tt AR WIZ® 2 BREIE ©
was included in the carrying amount of deposited received.

(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average (b) EMENFUEATHERTHBMRAME=(EA -
term of two to three months.

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. EHEE

Details of contract liabilities at the end of the reporting period RBEBR GHBEFBOT :

are as follows:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREETF T
Short-term advances received from customers BWEFHNEHENR
Manufacture and sale of seam welded steel pipes ZiEREEGREERE X
and the provision of related manufacturing REAEARERS
services 262,514 310,636
Sale of properties SHEW 441,741 1,040,922
Total contract liabilities EHaEESE 704,255 1,351,558

Contract liabilities

buyers in connection with the Group’s pre-sale of steel pipes
and properties. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2022

include sales proceeds received from

W ER Y 85 5 FT1S BROR -

was mainly due to the decrease in the Group’s pre-sale of B o

steel pipes and properties.

TECCFEERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

26. EHNEEM®

Changes in contract liabilities during the year are as follows: FAEGHNBEZEFHNT
2022 2021
—TEC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBEF T
At 1 January ®n—A—H 1,351,558 1,286,986
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract AFVENBEZ
liabilities at the beginning of the year BRERBA (769,769) (184,999)
Increases due to cash received, excluding amounts BUR &8 B E M
recognised as revenue during the year (TEREFREERE
WAZ &%) 122,466 249,571
At 31 December ®R+=—A=+—H 704,255 1,351,558
27. FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES 27. EEREBEHREE
2022 2021
—B-C-F —Z-—F
Principal at  Contractual Principal at ~ Contractual
original interest original interest
currency rate (%) currency rate (%)
‘million  per annum Maturity RMB’000 ‘million per annum Maturity RMB’000
RE¥ RE%
AEEE GHNERE%) IHE  ARBTR KeBE GHFNE%) R  ARETR
Current &
2017 Bonds A —T—tF Us$1.1 7.0 2023 7,615 US$1.65 7.0 2022 10,265
EHA 11%£7% —B== 1.65% 7T i Sk ;3
2019 Bonds A —E-hF N/A N/A N/A - HK$3 6.0 2022 2,453
EHA TEH TER TEH 3BT —T-—f
2020 Bonds A —T-EF N/A N/A N/A = HK$2 6.0 2022 1,635
BEHA TER TER TER 2B kSt
2020 Notes —“E-FF HK$80 12.0 2023 71,462 HK$90 12.0 2022 72,942
£ 807E T —®== 0T “E-CF
2021 Bonds A —E-—F N/A N/A N/A - HK$2 6.0 2022 1,635
BEHA TEH TER TEH 2587 —T-—f
2022 Bonds A —T--F HK$1 6.0 2023 893 N/A N/A N/A —
BEHA 187 =3-=f% TER TEA TER
2022 Bonds B —T--F HK$2 6.0 2023 1,787 N/A N/A N/A —
E%B 28T —ECZF TER TEA TER
2022 Bonds C —EoCF HK$3 6.0 2023 2,680 N/A N/A N/A —
E%HC 3B —EBC-=F TER TEA TER
2022 Bonds D —T--F HK$1 6.0 2023 893 N/A N/A N/A —
%D 187 =3-=f% TER TEA TER
85,330 88,930
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27.

FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES (Continued)
US$3,000,000 7% bonds due in 2023 (2017 Bonds A)

On 28 April 2017, the Company issued bonds with a principal
amount of US$3,000,000 to an individual investor (the “2017
Bonds A”). The bonds should be repayable in full by 28 April
2020 but the expiry date could be extended to 30 June 2022
and further extended to 31 March 2023 by the Company and
the investor. The bonds bear interest at a fixed coupon
interest rate of 7% per annum, payable semiannually in
arrears commencing on 28 October 2017. The bonds are
unsecured. As at December 2022, the Company had partially
redeemed the 2017 Bonds with a principal amount of
US$1,900,000.

HK$3,000,000 6% bonds due in 2022 (2019 Bonds A)

On 30 August 2019,
principal amount of HK$3,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2019 Bonds A”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 8 January 2022. The bonds bear interest at a fixed

the Company issued bonds with a

coupon interest rate of 5% per annum, payable monthly in
arrears. From 6 January 2021, the interest rate of the 2019
Bonds A increased from 5% per annum to 6% per annum.
The bonds are unsecured. As at 31 December 2022, the
Company had fully redeemed the 2019 Bonds A.

HK$2,000,000 6% bonds due in 2022 (2020 Bonds A)

On 6 July 2020, the Company issued bonds with a principal
amount of HK$2,000,000 to an individual investor (the “2020
Bonds A”). The bonds should be repayable in full by
7 January 2021 but the expiry date could be extended to
9 January 2023. The bonds bear interest at a fixed coupon
interest rate of 5.5% per annum, payable monthly in arrears.
From 7 January 2021, the interest rate of the 2020 Bonds A
increased from 5.5% per annum to 6% per annum. The
December 2022, the
Company had fully redeemed the 2020 Bonds A.

bonds are unsecured. As at 31

TECCEEERE

27.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T _—F+_A=+—RHILFE

27.

FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES (Continued)
HK$140,000,000 12% notes due in 2022 (2020 Notes)

On 27 April 2020, the Company issued 12% notes due on
27 April 2022 but the expiry date could be extended to
30 September 2022 with a principal amount of
HK$140,000,000 to an investment fund (the “2020 Notes”).
The notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 12% per annum,
payable semiannually in arrears. Pursuant to the purchase
agreement, specific performance obligations are imposed on
the controlling shareholder of the Group. Any breach of the
specific performance obligations may constitute a breach
under the note purchase agreement, pursuant to which the
investment fund is entitled to redeem the 2020 Notes
immediately in accordance with the terms and conditions. As
at December 2022, the Company had partially redeemed the
2020 Notes with a principal amount of HK$60,000,000. The
Company and the noteholder mutually agreed to extend the
maturity date to 22 December 2023.

HK$2,000,000 6% bonds due in 2022 (2021 Bonds A)

On 28 September 2021, the Company issued bonds with a
principal amount of HK$2,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2021 Bonds A”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 27 September 2022. The bonds bear interest at a fixed
coupon interest rate of 6% per annum, payable monthly in
arrears. The bonds are unsecured. As at 31 December 2022,
the Company had fully redeemed the 2021 Bond A.

HK$1,000,000 6% bonds due in 2023 (2022 Bonds A)

On 3 January 2022,
principal amount of HK$1,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2022 Bonds A”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 4 January 2023. The bonds bear interest at a fixed

the Company issued bonds with a

coupon interest rate of 6% per annum, payable monthly in
arrears. The bonds are unsecured.

27.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

27.

FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES (Continued)
HK$2,000,000 6% bonds due in 2023 (2022 Bonds B)

On 8 January 2022, the Company issued bonds with a
principal amount of HK$2,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2022 Bonds B”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 9 January 2023. The bonds bear interest at a fixed
coupon interest rate of 6% per annum, payable monthly in
arrears. The bonds are unsecured.

HK$3,000,000 6% bonds due in 2023 (2022 Bonds C)

On 8 January 2022, the Company issued bonds with a
principal amount of HK$3,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2022 Bonds C”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 9 January 2023. The bonds bear interest at a fixed
coupon interest rate of 6% per annum, payable monthly in
arrears. The bonds are unsecured.

HK$1,000,000 6% bonds due in 2023 (2022 Bonds D)

On 30 September 2022, the Company issued bonds with a
principal amount of HK$1,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2022 Bonds D”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 1 October 2023. The bonds bear interest at a fixed
coupon interest rate of 6% per annum, payable monthly in
arrears. The bonds are unsecured.

27.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. FTEBITRHEHMEE
BORROWINGS
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BB TR (%) EfE AR®BTRT EENE%) FEE ARBTT
Current E
Lease liabilities (note 15) HEERE (H3E15) 2.51 2023 686 7.97 2022 325
—Eg=-= —E-—F
Bank loans RITER
— secured — BER 3.50-5.88 2023 373,928 4.79-5.70 2022 403,220
—E-= —F-=
— unsecured — IR 4.70-5.44 2023 59,622 5.44 2022 59,000
—E-=F T
Other borrowings Hihfg &
— unsecured — 11.20 2023 265,173 11.20-15.00 2022 270,349
—E-=F —E-=
Current portion of long RERITEFRE
term bank loans i
— secured — BEE 4.90-5.88 2023 181,000 5.39-5.88 2022 148,500
—Eg=-= —E-—F
Subtotal NEF 880,409 881,394
Non-current FERE
Lease liabilities (note 15) THE&E (MiE15) 2.51 2024 36 N/A N/A —
—E-ME TEMA TEA
Bank loans RITE
— secured — BER 4.90-5.88 2024-2028 810,203 4.90-5.88 2024-2028 839,905
—E-mEF —T-WF
EB-N\F EZT)NF
Subtotal NE 810,239 839,905
1,690,648 1,721,299
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. FFEMBITREMEE (@)
BORROWINGS (Continued)

2022 2021
—E-=F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Analysed into: BT A

Bank loans repayable: AR THREEMRITER
Within one year —F R 614,550 610,720
In the second year F_F 680,203 177,000

In the third to fifth years, inclusive FFEERF

(BREREMWF) = 524,905
Beyond five years iR hE 130,000 138,000
1,424,753 1,450,625

Other borrowings repayable: ARATHREENEMES :
Within one year —FR 265,173 270,349
265,173 270,349

Lease liabilities repayable: ARNUTHREENHERRE
Within one year —FN 686 325
In the second year B _F 36 —
722 325
1,690,648 1,721,299
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T _—F+_A=+—RHILFE

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28.
BORROWINGS (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by:

(@) the pledge of certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB598,109,000 (2021: RMB567,860,000) as at the
end of the reporting period;

(b) the pledge of certain of the Group’s leasehold land with
a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB489,399,000 (2021: RMB501,928,000) as at the
end of the reporting period;

(c) the pledge of certain of the Group’s properties under
development amounting to approximately
RMB1,086,130,000 as at 31 December 2021; and

(d) the pledge of certain of the Group’s completed properties
held for sale amounting to approximately
RMB913,698,000 (2021: RMB93,778,000) as at the end
of the reporting period.

Except for the other borrowings of approximately RMB2,494,000
(2021: RMB1,975,000) as at 31 December 2022, which are
denominated in HK$, the borrowings of the Group are
denominated in RMB.

The Group had the following undrawn banking facilities:

FFRRITRAEMEER @
AEBEETRITERA NI SREREM

(a) HEAAEENHEPREAFENRAR
#598,109,000 L (Z T —F : AR¥
567,860,0007T) H)E T ¥ - BB Rkt

(b) HERAKERFERAREDFEONSAR
#489,399,000L (=T = —F : AR
501,928,0007T ) A% T & 1 ih :

(c) HEHAEBER-_Z=-_—F+=ZA=+—H
S FL A ANRY1,086,130,0007T K & T 3
BHWE: &

(d) HEBEAEERARSE ,HHE%%E%W%AE%
913,698,000t (- T - —F : AR
93,778,0007T) M7 7}%%%#@%0

RZZEZZF+ZA=+—8 AEEREME
%%@AEWA%,OOOE(:%:—E:)\Eﬁ%
1,975,0007T) BUBTTHES - 2HEEHUAR
#FIME -

AEBEETHHARRERRITEES :

2022 2021
—TEC-CF —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B =t AR®T T ARBTT

Floating rate FE A

— expiring within one year — —F R E|H 975,052 213,280
— expiring beyond one year — — & H 714,797 690,595
Total undrawn banking facilities RIBEVRTTRNE 4858 (a) 1,689,849 903,875

240 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

28.

29,

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. FTEBITRHEMEE @
BORROWINGS (Continued)
Note: B 5
(@)  Pursuant to the relevant contract, certain of the Group’s undrawn (a) WBEEEGY AEELHEAARG681,797,000
banking facilities of RMB681,797,000 (2021: RMB650,000,000) T(ZZE=Z—%F : AR¥650,000,0007T) 2% F
can only be used for property development projects and are RREDRITEEENTARMERRIER @ WikE
repayable based on the pre-sale progress of such properties. M TEEEEEE -
PROVISION 29. #B1E
2022 2021
—E-_— —EF-—4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
b 5 AR® T AREET T
Legal proceedings: SRR
At 1 January Rn—H—H 30,488 54,579
Provision for the year REFERAE 6 18,795 29,290
Utilised during the year FASHA = (53,381)
At 31 December RT=A=+—8 49,283 30,488

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are defendants in lawsuits
brought by third parties alleging that the subsidiaries
breached and repudiated certain purchase and construction
contracts. The claims are subject to the legal arbitration and
are expected to be finalised in 2023. During the year ended
31 December 2022, a provision of approximately
RMB18,795,000 (2021: RMB29,290,000) (including related
interest) was recognised in profit or loss based on directors’
estimation of the expected probable outcome.

TECCFEERE

AEBEETHEAR AL =FRENFAZY
& REZHEEZENBAREREKTEITS
THERBEGN -ZPRBFAVETHESA
RERBHBR S -_=ZFEF -HE_T_—
F+ZA=1+—BLFE BEESHTOHES
AEER  ERBEEERHARK18,795,0007T
(ZZ==—%: AR¥29,290,0007T) (& & E78 7
B) 2B o
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30. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax liabilities

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

30. ELEHRE
EERESE
Changes in/

realisation of

fair value of  Accelerated
GDC tax  Withholding
properties®  depreciation tax Total
SERWE
ZAVE
B BH MEFERE BB Hat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
At 1 January 2021 R-—E-—%—HA—8 347,199 4,412 2,265 353,876
Deferred tax credited to the FARGEBERITA
consolidated statement of profit A IR E R I8
or loss during the year (4,250) (48) — (4,298)
At 31 December 2021 and R-TE-—4F
1 January 2022 +ZR=+—8K
—ET-—_F#—HF—H 342,949 4,364 2,265 349,578
Deferred tax credited to the FARGEEERERFTA
consolidated statement of profit B IR IE #5118
or loss during the year (55,289) = = (55,289)
At 31 December 2022 RZTZ—F
+=—RA=+—H 287,660 4,364 2,265 294,289

*

GDC properties include investment properties, properties under
development and completed properties held for sale.

Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law, a 10% (or a lower rate if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors) withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. The Group
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those

is therefore liable for

subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

SREDEEZREME - BRPMEIERSF

=E/EX

RIBHBEIDEMETE - R0 BIRERZ SN

BhEMBIMYEET KRS

" ARIAN10% (S it

B A ERSN BRIRE B RDEA R MO I S 1A
REBERE) BIOH - HRER—FTNE—A
—HER WEAR-ZZLF+=RA=1+—H
BEREREZ R - F it - AR E AL B KBERK L
ZREWNBRAMR-_ZBENF-—A—HRELEZ
BN DR BB AIBI o

242 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

30.

31.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 30. EAEBIIE (#)
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued) EEREE E (F)
Since 2011, no deferred tax has been recognised by the A-E——F8 A5EHESREZNENR 2
Group for withholding taxes that would be payable on the ZEWEB R T 2 RE L BT 2 A SRR
unremitted earnings of those subsidiaries that are subject to RIEETIE  AREREERAZEMNEARITRK
withholding taxes as management considered that it is not AJRETEF] R R D IR AERI &R -
probable that those subsidiaries will distribute any earnings in
the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets EERBEE
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had tax losses arising in RZB-Z=—F+-_A=+—"H AEEREF
Hong Kong of approximately RMB442,276,000 (2021: EETREBEHARY442,276,000 (ZF = —
RMB536,731,000), which are available indefinitely for F: AR¥536,731,0007T) ' Z S HIEEER
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in EERHAAFEEFEHRBEN QN RRERY
which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses wmH e AEBITARFPRAMEEREEED
arising in Mainland China of approximately RMB1,708,331,000 ARM1,708,331,000c(Z T = —F : ARW
(2021: RMB1,361,983,000) that will expire in one to five years 1,361,983,0007T) * R —Z=RAFARNEH - LUK
for offsetting against future taxable profits. No deferred tax HARRERN &N NR_TE__FR-ZFT_—F
assets were recognised in respect of the tax losses of the +TZA=+—0  AEEHERTIEBERRE
Group as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. EFEHEE -
GOVERNMENT GRANTS 31. BUAF#EL
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T R AREEF T
At 1 January n—A—A 330,207 336,011
Grants received during the year G A 7 % G 4,022 7,389
Recognised as income during the year FAERBEA 5 (231,636) (13,193)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 102,593 330,207

Government grants have been received as encouragement for
technological innovation and improvements, the construction
investment

of production plants and rewards for

encouragement. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies attached to these grants. Related assets
associated with the above grants have not yet been

completed.

TECCFEERE

REE BT R - PASE Bl AR R 3R
Tt BRAERERMERRENER - ZFHA
BEM S ARER G REAEIR - B LA E
BZHBEERARRT
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-ZT - —F+=-A=+—HILFE
32. ISSUED CAPITAL 32. ERITRAX
2022 2021
—E-_— —EF-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
Authorised: ERE
10,000,000,000 (2021: 10,000,000,000) 10,000,000,000 %
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (ZF=—%F:
10,000,000,0004%)
BRMAEI10E L, LB 878,335 878,335
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
1,011,142,000 (2021: 1,011,142,000) 1,011,142,000%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (ZZT=—
1,011,142,0001&)
BRHEEI10E T2 E B 88,856 88,856
33. RESERVES 33. f#fE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements AEBRAFERNAFENRESEREFHE
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the IR BHMER 2 IFaEREEHRA -
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.
34. NON-CURRENT ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD 4. FTERFEHEZIRDEE

FOR SALE

On 26 April 2022, PCKSP, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the disposal
agreement with the joint venture partner, Abdel Hadi Abdullah
Al Qahtani & Sons, Co. (the “AHQ”), pursuant to which AHQ
has conditionally agreed to purchase, and PCKSP has
conditionally agreed to sell, the 50% equity interest in the JV
Company. The consideration payable by AHQ is SR41.5
million (or equivalent to approximately RMB70,550,000). Upon
Completion, the Group will cease to hold any interests in the
JV Company.

The transaction for disposal of investment in a joint venture
has not been completed up to the date of this report.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

35. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

35. HE—RKBAA

15 January
2021
T
—A+HhH
RMB’000
ARBEF T
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment M BERE&E 12,628
Right-of-use assets TREEE 2,966
Inventories BE 1,648
Trade receivables B SRR 1,087
Cash and bank balances R RIRTTHEE 257
Prepayments and other receivables TS RRIE & H b B U R IE 717
Trade payables g 5T IRR (539)
Other payables H M fE S RRIA (1,913)
Lease liabilities HEBE (3,153)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEBE (1,483)
12,215
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EBRR W 11,728
23,943
Satisfied by: THRF
Cash B 23,943

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:

FRLE—RHMNBARZREMASEEBYF
MADHTT

RMB’000
ARBEF T
Cash consideration BENRE 23,943
Consideration received in previous years BEFEDRWRRE (13,897)
Consideration received during the year prior to REEE B HR - FAKEZRE
disposal date (1,200)
Consideration to be received subsequent to the RAFE & GWE 2B
current year (78)
Cash and bank balances disposed of ERERe MRITERS (257)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of ERLE—RHWBRARZRERRSE
the disposal of a subsidiary BoFERA 8,511

TECCFEERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 %

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 36.

OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

2-E_—

“FFT A=+ -HIEFE

RERERERWE

(a) MEZHELEZREEH

activities
Bank and
other
borrowings
BE-=Z-C (other than Fixed rate
+=H=+-—H Lease lease bonds and Due to a
Year ended 31 December 2022 IEEE liabilities liabilities) notes director
RITRHAb
BE(HEAE EEEH
HESE BR4M) REE BEAESERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT R ARBT R ARET R
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—F
—H—H 325 1,720,974 88,930 449,111
Changes from financing cash MERSME
flows % (934) (31,229) (13,437) (58,916)
New leases FLHE 1,286 — — —
Interest expense FMERXZ 57 — — —
Interest paid classified as DEAKERS
operating cash flows mEZ B
Gilps, (57) — — —
Foreign exchange movement HINE 45 181 9,837 —
At 31 December 2022 WZZEZZ
+=—A=+—H 722 1,689,926 85,330 390,195
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 36.
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(a)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

FERERERMTE (B

(a) MEZHELEZRESH (H)

Bank and
other
borrowings
HE-_T-—F (other than Fixed rate
+ZA=+—H Lease lease bonds and Due to a
Year ended 31 December 2021 [FFE liabilities liabilities) notes director
RAT R EH A
HE(HERRE EEEH
HEAE BRAM) REE RENEZIE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARETTT
At 1 January 2021 RZTE—_—4F
—H—H 2,365 3,549,080 148,511 130,768
Changes from financing cash BRSNS
flows % (1,897)  (1,825,208) (56,250) 318,343
Interest expense A EHEX 109 — — —
Interest paid classified as DEAKERS
operating cash flows mEzBe
& (109) — — —
Foreign exchange movement SN B (143) (2,898) (3,331) —
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—%F
+=—A=+—8~ 325 1,720,974 88,930 449,111
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 36. MEHERERMT @
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HEBRSARHAE
The total cash outflow for leases during the reporting RmEHEFTAGEREeRER2HER
period included in the consolidated statement of cash BmHAgEET

flows is as follows:

2022 2021
—E_— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Within operating activities B E B (57) (109)
Within investing activities % B & B = —
Within financing activities B & & & (934) (1,897)
(991) (2,006)
37. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 37. MBER
The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher HHBEREHNIIZENEEBERERETRER
of the ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised less SHEBEERZZFRACEZRBEETA
the cumulative amount of income recognised. The ECL 2 -EHEEBEREDRBMGITREERBA
allowance is measured by estimating the cash shortfalls, FEAEEBENEFFBERAISEETEER
which are based on the expected payments to reimburse the ABHER BB ERETE YIBERS
holders for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that BIER VIR B EREN A TE -

the Group expects to receive from the debtor. The amount
initially recognised represents the fair value at initial
recognition of the financial guarantees.
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37. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued)

(a)

At the end of the reporting period, financial guarantees
not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
provided for certain purchasers of the
Group’s properties

37.

Bt ISR R (8)
(a) MBEHR MBRERPARABEHEE

RUOR

RIZIBRBE R AEEYEN
ETETRENER

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREET T
36,887 73,652

As at 31 December 2022,
guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by

the Group provided

certain banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged
for certain purchasers of the Group’s properties.
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, in the event of
default on mortgage payments by these purchasers
before the expiry of the guarantees, the Group is
responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
principals together with the accrued interest and
penalties owed by the defaulted purchasers to the
banks, net of any auction proceeds as described
below.

Pursuant to the above arrangement, the related
properties were pledged to the banks as collateral for
the mortgage loans, and in the event of default on
mortgage repayments by these purchasers, the banks
are entitled to take over the legal titles and will realise
the pledged properties through open auction. The Group
is responsible for repaying the banks when the
proceeds from the auction of the properties cannot
cover the outstanding mortgage principals together with

the accrued interest and penalties.

TECCFEERE

RZZE-_—F+_A=1+—8 AEBHH
BITAANEBEYWES TEHiIRHIREB
MEFOIRBMERMEER - REE

:F
b7
BV R - REERBEm 28T Lt B
i
-

4

=5
=
(S
TRBRBERLED  ARBEAEBRRT
BEEENENHERORERRBAZER
FERT B KA (F0BR T XA e IHE

Yzs)

g

Rig LA 28 HEMECIERREBER
R ER TR R R BT R
BEXLEN  RITERIBAIEEE
WEBARMEEREARYE - EHEY
EFMRETRABEREENIRIBA
TEREAMERITR  AAKERER
RITEEFR -
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37. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued) 37. BMBER@E
(a)  (Continued) (@) (8
The Group’s guarantee period starts from the date of REENERANE THEBERBEERZB
grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the BAEZBEHEEEHEMEEZRS (BER
issuance of real estate ownership certificates to the ENBEEBAYMEE —EMFEANAAERS)
purchasers, which will generally be available within one B b o

to two years after the purchasers take possession of
the relevant properties.

The fair value of the guarantees is not significant and BEROAFELIAEKN  BARAEER
the directors of the Company consider that in the event BORERELNNEBERT  BEWMENT
of default on payments, the net realisable value of the BPHEFERUNEEREENRBASER
related properties can cover the repayment of the FEETFMERIIF - ALt - BRI E
outstanding mortgage principals together with the FIBERIELEE -

accrued interest and penalties, and therefore, no
provision has been made in the financial statements for
the guarantees.

(b) At the end of the reporting period, financial guarantees (b) RIMEBR BMBMERRBEIRET
given to banks in connection with facilities granted to a BEANBZBEMBITRETFEREOT

joint venture not provided for in the financial statements
were as follows:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Guarantees given to banks in connection MET-—HEAEERQA
with facilities granted to a joint venture A MIRITIR fHER — 514,062

As at 31 December 2021, the banking facilities RZEZ—F+ZA=+—8 ' KX&HEHMA
guaranteed by the Group to a joint venture were utilised BERNAERZBITHRECHAHNARE
to the extent of approximately RMB514,062,000. 514,062,0007T °

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the EERAE ERHRVSERIFNATFER
guarantees at initial recognition and ECL allowance are TEHEEBEREBTERXN -

not significant.
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38. COMMITMENTS 38. EiE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end RBEIR  REEBFATERAE

of the reporting period:

2022 2021
—E_— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI B R B
Construction of buildings EEEF 105,157 253,264
Construction of plant and machinery B 7 R S Mo B3 35,047 35,356
Capital contributions payable to a joint venture B —HEERAEENZ
AE — 99,951
140,204 388,571
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have REREHIAR - AR A) I 8 AT o] H Ath 88 KR HE o
any other significant commitments.
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BEBARS
(a) Name and relationship of related parties (a) BABASEBREBRE
The directors of the Company are of the view that the RRREZEZERBUT ARG ABET

following companies are related parties:

Name of related parties Relationship
S EH 2R

Guangzhou City Pearl River Machine Tool Works GZMT is a company of which Mr. Chen Chang is the

Co., Ltd. ultimate equity owner
J& I T IR PR B R 2~ &) WIMKTIHRE R EREKRBREREAZRF
Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company is a joint venture of the
Group
Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company Al-Qahtani PCK Pipe Company &R £E 7 & & A F
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 39. A RS (&)
(b) Transaction with related parties (b) RS ZX5
The Group had no transactions with related parties REEZZ-__F+=-A=+—HLFE "
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). REBMERAE TS (ZF—F M) -
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EHEEEEH z#sh
Outstanding balance at the end of the reporting period RBERARERARFTNES AN &%
with a director of the Company is as follows: R
2022 2021
—E-_—F —EF-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Due to a director JEHE £ kIR
Mr. Chen Chang =P e 390,195 449,111
The outstanding balance with a director is unsecured, HERENAINERDEER 2281
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. & F B RRER o
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the (d) FAXEEFZTZEBRAENTMOT :

Group during the year is as follows:

2022 2021
- —EF - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Fees, salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #&  F&  EZB N EWREF 3,566 3,285
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFIFT B 5 89 59

Total compensation paid to key management XX ZEE A 8 FE@%

personnel 3,655 3,344
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in EEMENE—PHFBRARTBHRE W
note 9 to the financial statements. &9 -
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40. BT EWNDE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RB|ERAR SHEAERMITANREBENT !
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
Financial assets TREE
2022 2021
—E=-= —EF-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREET T
(Restated)
(E5))
Financial assets at amortised cost: REEKNTFTENETREE -
Financial assets included in long term FFARBEARIBRIZESH
prepayments and deposits TREE 2,848 2,986
Trade and bills receivables B 5 R W R IR 378,856 503,106
Financial assets included in prepayments, other FTATEFRIA - EAb U GRIA
receivables and other assets REMEENEREE 251,066 617,869
Pledged deposits BEFZe 14,920 249,719
Cash and cash equivalents HehASEEY 16,128 20,588
663,818 1,394,268
Financial liabilities cRAE
2022 2021
—s-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREET T
(Restated)
(&E7%1)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REEKNAFTENSREBE
Trade and bills payables BHRNERARENRZE 636,069 1,289,635
Lease liabilities HEAE 722 325
Financial liabilities included in other payables and FTNEL A FE A FRIE K
accruals EirERAMNEmEE 719,073 612,330
Due to a director JENEERE 390,195 449,111
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings AFERITREMEE
(other than lease liabilities) (HE&ERKRIN) 1,689,926 1,720,974
Fixed rate bonds and notes ERERFLEE 85,330 88,930
3,521,315 4,161,305
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 4. EMIAZAFERAFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial BREEEEREEATECEBEENSRIAN K
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that SERITANKREERATFTEBAT

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair value
REE A¥EHE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—s-= —E-—F —E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARBETTT ARBTR ARETT

Financial liabilities: TRAE -
Interest-bearing bank and AFERITREMER
other borrowings (other (HEA AR
than lease liabilities) 1,689,926 1,720,974 1,727,178 1,776,416
Fixed rate bonds and EEEFLRER
notes 85,330 88,930 85,330 88,930
1,775,256 1,809,904 1,812,508 1,865,346
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and EREDTRReRREFEY SEBEFR
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills ZOMNERREWRE B2 ENERRRERN
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial assets included EB FABNREBEzeREE - HthEIKKIA
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, financial REMEE T AHMENRIEREFEBR S
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, lease BmEE HEABMENESREZATE &
liabilities and an amount due to a director approximate to HIFMERS  FZ2ZRARSIARNEERIE -

their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are TRMEERABGBZAFEUBERR S (AEK
included at the amount at which the instrument could be BEHERINENRZIPZIAZAR SR
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, AR o oA ERBZANGGTATEE :

other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair

values:
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41.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and fixed rate bonds and notes have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in
fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance
risk for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and fixed
rate bonds and notes as at 31 December 2022 and 2021
were assessed to be insignificant. The carrying amounts of
these financial instruments carried at amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2022 and 2021.

The fair value of warrants was estimated as at the date of
grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the warrants were granted.

Fair value hierarchy
The Group did not have any financial assets measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2021: Nil).

TECCEEERE

41.

EMITAZAFERATFESER@®

FAAGRRTREMBEREREFEARREZA
FE - TIAER  EERR RSB THERENUZT
ARBANMGHRE  FREARKRRE R
R B _FR_E_—F+-A=+—

B AEESABRITREMEERESES R
EREZEBEETETRARER 2 AFEZBFIES

FER - RZEZ_FR-_ZF-_—F+=ZA=+
B ZEHEEENAARZeRTAZERE
HEANFEITESRESR -

REEFNAFETIREL AR —AARE
T - W B B AHE E A IRK R R IR o

\:7::¢+ A=+—8 AEEXELW
BEAFEHEZERMEE(ZT_—F &) -

T-_—F+-A=+—0 AEELETM
FEHECZERBE(CT—F 8) -

9
»H

FR F-BERE_GZEAREERSREER
ERABZATEFEER  TEEAFZ=HX
BE-MEBH(ZF_—%F:8)-
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF M. EMIAZAFERAFESERK @

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

DNFEER &)
BRATFERENEE

Fair value measurement using

EATIZRETAFETE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable

markets inputs input
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BB S EXTEE BEAFITEE

PR E A% W AE W AE

(B—%) (B=#) (B=4) Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMETTT ARBETTT AR®ETTT ARETT

2022 —EF
Interest-bearing bank and TERITREMEES

other borrowings (other (FHEBERKRIN)

than lease liabilities) = 1,727,178 = 1,727,178
Fixed rate bonds and notes & B &% NEE — 85,330 — 85,330
2021 T
Interest-bearing bank and FFRRITREMEE

other borrowings (other (HEAa’RKRIN

than lease liabilities) — 1,776,416 — 1,776,416
Fixed rate bonds and notes & B &% MZiE — 88,930 — 88,930
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42,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include bank and
other borrowings, fixed rate bonds and notes, cash and short
term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group also has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which

arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. Generally, the Group introduces prudent
strategies on its risk management. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below:

(@) Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans
and government loans with floating interest rates. The
Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank and other borrowings.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of
fixed and floating interest rate borrowings in order to
manage its interest rate risk. Interest-bearing loans,
cash and short term deposits are stated at amortised
cost and not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate
interest income and expenses are credited/charged to

the statement of profit or loss as earned/incurred.

If there was a general increase/decrease in the interest
rate of bank and other borrowings with floating interest
rates by one percentage point, with all other variables
held constant, the consolidated operating results would
have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB11,700,000 (2021: RMB14,700,000),
would have been no impact on other components of the

and there

consolidated equity, except for accumulated losses, of
the Group.

TECCEEERE

42,

BEEREEERRBEER

AEEFENERIABRBRTRAMES - &
BEFEEE ReMERFER - ZEE2MIA
MEIZENEEEAEEMNKEERE - REETT
EEREMEREENAE WEERRAKEES
MEZERKERLESENERE -

HAEENSRIAEEANEIZRABRANXE
B SRR EERBREREE SRR - _ﬂx

mE - AEBEHR QEIEEP%U\%’I‘EE@
EFgEHTHEEREELRRE ENBUER $E5E
T

(a) FEEBS
AEBMAEZNTSHEEHREREZHA
SERZBHNEAFEORITERRBTE
HEBE AEENTEEFEESRITREA
MEENATFENERR

AEBTERESL EREERFBNEER
BRE  AEBREFNXER - FEENR B

& RAEMEFIREERATIE - A EH
Bk o F BRI R A S A R IRERE
EERERERI AR -

ERFHFEAENRITRAMEEER
ME/BE—EELH MAABEMES
T RSB EEB R G M A
R#11,700,000c (ZZE = —F : AR¥
147000007‘5) HAREEGERERNEM
oI EFE (M RFTEIBRIN) o
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42, BIBEREREBZERBEK @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Foreign currency risk (b) ShEEEBE
The Group has transactional currency exposures. These REBEBRZEBRAR - ZERABKE
exposures arise from sales by operating units in REBMABUMNNEEE LI EEE
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies. ITHVHE - REBIHESRHN24% (ZT = —
Approximately 24% (2021: 41%) of the Group’s sales F M%) EZETHENKLE BN
were mainly denominated in United States (“US”) BRI BT ([ET))EHE -
dollars, which is other than the functional currencies of
the operating units making the sale.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currencies RERRRNEBUIINEAFENEEEE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at LEBaEMNREERT
the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2022 2021
—E-— —EF-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBEF T
Assets BE
US dollar e 83,965 60,714
Liabilities afE
US dollar E7T 164,707 10,265
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at TRETRIRE AR & B BB A & M1
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible FIBEEMmEERFTIEBERTHNETE
change in the US dollar exchange rate, with all other EMEEAEEHNGRE -
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax.
Effect on profit before tax Y BR B AR B 7
2022 2021
—E-C— —EF - —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Increase in the US dollar rate of 3% 2 T 0B EIE I13% (2,422) 1,513
Decrease in the US dollar rate of 3% FETTE R A 3% 2,422 (1,513)

258 CHU KONG PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS STEEL PIPE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. For transactions that are not denominated in
the functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without the

specific approval of the Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets and the exposure to credit risk for the
financial guarantee contracts.

TECCFEERE

42. BHERERBEREEK @

(c)

FERR

AEEEEERTREBRIEFZFE=7E
IRG - AKRBZBRERABRIAEES
NETRF2EFPHABBEENZEFSF -
BESN - BUGRIRESRERFEEEM AR
EeiERRERI NEKX - BT AEEEE
BUMNMEEBHENRSIME A&H
EREFREEZIERFHNBR T REHR
11—4—%

a = °

=7

REEMBERFRER

TRETBAEEEERR (XTEERE
HER - BRIFHAREBERASE L
ARGEMER HEEEREEREER
B UER+T A=+ —HBENFREERD

FEIHNeRReMEENREAENRS
BB EREANFAENEERR -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42, BIBEREREBZERBEK @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) FEERB (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging REEBRFAEE (&)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZB-ZZH+=ZA=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

12-month Simplified
ECLs Stage 1 approach Total
12BAEBEE 2HEHEE
BIRE KR EEfEE At
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR TR AR TR AR TR
Financial assets included in SAARMBENFERZS
long term prepayments and ZEMEE
deposits 2,848 — 2,848
Trade receivables Z SRR (i) - 407,709 407,709
Financial assets included in FTATER R - E bR
prepayments, other RERHMEE, &/
receivables and other EE— %
assets — Normal (ii) 275,867 = 275,867
Pledged deposits — Not yet ~ E#FixE — MR@EH
past due 14,920 — 14,920
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY
— Not yet past due — WARBEH 16,128 — 16,128
Guarantees in respect of BRETARENERES
mortgage facilities provided REZEBRERE
for certain purchasers of the ER
Group’s properties
— Facilities drawn by — BTAEEYE
certain purchasers BEECDRRZ
of the Group’s &
properties 36,887 = 36,887
346,650 407,709 754,359
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

N —

E-E-_F+-_A=+—HILFE

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

(Continued)
As at 31 December 2021

42. BHERERBEREEK @

(c) FERRE @)
REREBERFAKEER (&)

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

12-month Simplified
ECLs Stage 1 approach Total
12 ABHEE 2HEHEE
EEE-RER BEEEE et
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B & ARETT ARETT ARBTT
Financial assets included in  sTARBENREBEREZES
long term prepayments and LERMEE
deposits 2,986 — 2,986
Trade receivables B 5 BRI (i) — 508,402 508,402
Bills receivable eSS — 8,220 8,220
Financial assets included in FPATERFIE - Htb R
prepayments, other RERHEMEE, &/
receivables and other AE —IE8
assets — Normal (i) 736,141 — 736,141
Pledged deposits — Not yet B FiRE — HMR@E
past due 249,719 — 249,719
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEE2EED
— Not yet past due — HAREH 20,588 — 20,588
Guarantees given to banks in  FtEF—H&EE AR Z
connection with facilities BMERRITRMA CER
granted to a joint venture
— Facilities drawn by a — —HAEERABRN
joint venture ZEE
— Not yet past due — M ARE A 514,062 — 514,062
Guarantees in respect of BETARENERES
mortgage facilities provided REZEBRERE
for certain purchasers of the ER
Group’s properties
— Facilities drawn by — ETAREEYE
certain purchasers BEEERNZ
of the Group’s ME
properties 73,652 — 73,652
1,597,148 516,622 2,113,770
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

(Continued)
Notes:

(i) For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
provision matrix is disclosed in note 21.

(ii) The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.
Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of
the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in
different sectors and industries.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure continuity of
sufficient funding and flexibility by utilising a variety of
bank and other borrowings with debt maturities
spreading over a range of periods, thereby ensuring
that the Group’s outstanding borrowing obligation is not
exposed to excessive repayment risk in any one year.
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s
businesses, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity

requirements.

42,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —_ T - —F+_A=+—RHILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42, BIBEKREEBZERBER @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) HREBELER(E
The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its REBMRBDESTEMRBEEBERSR
ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from WRMANERNIHENEE - UKL
operations to meet its debt obligations as they fall due, BINRE BN HBERENERFZH
and its ability to obtain external financing to meet its ﬁ 77 o R NEEE A 18 B AN AR AN H th Bl
committed future capital expenditure. With regard to its BEFRE RZEZ=F+=ZHA=+—8"
future capital commitments and other financing $ SEECERSEZRB|OREHEARE
requirements, the Group has already obtained banking 3,141,021,000 T EEHEE  HRHOAR
facilities with several banks of up to an amount of #1,451,172,000 T E W o
RMB3,141,021,000 as at 31 December 2022, of which
an amount of approximately RMB1,451,172,000 has
been utilised.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as RI|EBR  NEBERSITHORTRA
at the end of the reporting period, based on the PR RBENIEBBRAT
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
31 December 2022
—B-_—_f+=-A=+-—H
Less than Over
On demand 1 year 1 year Total
RER DPR—F —FpE 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET R ARBT R ARET R
Trade and bills payables 2 5 RENERR
ENEE — 636,069 = 636,069
Other payables H b FE T FUE — 719,073 — 719,073
Due to a director ENEEHIE 390,195 — — 390,195
Lease liabilities HEAR = 707 36 743
Interest-bearing bank and other &t 2717 & H A
borrowings (excluding lease Fi% (T EE
liabilities) E8E) — 940,107 848,394 1,788,501
Fixed rate bonds and notes E%%%&ﬁﬂ% — 95,045 — 95,045
390,195 2,391,001 848,430 3,629,626
Financial guarantees issued: BELZBEER:
Maximum amount guaranteed BoEREE 36,887 — — 36,887
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RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B E —_ T - —F+_A=+—HIL4F

=

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42, BIBEREREBZERBEK @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) HREBELERE(E
31 December 2021
T —F+=ZA=+—H
Less than Over
On demand 1 year 1 year Total
REX DPR—F —FME HBET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTT ARBFT ARBTIT
Trade and bills payables BIRNERR
AL — 1,289,635 — 1,289,635
Other payables H &5 FRIE — 730,658 — 730,658
Due to a director BN EZEERIA 449 111 — — 449111
Lease liabilities HEEE — 334 — 334
Interest-bearing bank and other &t 2 3R7T K& H A
borrowings (excluding lease BE (TR
liabilities) HEBE) — 953,152 961,768 1,914,920
Fixed rate bonds and notes EREFLRER — 95,791 — 95,791
449,111 3,069,570 961,768 4,480,449
Financial guarantees issued: BEHZEEER:
Maximum amount guaranteed ERERERE 587,714 — — 587,714
(e) Capital management (e) BEAXER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total debts divided by total assets. Total debts
include interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
fixed rate bonds and notes. The gearing ratio as at
31 December 2022 was 27.1% (2021: 22.9%).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. RRATZHBERR T
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the

ARBRBERRZMBIRARERDT

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE 49,591 49,591
Total non-current assets ERBEERLE 49,591 49,591
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments TERT IR 210 —
Due from subsidiaries N ENGIE 285,928 301,030
Cash and bank balances R& MIRITH 17 1,196
Total current assets mEEELE 286,155 302,226
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBasd
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFERTLEMEE 2,497 1,974
Other payables and accruals o B R E R
#H 2,512 35,081
Due to subsidiaries XS NGIE S 69,601 63,704
Fixed rate bonds and notes TFEEHFLERE 85,330 88,930
Total current liabilities REAERTE 159,940 189,689
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 126,215 112,537
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHERARBERE 175,806 162,128
Net assets BEFE 175,806 162,128
EQUITY ExE
Issued capital BB 1T A 88,856 88,856
Reserves (note) i (fsE) 86,950 73,272
Total equity 4B R 175,806 162,128
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS HRR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T - —_F+_A=+—HIEFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

43. AP Az B BARR T (&)

Note: M3t -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARAZHEBRENOT -
Exchange
Share Contributed Accumulated fluctuation
premium surplus losses reserve Total
R =EE BEHAER 2 EFE EXREFE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT ARBFT AREF T ARBTTT ARBF T
At 1 January 2021 N —F
—A—H 824,219 1,712,731 (2,368,234) (39,248) 129,468
Total comprehensive loss for AN [Z 2 [ #5144 48
the year — — (52,222) (3,974) (56,196)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZTE——F
+=-—A=+—H 824,219 1,712,731 (2,420,456) (43,222) 73,272
Total comprehensive income RNEE2EWEEE
for the year — — 3,137 10,541 13,678
At 31 December 2022 R-E-——F
+=A=+—8 824,219 1,712,731 (2,417,319) (32,681) 86,950
e [—]
44. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 4. LBEF

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
with the current year's presentation.

45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2023.

ETHEBFOLENDRUNEERFEZLTY -

45. #HLEMB®|EK

HBHRRENR T =F=-A=+tHEEESH

R IR RETIE -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T FHMBERE

MBERBE
AEER T XM EMENEEREEERAMBRFERN
EAMEENEERBBERENT

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years prepared on the basis
set out in the note below is as follows:

Results S
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+t-HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—g-= —T--F ZZT-ZTF ZT-AE ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Revenue WA 2,362,015 1,813,370 1,141,807 1,193,961 1,681,566
Cost of sales and services 55 R AR B AR (1,891,392)  (1,617,854) (935,120) (981,769)  (1,358,041)
Gross profit EH 470,623 195,516 206,687 212,192 323,525
Other income and gains H g A R Mg 238,743 1,580,778 1,911,272 441,747 81,579
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HAX (55,062) (52,906) (34,808) (55,821) (63,744)
Administrative expenses THE R (245,826) (263,635) (287,638) (336,042) (437,020)
Other expenses Hi B (209,786) (376,014) (300,702) (69,388) (93,432)
Exchange gain/(loss), net fE 5 U (B518) -
FHE 16,416 (33,476) (120,098) 23,528 16,241
Finance costs A& R AR (44,643) (144,253) (475,384) (450,058) (374,468)
Impairment of property, plant and mE BEREHEZ
equipment A = (596,765) — — —
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment — &MEZ ATE
properties (B#8), (8,000) (17,000) (20,000) 78,008 21,779
Fair value gain/(loss) on a derivative f$T4£&@BTAZ AFE
financial instrument W/ (EE) — — — 19,260 (22,984)
Share of loss of a joint venture BE—HEAERFIZ
&8 — (15,020) (2,668) (18,655) (2,724)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRELAEF, (F1R) 162,465 277,225 876,661 (155,229) (551,248)
Income tax credit/(expense) Friefime,/ (BR) 569 (371,579) (253,750) 13,140 52,313
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(BE) 163,034 (94,354) 622,911 (142,089) (498,935)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ ENMBRRIBERLMDS
income for the year, net of tax (&)W (57,611) 63,175 178,815 (21,323) (116,857)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for FRZEUE/(E1E)
the year ok 105,423 (31,179) 801,726 (163,412) (615,792)
Earnings/(loss) per share gRAEM/(FHR)
— basic and diluted — ERREE RMB AR¥% RMB ARY¥ RMB AR RMB AR¥ RMB AR
0.16 7T (0.09)7T 0.627T (0.14)7T (0.49)7T
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LEHBEHE
Assets and Liabilities EEHEE
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+-—H

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-= T ZE-TF ZT-hF ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREBTIT ARBFTIT ARKEFT ARETIT
Non-current assets EmENE E 2,850,413 2,966,975 4,034,502 4,435,885 5,437,956
Current assets MBNEE 3,704,524 4,956,147 4,507,026 4,053,921 4,570,337
Current liabilities e B & (3,627,690) (4,809,986) (5,457,229) (3,913,293) (4,610,046)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,996,308) (2,287,620) (2,227,604) (4,521,544) (5,167,974)
Total equity RSB 930,939 825,516 856,695 54,969 230,273
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